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With determination and sustained efforts, one
will always find himself a success.

In the rapidly changing financial markets, we
have been working with you to move forward
steadily.

With our extensive experience in the global
market, effective risk control and in-depth
understanding of customer needs, we adhere
to high-quality financial services to create
value for you.

On the way to achieving goals in life, we are
not only your wealth management expert, but
also your most trusted partner.

At Guotai Junan International, we unlock the
opportunities to global wealth.
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Corporate Profile

Established in Hong Kong, one of the world's most vibrant global metropolises, Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
("Guotai Junan International” or “the Company" or "We") (stock code: 1788.HK) serves as a bridge to connect enterprises and
investors in China and the world. The Company provides a range of innovative financial products and services to facilitate
investment opportunities for mainland Chinese and overseas companies and investors.

Guotai Junan International is the first Chinese securities brokerage house with China Securities Regulatory Commission
approval to list its shares through initial public offering on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange"). Established in Hong Kong in 1995, we have core businesses including brokerage, corporate finance,
asset management, loans and financing, financial products, market making and investments. The Company has diversified
its business lines in recent years due to rapid and successful development of corporate finance, loans and financing, fixed
income, structured products and market-making businesses, and has shifted its focus from the traditional brokerage to
wealth management with a wide range of tailored financial products and services to create attractive returns for investors.
Our team of dedicated professionals, who have in-depth knowledge and understanding of capital markets, has established
a solid reputation for providing high quality financial services and tailored financial products to investors in Hong Kong,
China and across the world.

By means of a sophisticated online platform, we provide our clients with comprehensive services in number of markets for
securities, derivatives and leveraged foreign exchange trading, IPO subscriptions, margin financing, stock quotes, market
news and research reports, etc.. Our powerful online trading tools, including mobile application, support online trading in
8 major global stock markets and over 20 futures and options markets, as well as leveraged foreign exchange trading with
9 major currency pairs and 29 associated combinations.

The Company operates an effective risk management system for all lines of business to minimize risks and maximize returns
for shareholders and investors. Guotai Junan International has been assigned “Baa2/Prime-2" and "BBB+/A-2" rating from
Moody's and Standard & Poor's respectively, which were the highest ratings among the Chinese securities houses in Hong
Kong.

Guotai Junan International was also awarded with the “Securities House of the Year 2018" by Asia Risk Magazine. Despite
the turbulence in the stock market and the economic slowdown in recent years, Guotai Junan International has maintained
a steady growth, outperforming competitors in terms of return on equity and remaining at the very top of the industry.

Our controlling shareholder, Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. ("Guotai Junan") (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 601211.
SS; the Stock Exchange stock code: 2611.HK) is the comprehensive financial service provider with a long-term sustainable
and overall leading position in securities industry in China. Backed by our parent company's strong support in terms of brand
name advantages, client network and significant capital, we play a major role in the international development strategy of
Guotai Junan, serving as the gateway for its expansion.

Looking into the future, we will continue to expand and invest in our existing platform and customer profiles, and become
a major regional financial services and products enterprise.

With our effective risk management system and wide range of financial services and innovative products, we will commit
ourselves to provide high-quality services for clients with integrity, focus, expertise and innovation.
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® Seeking continuous improvement with our rich experience

® |Incorporated in Hong Kong

e launched its online platform for United States securities trading

Successfully listed on the Mainboard of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code 1788.HK
Started its leveraged foreign exchange trading service

Launched its online platform for Hong Kong securities trading
Commenced its debt underwriting business, providing debt financing and advisory services

e Commenced business in Singapore market

institutional clients

Assigned with rating of "Baa2/Prime-2" and "BBB/A-2" by Moody's and S&P respectively
Commenced its equity derivatives business, providing customized financial products for

Hong Kong

code 2611.HK

e S&P upgraded the long-term issuer rating of the Company to "BBB+", along with "Baa2" rating
assigned by Moody's, achieved the highest ratings among the Chinese financial institutions in

e (Completed the H shares IPO project for our parent company, Guotai Junan Securities with stock

Being included in Hang Seng SCHK High Dividend Low Volatility Index
Our wealth management center officially opened for business

With 24 years brand value of "Guotai Junan" in HK,
built strong professional investors and institutional
client base

Developed comprehensive product line, as the one-
stop financial service platform

Transformed to a unique Chinese investment bank
with leading position in debt underwriting business

Provided competitive equity derivatives product, well
received by financial institutions and high-net-worth
clients

S&P rated "BBB+" with "stable” outlook, Moody's
rated "Baa2" with “stable” outlook — highest credit
ratings among Chinese financial institutions in Hong
Kong

Continuously optimized finance costs and stepped up
as the industry leader

Emphasized sound risk management system, improved
overall net asset quality by introducing interest rates
by tiers for loan products

@ Well-prepared to unleash the potential of the Guotai Junan wealth management
platform

Prospects:

More diversified investment products

More extensive sales network and specialized
investment consultants

Attract quality clients and invest in quality assets
Increase commission and fee based income

Further improve the stability of the Group's
earnings

Provide more attractive returns to shareholders
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»  [Financial Highlights

For the year ended 31 December

2018 2017 Change
HK$'000 HK$'000 %

Fee and commission income

- brokerage 454,962 517,118 -12.0%

- corporate finance 594,970 683,526 -13.0%

- asset management 16,716 29,792 -43.9%
Income from loans and financing 1,307,294 1,288,777 1.4%
Gain from financial products, market making and investments 638,266 613,180 4.1%
Revenue 3,012,208 3,132,393 -3.8%
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company 796,835 1,228,174 -35.1%
Return on average net assets 8.2% 14.6% -6.4ppt
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 10.5 17.7 -40.7%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) 10.5 17.6 -40.3%
Dividend per share (HK cents) 5.3 9.0 -41.1%
Dividend payout ratio 51% 51% same
Equity per ordinary share (HK$) (Note) 1.42 1.24 14.5%

O 2018 Revenue mix

Corporate Finance
/ p

20%

Brokerage NG

15%

/7 Asset Management
1%

Financial Products, Market ———
Making and Investments
21%

Note:
Based on 7,652,256,690 shares (2017: 6,943,880,085 shares) as at 31 December 2018, being 7,715,673,090 shares issued and fully paid less

63,416,400 shares held under the Company's share award scheme (2017: 7,005,680,485 shares issued and fully paid less 61,800,400 shares held
under the Company's share award scheme).
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p  [ve Years Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Revenue and other income 3,016,140 3,134,792 2,521,795 2,278,507 1,661,041

Profit before tax 969,590 1,559,112 1,188,607 1,168,122 929,216

Profit for the year 835,786 1,334,491 1,026,087 1,015,433 801,915
Profit attributable to ordinary equity

holders of the Company 796,835 1,228,174 969,139 1,013,541 799,791

@ Revenue and other income (HK$mil)

3,135 5016
2,522
2,279
1,661
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
D Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (Hk$mil)
1,228
1014 960
800 797
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Five Years Financial Summary

As at 31 December

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Loans and advances to customers 12,275,375 15,583,573 14,538,144 12,375,857 9,099,164
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 15,019,421 8,924,271 5,888,774 2,197,965 1,353,089
Financial products 32,842,048 28,246,491 7,424,551 2,429,123 —
Receivable from reverse repurchase
agreements 3,109,006 1,513,177 480,782 509,695 —
Derivative financial instruments 76,832 110,461 122,001 24,952 1,766
Cash and cash equivalents 4,105,672 2,212,502 1,964,398 2,408,666 889,286
Client trust bank balances 14,319,985 12,348,012 12,400,917 14,662,991 9,009,909
Other current assets 5,675,775 4,475,149 1,671,466 2,199,578 1,130,166
Other non-current assets 610,177 546,748 509,712 520,608 521,501
Total assets 88,034,291 73,960,384 45,000,745 37,329,435 22,004,881
Bank borrowings (9,441,083) (13,781,721) (8,911,433) (7,855,662) (4,462,719)
Debt securities in issue (25,999,272) (16,363,891) (5,823,241) (2,358,088) (171.123)
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (8,413,380) (9,008,776) (3,485,520) (505,340) —
Obligations under repurchase agreements (13,156,517)  (6,244,957) (930,958) (400,517) =
Derivative financial instruments (23,620) (27,722) (130,083) (29,766) (1,766)
Other liabilities (19,488,400) (17,541,891) (15,185,676) (18,544,805) (10,304,059)
Non-controlling interests (329,304) (36,546) (11,951) (11,693) (9,801)
Shareholders' fund 11,182,715 10,954,880 10,521,883 7,623,564 7,055,413
D Asset structure (HK$mil) D Shareholders' fund (Hk$mil)
88,034 10522 10955 11183
73,960
7055 1624
45,001
37,329
22,005
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

D Client trust bank balances (cash only) (Hk$mil)

14,663
12,401

9,010

12,348

14,320

2014 2015 2016

2017

2018

D Cash and cash equivalents (HK$mil

4,106

2,409
1,964 2213

889

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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In 2018, our corporate philosophy of comprehensive development and professional service are widely recognized by
our clients and peers. During the year, the Group was awarded 19 awards from prestigious media and professional
organizations in respect of numerous areas such as bond issuance, derivatives providers, wealth management, corporate
governance, risk management and investor relations.

n The Most Competitive Wealth Management The Best Investor Relations Management Award
Institution Sina Finance
Phoenix Net Finance
B} Securities House of the Year

2/3 Financial Institution Awards 2018: AsiaRisk
Excellence Award in Risk Management
Excellence Award in Corporate Finance Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise
Outstanding Award in Derivative Provider Economic Digest Magazine
of the Year

Bloomberg Businessweek
Outstanding Contribution Award for Mainland

Brokers on FIC product
Hong Kong Stock Exchange
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n The Corporate Awards 2018:
Gold Award
The Asset

n Best Information Disclosure Award
roadshowchina.cn

Asia's Best CEO
Best Investor Relations Company
Corporate Governance Asia

Best Hong Kong Deal

Finance Asia

Junding Awards in Excellent Chinese Wealth
Management Institutions
Securities Times

Excellence in Investor Relations
Quam Finance 2017

Golden Winner (Financial Sector — Capital Market)
Top 60 Reports China

Top 80 Reports Asia-Pacific Region

LACP 2017 Vision Awards (for annual report)

Bronze Award — The Best Annual Report
ARC Awards 2018

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report
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Chairman's
Statement

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report to you that in 2018, with prudent
assessment of the market situation, the Group has been
proactive and strived to achieve high quality growth amidst
the complicated and volatile market environment. The
Group prioritized the growth quality, rather than scale of
the business as the development goal and endeavored to
increase return on equity (ROE), and especially to increase
the risk-adjusted return on capital so as to create value for
shareholders in a sustainable way.

Hong Kong capital market fluctuated sharply during the
year due to the influences and impacts of global market
liquidity tightening led by the US dollar interest rate hike,
Sino-US trade friction, the slowdown of economic growth
in PRC, deleveraging measures and industrial restructuring.
Hang Seng Index fell 14% for the year. Inevitably, the
Group's income and profits were also affected under such
condition.

The Company has taken active measures and responded
to the complicated situations effectively. In 2018, our
return on equity of ordinary equity holders remained in a
leading position in the industry. The overall revenue of the
Group during the year under review, excluding the effect
of income arising from the listing of our parent company
in 2017, increased by 5% year-on-year and maintained a
continuous growth.

However, impacted by three negative factors, namely,
the lower risk appetite of investors due to the significant
fluctuation of the market, high income base effect caused
by the listing project of our parent company in 2017, and
the Group's proactive increase of risk provision to deal
with potential market fluctuation, as at the end of 2018,
the Group's total income decreased year-on-year by 49%,
while profit attributable to shareholders dropped by 35%
to HK$800 million as compared to the previous year. The
comparable profit after tax (after deduction of the parent
company's listing income) decreased year-on-year by 20%.
Basic earnings per share of the Group decreased by 40.7%
to HK$0.105 as compared to the previous year.



Chairman's Statement

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.020 per share. Together with the interim dividend of
HK$0.033 per share, the aggregate dividend for the year will amount to HK$0.053 per share, representing a payout ratio of
51%. The Group has maintained a steady dividend policy for years so as to deliver substantial cash returns with sustained
growth while we endeavored to create capital returns for shareholders and investors.

Results Review

In 2018, the global economy continued its reviving trend. However, under the political ideology and policy of "America
First" under the Trump's government in the United States, the global political and economic landscape has undergone great
adjustments and changes. While trade conflicts escalated, all the emerging markets currencies were under pressure and
the global risk appetite decreased.

Subsequent to the China National People's Congress and the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference, the PRC
government further deepened the financial reform and the financial regulatory system reform, to establish a new financial
regulatory framework known as "One Committee, One Bank, Two Commissions”, and significantly contained the phenomenon
of shadow banking, regulatory arbitrage and illegal financing activities. Meanwhile, regulatory authorities enhanced the
macro-prudential of cross-border financing and capital flow activities, and the regulation of capital remittance of foreign
exchange became more and more tough. Under the sound and neutral monetary policy implemented by the People's Bank
of China and the further implementation of the deleveraging policy and measures, market liquidity has been tightened,
financing difficulties of private companies has been greater and the overall level of leverage has dropped, while credit
breach occurred more frequently.

In 2018, MSCI, FTSE Russell and S&P Dow Jones Indices successively announced the inclusion of A shares into their index
system, prompting the integration of A shares into the global capital market. Upon the amendment of the Main Board
Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange came into effect in April 2018, the "Weighted Voting Rights" structure was
implemented and became a catalyst for the speeding up of the IPO market in Hong Kong.

However, the global stock markets, including the Hong Kong market, have weakened due to the recurring Sino-US trade
friction and the ups and downs of Sino-US relations. At the end of 2018, the total market capitalization of the Hong Kong
securities market amounted to HK$29.9 trillion, down 12% from HK$34.0 trillion in the same period of last year. The Hang
Seng Index closed at 25,845 points at the end of December 2018, down 149% for the year with a volatility of 8,944 points.

In 2018, the daily average stock turnover of the Hong Kong securities market achieved a record high of HK$107.4 billion,
up 22% from HK$88.2 billion in 2017. There were 218 new companies listed during the year, representing 25% increase
as compared to 174 in 2017. Funds raised by way of initial public offerings amounted to HK$286.5 billion, representing an
increase of 123% as compared with HK$128.5 billion in 2017, while total funds raised amounted to HK$541.7 billion, down
7% year-on-year.

By leveraging on the favorable market trend this year, the Group was committed to optimizing risk capital management,
improving capital allocation efficiency, and increasing resources in fixed income securities, financial products, and
wealth management business, and we have achieved satisfactory operating results. The income generated by issuing and
underwriting fixed income securities this year significantly increased by 38%. The income from financial products enjoyed a
year-on-year increase of 111%. The aggregate amount of assets under management (AUM) of wealth management business
also achieved rapid growth and major breakthroughs. The business growth related to wealth management was conducive to
the increase of risk neutral income, which laid a solid foundation for the improvement of risk-adjusted return on capital.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report
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Chairman's Statement

While pursuing higher revenue, the Group continued to strengthen its cost control and expenses management. We were at
a leading position in the industry in terms of cost-expense-ratio and profit-per-capita.

On the other hand, in 2018, the Group deepened its credit risk management, adjusted the proportion of small and medium-
cap stocks financing to the total loan balance, reduced the LTV ratio for small and medium-cap stocks, lowered the
concentration of single stock and single customer loans, and set repayment limits for specific customers or forced liquidation.
We carried out risk control measures, such as tiered interest rate pricing based on internal rating, and the launching of risk-
pricing-based interest rate quotation system for large loans, which was also applied to our bond business. Consequently, we
practically improved customer structure, improved the quality of collaterals, and optimized the credit portfolio, effectively
reduced the overall credit risk, and significantly optimized income structure and risk structure. Additionally, facing the
headwinds of the escalation of Sino-US trade dispute, the PRC's deleveraging policy and liquidity crunch in securities market
caused by directional unleashing of risks, the Group proactively made a larger amount of expected loss provisions in 2018,
effectively increasing the level of risk buffering and enhancing the Group's risk tolerance in the future.

The Group deems effective risk management as our core competence. In response to the complicated and ever-changing
market conditions, we improved our risk control by continuous implementing the global risk management framework, policies
and systems. In 2018, Moody's Investors Service and S&P Global Ratings, the major international credit rating agencies,
maintained the Group's long-term issuer rating at Baa2 and BBB+ respectively, which were the highest ratings among the
Chinese securities houses in Hong Kong. The ratings not only effectively lowered the weighted average cost of capital,
but also represented the broad recognition and appreciation of the market as well as the rating agencies on the Group's
outstanding risk management capabilities, our effective leadership and core competitiveness in the industry.

Prospect

In 2019, under the influence of geopolitical factors including the continuous Sino-US trade dispute, the unsettled North
Korea's nuclear issue and the Britain's Brexit predicament, the global market will experience fluctuations. The overall market
development will turn upward.

As the interest rate hike in the US dollar slows down and Sino-US trade talks on progress, we believe that the fundamental
economy in China will be gradually stabilized and improved, but the growth rate is still affected by the back and forth
of Sino-US trade negotiations. It is expected that the monetary policy in China will be fine-tuned and promising under a
sound and neutral tone, and the introduction of positive financial policies, such as structural tax reduction, will facilitate
the market recovery.

In 2019, our business will be benefited by many favorable factors. The main revenue drivers include the increase of A-shares
in the MSCI index, the rising demand of overseas financing and risk management for Chinese enterprises, the growing
demand of high-net-worth individuals in the Mainland China for overseas assets allocation, the launch of Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area development plan and the promising breakthrough of "Belt and Road Initiative".

As the major overseas business platform of our parent company Guotai Junan Securities Co.,Ltd., the Group will capitalize
on our advantages of integration labeled as "One Guotai Junan", cooperate closely with the parent company in China,
and provide holistic and diversified overseas financial products and high quality comprehensive financial services for our
corporate, institutional and high-net-worth individual clients.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report



Chairman's Statement

The Group will strive to enhance the overall business strength to explore large and medium-sized clients, boost the wealth
management services, propel risk management services, enrich product and service matrix to increase growth drivers. We
will accelerate the exploration in Southeast Asia region such as Vietnam, extend service coverage, and expand customer
base to drive revenue growth. The risk adjusted return on capital will be enhanced by strengthening risk capital management
and optimizing performance evaluation system. We will continue to capitalize on our outstanding risk management ability,
transparent corporate governance, symmetric information disclosure, and optimal incentive mechanism, so as to empower
the Group to achieve stable, reliable and sustainable business growth, constantly create values, and bring more returns to
our shareholders, investors, counter parties, staff members and the society.

Dr. YIM Fung, JP
Chairman

18 March 2019

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report
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Management
Discussion
and

Analysis

Market Review

2018 is a tough year for the global economy and financial market. On one hand, four rounds of interest rate hikes of the
United States ("US") Federal Reserve have led to a sharp tightening of liquidity of the emerging markets and restrained the
recovery of the global economy. On the other hand, the trade friction initiated by the US has dragged the major exporting
countries into difficult economic situations. As a result, the economic growth of many countries has slowed down or even
resorted to a technical recession. In the People's Republic of China ("PRC"), the economy was under the dual pressures
of the decline in external demand and the "de-leveraging” policies implemented to reduce financial risks, the demand for
consumption and investment was restrained, while the demand for corporate financing has experienced a slowdown, credit
risks appeared gradually, and market risks increased prominently.

Under the circumstances, while adhering to the stable and neutral monetary policy, the People's Bank of China adopted
more flexible approaches to enhance counter-cyclical adjustments, by carrying out four rounds of the reductions in reserve
requirement ratio and initiating certain measures to facilitate medium term loans. The Ministry of Finance and Administration
of Taxation also introduced tax cut and fee reduction measures to support the development of enterprises, especially private
enterprises, by reducing operation cost, expanding financing channels, reducing financing cost and alleviating risk of share
pledge. The annual gross domestic product (GDP) achieved a steady growth of 6.6% year-on-year, first exceeding RMB90
trillion, which was beyond the market expectation.

In 2018, the Hong Kong capital market also experienced certain degree of downward adjustment due to the impacts of
external factors, such as the interest rate hikes of the US dollar and the Sino-US trade friction. Both Hong Kong Hang Seng
Index and China Enterprises Index declined by nearly 14% during the year. Driven by the factors such as the first inclusion
of A-share by MSCI index in the first half of the year, and the uncertainties brought by the Sino-US trade friction in the
second half of the year, Hang Seng Index and market turnover experienced a boom first then followed by a fall during the
year. Although the average daily trading volume increased by 22% year-on-year to HK$107.41 billion during the year, the
stock market turnover showed a significant decline of 30% in the second half of the year as compared with the first half.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the primary market, under the implementation of preferential listing policies for companies of "Weighted Voting Rights",
there were 218 newly listed companies in Hong Kong in 2018, representing an increase of 25% as compared to the last year,
and funds raised by initial public offerings amounted to HK$286.5 billion, representing an increase of 123% as compared
to the last year. However, the total amount of funds raised (including funds raised by initial listing) was HK$541.7 billion,
representing a decrease of 7% as compared to the last year.

In the bond market, under the increasing macro-economic uncertainties, corporate bond financing activities were hampered
in 2018. The secondary market was affected by various factors, such as the tightened market liquidity and the decline of
risk appetites, resulting in a wider credit spread in US dollar-denominated bonds issued by the Chinese corporates and
an increase in bond yield. At the end of the year, due to the expected slowdown of US dollar interest rate hike, the US
dollar-denominated high yield bonds issued by the Chinese corporates became more attractive in terms of allocation value,
driving the repatriation of funds, and hence the development trend of the bond market improved.

Business Review

Being the first Chinese securities brokerage house rooted its operations in Hong Kong, Guotai Junan International adhered
to its business philosophies of prudence, pragmatism and ambition. We maintained our focus on value of client service-
oriented and market-oriented, continuously provided one-stop financing, investment, trading, asset management and wealth
management services with support of innovative technology. We also offered competitive customized financial products
and comprehensive financial service solutions.

During the year under review, the Group emphasized the sound risk management as the core competitiveness and foundation
of business development, aimed for a better risk-income ratio with pragmatic asset quality improvement, business portfolio
adjustment, customer composition optimization and income structure optimization, thereby achieving high quality and
sustainable development.

Wealth management business rapidly growing, financial products highly received. With over 20 years of the brand
value of "Guotai Junan", diversified financial products with strong competitiveness and rich experience in comprehensive
cross-border financial services with its strong client base, the Group focused on developing high-net-worth clients and
providing clients with customized and differentiated global asset allocation and other wealth management services. In
2018, the Group further improved and enhanced its services for high-net-worth clients and expanded its network with a
new wealth management center, the number of our high-net-worth clients increased by approximately 40% year-on-year.
Meanwhile, the Group has put an immense effort in expanding the financial product lines for high-net-worth clients, the
penetration rate of customized financial products against the investment of high-net-worth clients has been increasing,
representing a significant increase of proportion in their investment portfolio. The strong market competitiveness of such
financial products brought in a considerable increment in asset value, the overall scale of the assets under management
has thus significantly increased.

Debt capital market business reached a new high, securing the leading position in the industry. The Company's debt
capital market ("DCM") underwriting business maintained its leading position in the industry in 2018. Although the macro
liquidity was tightened in 2018 and the blockage of financing channels became more severe as compared to previous years,
the Group's DCM business made a remarkable achievement in terms of both "quality” and "quantity”. A total of 142 bond
underwriting projects were completed during the year, while the amount of funds raised increased by 289% year-on-year
to HK$319.7 billion, representing a historic breakthrough, laying a solid foundation in terms of business and clients for the
Group's fixed income, currencies and commodities (“FICC") market making and investments business.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Risk management facilitating the improvement of asset quality and laying a solid foundation for future growth.
The high-quality growth has always been the Group's development strategy. In 2018, the Group further enhanced our
risk management system to improve overall asset quality by proactively adjusting our customer structure, identifying and
releasing risks. The Group significantly lowered the proportion of loan business with the stocks of middle to small cap
or low liquidity as collaterals and implemented interest rates by tiers for all new loan products, which enabled the Group
successfully overcome the credit risk rise cycle caused by the significant fluctuations of the market. Our customer structure,
collateral structure and credit asset structure have been effectively optimized, significantly improved quality of assets.
Moreover, the Company has made sufficient risk related provision in advance, effectively managed its risk tolerance, laying
a firm foundation for a healthy and sustainable growth in future.

Leading global asset allocation platform, providing one-stop integrated financial services. Guotai Junan International
bases itself in Hong Kong as a leading global asset allocation platform in the industry to provide individual, institutional
and corporate clients with comprehensive customized financial products, global asset allocation strategies, one-stop
integrated financial services and all-round investment and financing solutions. In 2018, the Group launched an integrated
wealth management service platform for high-net-worth clients and upgraded the mobile trading platform with innovative
technology to improve clients' overall trading and investment experience.

Proactively exploring Southeast Asian markets, accelerating the pace of international development. In 2018, the Group
proactively explored the Southeast Asian markets and initiated an acquisition of the majority interest in a financial service
institution in Vietnam. This is an important initiative for the Group to further deepen its presence in Southeast Asia after
Singapore. It is also an important step of internationalization of Guotai Junan. Upon the completion of the acquisition, the
Group will become the first Chinese brokerage firm entering into Vietnam market, engineering the development momentum
for the Group's business growth.

Results Overview

The Group reports to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholder(s)") that total profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company (“Profit Attributable to Shareholders") amounted to approximately HK$800 million (2017: HK$1,230 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2018, representing a decrease of approximately 35% as compared with last year. Excluding the
effect of income (on brokerage and corporate finance businesses) arising from the listing of our parent company, Guotai
Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2611.HK/601211.SS) in 2017, the Profit Attributable to Shareholders decreased by
20% year-on-year.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board") recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.020 per share
of the Company (“Share(s)") for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: a final dividend of HK$0.045 per Share), subject
to the approval by Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company ("AGM"). Together with the interim dividend
of HK$0.033 per Share which was paid on 26 September 2018, the total dividends for the year ended 31 December 2018
will amount to HK$0.053 per Share (2017: HK$0.090).

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report



Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue Breakdown

For the year ended 31 December

2018 2017
HK$'000 % HK$'000

Fee and commission income

- brokerage 454,962 15.1% 517,118 16.5%

- corporate finance 594,970 19.7% 683,526 21.8%

- asset management 16,716 0.6% 29,792 1.0%
Income from loans and financing 1,307,294 43.4% 1,288,777 41.1%
Gain from financial products, market making and

investments 638,266 21.2% 613,180 19.6%
Total 3,012,208 100.0% 3,132,393 100.0%

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$3.01 billion (2017: HK$3.13
billion), lowered by approximately 4% as compared with last year. Among the total revenue, loans and financing business,
financial products, market making and investments business as well as corporate finance business contributed approximately
43%, 21% and 200%, respectively. Despite the market fluctuations, income from the Group's financial products and debt
capital market businesses continued to grow rapidly and recorded the historic high, rising by 111% year-on-year to HK$640
million and 38% year-on-year to HK$480 million respectively. Excluding the effect of income (on brokerage and corporate
finance businesses) arising from the listing of our parent company in 2017, the overall revenue of the Group increased by
approximately 5% year-on-year during the year under review, still maintaining a steady growth in the fluctuating market.

Brokerage Business

For the year ended 31 December

2018 2017
HK$'000 % HK$'000
Securities 366,654 80.6% 430,129 83.2%
Futures and options 28,488 6.3% 25,095 4.8%
Handling income 49,803 10.9% 47,966 9.3%
Insurance 7,658 1.7% 11,185 2.2%
Leveraged foreign exchange 2,359 0.5% 2,743 0.5%
Total 454,962 100.0% 517,118 100.0%

Total (excluding income arising from the listing
of our parent company in 2017) 454,962 - 421,358 —
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In 2018, the Group's brokerage business recorded a revenue of approximately HK$450 million (2017: approximately HK$520
million). Excluding the effect of income arising from the listing of our parent company in 2017, brokerage income increased
by 8% year-on-year.

The Hong Kong stock market experienced significant fluctuations during the year under review as Hang Seng Index was
decreased by 14% year-on-year. However, our competitive financial products and advanced services and platform such as
the "Jun Hong Wealth Management Club" (3,81 = B I2(R44E]) and the upgraded mobile trading platform "Tradego” (325
) attracted many high-quality customers. During the year, the number of professional investors ("PI", i.e. customers with
investible assets of over US$1 million) of the Company increased steadily by approximately 40% year-on-year.

During the year under review, excluding the effect of income arising from the listing of our parent company in 2017,
securities brokerage commission income increased by 10% year-on-year to approximately HK$370 million, of which 76%
of brokerage commissions arising from transactions conducted through the online trading system and 72% of brokerage
commissions arising from individual investors.

The stock market fluctuations led to an increase in trading volumes of futures and options. During the year under review,
income arising from futures and options brokerage commission increased by 14% to approximately HK$28.5 million (2017:

approximately HK$25.1 million).

Corporate Finance

For the year ended 31 December

2018 2017
HK$'000 % HK$'000

Placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting

commissions

- debt capital markets 483,303 81.2% 350,269 51.3%

- equity capital markets 78,219 13.2% 244,920 35.8%
Consultancy and financial advisory fees 33,448 5.6% 88,337 12.9%
Total 594,970 100.0% 683,526 100.0%

Total (excluding income arising from the listing
of our parent company in 2017) 594,970 - 507,222 —
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Debt capital market

During the year under review, despite the market adjustments, the income arising from the Group's debt capital market
business still increased by 38% year-on-year to approximately HK$480 million (2017: approximately HK$350 million). Our
debt securities underwriting team has participated in a total of 142 debt issuance activities throughout the year (2017: 101
debt issuances). Although the scale of the issuance of the Asian (ex-Japan) G3 Currency Market decreased by approximately
20% year-on-year, the Group successfully assisted corporations raising fund of nearly HK$319.72 billion in the bond market
during the year, up 28% year-on-year. We continued to maintain the leading position in Chinese US dollar-denominated
bond issuance market, during the year under review, we ranked second in the Asia (ex-Japan) G3 Currency Corporate
High-Yield Bond Underwritten League (ZEMiblE (BREA) GIEME M E SUWaEFHFFIEBEITEE) in terms of number and
amount underwritten.

Equity capital market

During the year under review, the Group's income derived from equity capital market decreased by 68% year-on-year to
approximately HK$80 million (2017: approximately HK$240 million). The decrease was due to the high income base caused
by the listing of our parent company in 2017 and the adjustment of our business strategies in 2018 by gradually shifting
our focus to medium and large-size enterprise clients. In 2018, the Group's equity capital market team completed 18 equity
financing projects, including the Bank of Gansu Co., Ltd. (2139.HK), which ranked top ten in terms of capital raised, and
the Xiaomi Corporation (1810.HK), which was the largest private enterprise listing project recorded in Hong Kong.

Loans and Financing

For the year ended 31 December

2018 2017
HK$'000 % HK$'000
Margin loans 779,207 59.6% 968,661 75.1%
Banks and others 293,302 22.4% 173,878 13.5%
Term loans 137,946 10.6% 107,035 8.3%
Securities borrowing and lending 56,410 4.3% 21,545 1.7%
I[PO loans 10,430 0.8% 12,314 1.0%
Reverse repurchase agreements 29,999 2.3% 5,344 0.4%
Total : 1,307,294 100.0% 1,288,777 100.0%

In 2018, the Group's overall income arising from loans and financing business increased by 1% to approximately HK$1,310
million (2017: approximately HK$1,290 million). Among which, apart from the decrease of interest income of margin financing
as expected, the income from majority of the other financing products increased significantly year-on-year.

During the year under review, the Group continued its effort to adjust the proportion of margin financing with small
and medium-cap stocks as collateral, and due to the continuous fluctuation of the Hong Kong stock market, some of our
customers' demand for financing diminished, resulting in 20% decrease in margin loan financing interest year-on-year to
HK$780 million. The management considered that the decline in margin financing income was within expectation.
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During the year under review, the stability of our overall income was further strengthened by the Company's diversified
financing products. Interest income arising from term loans and securities borrowing and lending business increased
significantly year-on-year. Since the demand of customers grew steadily, interest income from the Group's term loans
increased by 29% to approximately HK$140 million (2017: approximately HK$110 million). At the same time, the fluctuation of
the financial market accelerated customers' securities borrowing and short selling activities, interest income from securities
borrowing and lending business increased by 162% year-on-year to approximately HK$60 million (2017: approximately
HK$20 million). With the increase of bank interest rate during the year under review, interest income from banks and others
increased correspondingly by 69% to HK$290 million.

Financial Products, Market Making and Investments

During the year under review, overall income derived from the Group's financial products, market making and investments
increased by 4% year-on-year to approximately HK$640 million (2017: approximately HK$610 million).

During the vyear, our financial products business achieved another historic breakthrough, with interest and handling fee
income increased by 111% year-on-year to HK$640 million (2017: approximately HK$300 million). Leveraging on its leading
credit ratings as well as well-established cooperation with major international financial institutions, the Group continued
to refine its product competitiveness so as to broaden its customer coverage. In view of Chinese enterprises’ investment
and financing needs in overseas countries, the Group made every effort to provide diversified and tailor-made financial
products for corporations, institutions and high-net-worth clients.

During the year under review, due to fluctuations of the global financial markets, the Group's market-making income was
approximately HK$50 million (2017: approximately HK$160 million), while the Group's investment recorded a loss of HK$50
million (2017: profit of approximately HK$140 million).

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's total assets increased by 19% to approximately HK$88,030 million (2017: approximately
HK$73,960 million) and the Group's total liabilities increased by 22% to HK$76,520 million (2017: approximately HK$62,970
million).

The equity attributable to Shareholders of ordinary Shares increased by 26% to approximately HK$10,830 million as at

31 December 2018 (2017: approximately HK$8,610 million). The leverage ratio (defined as total assets less accounts payable
to clients divided by total equity) was 6.36 times as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 5.53 times).
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2018, the current assets of the Group increased by 16% to HK$85,090 million (2017: HK$73,380 million).
As at 31 December 2018, the Group's current ratio was 1.11 times (2017: 1.17 times) and gearing ratio (defined as the sum
of bank borrowings and debt securities in issue at amortised cost divided by total equity) was 1.40 times (2017: 1.79 times).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had a net cash inflow of HK$1,890 million (2017: HK$250 million). As
at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank balance of HK$4,110 million (2017: HK$2,210 million), and outstanding bank
borrowings of HK$9,440 million (2017: HK$13,780 million).

On 6 February 2018, the Company allotted and issued 700,000,000 ordinary Shares at a subscription price of HK$2.85 per
Share, resulting in additional share capital of approximately HK$1,990 million, being the proceeds of the above-mentioned
ordinary Shares issuance less issuing expenses of HK$8.1 million.

The Company through its subsidiary maintained a US$5 billion Guaranteed Structured Note Programme under which
unlisted notes denominated in a currency determined by the issuer may be issued from time to time. On 3 July 2018, the
Company also successfully renewed the Medium Term Note Programme of up to HK$15 billion (or the equivalent in other
currencies at the date of issue), pursuant to which both listed and unlisted notes may be issued. The structured notes and
the medium term notes issued as at 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$19.28 billion (2017: HK$10.48 billion) and HK$6.72
billion (2017: HK$5.89 billion), respectively.

Taking into account the un-utilized facilities obtained from various financial institutions and a sufficient un-issued portion
of the abovementioned note programmes, we believe the Group's operating cash flow is adequate and sufficient to finance
our recurring working capital requirements and to meet any investment opportunities that may arise in the near future.

The Group monitors its capital structure from time to time to ensure the compliance of the capital requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N) for its licensed subsidiaries and to support the development
of new business. All licensed corporations within the Group have complied with their respective liquid capital requirements
during the year and up to the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other equity or debt instruments issued by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant Investments

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not made any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies. As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not hold any significant investments.

Charges on the Group's Assets

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Operating Lease Commitments, Capital Commitments, Other Commitments and Contingent
Liabilities

Details of operating lease commitments, capital commitments and other commitments of the Group are set out in note 36
to the financial statements. The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018.

Prospects

In 2019, the Group will come across many development opportunities. We expect improvements to the Sino-US trade
condition and more relaxed monetary policies from the central bank of the major countries around the world as compared
to 2018. The US' sluggish economic growth and the US Federal Reserve's slower pace of interest rate hike will lead to decline
in the exchange rate of US dollar and the yield of US dollar-denominated bonds. After a sharp adjustment in asset prices in
emerging markets in 2018, it is expected that the value of investment will go up and drive the repatriation of funds from
Europe and the US. China is expected to boost its economy by further cutting the reserve requirement ratio and tax and
increasing investment in infrastructure, the scale of corporate financing will be recovered gradually and the risk appetite
of investors will be improved to certain extent, resulting in a stable GDP growth. Policies and ancillary measures on the
development of the Greater Bay Area will be introduced and implemented step-by-step and the construction projects under
the "One Belt, One Road" initiative are also anticipated to achieve a further progress. Thereby, demands for cross-border
investment and financing will be boosted greatly, which will bring us with important development opportunities.

In 2019, the Group will fully grasp the opportunities for business development brought by the Chinese government's
efforts on the supply-and-demand reform of the financial industry, increment of direct financing, relaxation measures for
releasing financing difficulties of private enterprises, etc.. By leveraging the brand influence of "Guotai Junan” and years
of experience in cross-border financial services, we will continue to strengthen our corporate finance business, expand our
wealth management business and improve our credit business. With the aid of innovative technology, we are fully committed
to become an integrated financial service provider and a global leading investment bank with strong competitiveness. The
Group will always adhere to its customer-oriented principle and will, upon the satisfaction of customers' demand, aim
for higher-level of customer service and relationship management. We will provide differentiated, diversified, customized
financial products and all-round, high-quality professional financial services, establishing long-term partnership with
customers and grow stronger with them. On product side, the Group will substantially enhance its financial product lines
in terms of quality and quantity to serve diversified customer needs. On sales side, we will continue to build our sales
team, expand sales channels and enhance cross-selling activities. On customer side, the Group will strengthen its precise
marketing activities and explore the investment and financing demands from potential customers by initiating an "Account
Re-activation Program", so as to further strengthen our customer base.
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For debt securities business, we expect that domestic corporate demand for overseas debt financing will rise sharply in
2019 and investors' demand for the US dollar-denominated bonds will remain strong. With our leading position among the
Chinese firms in US dollar-denominated bonds issuance business in Hong Kong, the Group has its strength to seize the
opportunities from the financing cycle of the debt market and further expand its debt underwriting business. As high-net-
worth clients pay closer attention to the bond market, it is expected that the growth of the debt underwriting business
will boost the trading volume of related products, thereby fueling the rapid growth of wealth management income.

The Group has been rated with "Baa2" and "BBB+" by the global credit rating agencies Moody's and Standard & Poor's
respectively, which are the highest credit rating among the Chinese financial institutions in Hong Kong. In 2019, we will
keep up with the efforts and maintain a strong and steady operation. We will continue to optimize our pioneer and
comprehensive risk management system to strengthen risk control, further deepen the business cooperation with major
international financial institutions with a view to actively exploring and developing diversified financing channels, maintain
our advantage of lower funding cost, leverage on our key competitive strengths and fully grasp market opportunities, so
as to strengthen our leading position in the industry. Qur core objective is to increase risk adjusted return on capital and
reward our clients and investors for their long-term support with a steady, sustained and high compound growth.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

Staff is an integral part of the success of the Company. Competitive remuneration packages are offered to employees
by reference to prevailing market rate and individual merits. As at 31 December 2018, we had 488 employees in total
(excluding our self-employed account executives). Salaries are reviewed on an annual basis and discretionary bonus is paid
on an annual basis with reference to the Group's performance and individual performance. Share options and Share award
have been granted to the directors of the Company (the "Directors") and employees in recognition and acknowledgement
of their contribution made or to be made to the Group. Other benefits offered by the Group include mandatory provident
fund scheme and medical and dental insurance. Details of the remuneration of employees are set out in note 6 to the
financial statements in this report.
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Risk Management

The Group believes that risk management capabilities are essential to its core competitiveness as a financial services
provider. Given our business diversification in recent years, the Group is exposed to growing types of risk, including credit
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, strategic risk, concentration risk, legal and compliance risk, reputational
risk and unknown risk. The Company attaches an equally high degree of importance to the prevention, management and
handling of risks in all aspects.

Our Company has established a multi-level risk management organizational structure in accordance with business
development. The Board is the top level of risk management organizational structure and is responsible for overseeing the
firm-wide risk framework and risk management policy. The Board has established and delegated the Risk Committee to
facilitate the enforcement of risk framework, review and approve the Group's risk management strategies, risk appetite, risk
tolerance and important risk limits. The Company sets top-down risk limits system covering various business financial risks
to reflect the company's different level of authorization, risk appetite and risk tolerance. The management-tier committees,
such as the Risk Management Committee, the Asset Liability and Investment Committee ("ALCO") and the Credit Committee,
shall report to the Risk Committee on all potential material risks that identified, changes and the respective risk mitigation
actions taken to enhance the risk management process. The Risk Committee holds meeting at least twice each year to
review the effectiveness of the overall risk management structure and policies and material risk issues. The management will,
when necessary, report to the Board at any time on the material risk matters which may affect the Group's performance.
The Risk Management Department is the key department for independent risk management and responsible for identifying,
assessing, monitoring and reporting risks in the business activities of our Company. Risk Management Department measures
and quantifies the business risks through the risk management systems and internal risk measurement models, including
the value at risk (VaR), stress testing, sensitivity analysis, internal rating.
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Credit Risk

There is credit risk when the Group commits to, or enters into, an agreement with any borrower or counterparty.

The Group manages credit risk by conducting risk assessment on any borrower or counterparty, which may include assessing
their repayment sources, underlying collaterals, and the expected impact of current and future economy on the borrower
or counterparty.

The Risk Committee has designated ALCO to set the total loan and credit limits and approving significant transactions,
whereas the Credit Committee to oversee the margin financing business and the Risk Management Committee to provide
independent supervision of all credit risk metrics and limits.

The Risk Management Department is responsible for formulating credit risk policies, designing risk metrics, setting key risk
thresholds, approving credit transactions, and performing independent risk monitoring and limit management. The Risk
Management Department assesses the key credit risk exposure under both normal and stress scenarios, and manages credit
risk by establishing and monitoring loan exposure/credit limits, internal credit ratings and the hierarchical approval system
reflects the different level of authorization and reporting mechanisms from top to bottom.

Should borrowers and counterparties fail to fulfill their obligations, the Group would take immediate action to reduce losses.
Detailed procedures for recovery of losses are set forth in each business department's operational manual. Where losses
are unlikely to be recovered and provisions for impairment of expected losses are required pursuant to relevant accounting
standards, such provisions for impairment would be set out in the financial statements of the Group.

Debt Securities Credit Rating
The carrying amounts of debt securities at the end of the reporting period are categorised by rating distribution as follows:

As at 2018

Financial assets held for trading — debt securities December 31
HKD'000

AAA to A- 15% 2,032,451
BBB+ to BBB- 269% 3,572,389
BB+ to BB- 29% 3,974,326
B+ and below 14% 2,015,979
No Rating 16% 2,197,289
Total 100% 13,792,434
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Note:

a) The Group refers the credit ratings of its debt securities to the credit ratings of the debt securities or the debt issuers granted by Moody's,
Standard & Poor's and Fitch rating agencies.

b) The bond rating is chosen as the lowest of the ratings granted by Moody's, Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings (if any); “No Rating" is
recorded when no rating has been granted by any of the three agencies. Of which, "AAA to A-" represents products with ratings of Aaa~A3
by Moody's, AAA~A- by Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings; "BBB+ to BBB-" represents products with ratings of Baal~Baa3 by Moody's,
BBB+~BBB- by Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings; "BB+ to BB-" represents products with ratings of Bal~Ba3 by Moody's, BB+~BB- by
Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings; "B+ and below" represents products with ratings of B1 and below by Moody's and B+ and below by
Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings.

c) The aggregate credit ratings of debt securities investment portfolio included listed and unlisted debt investments.

Margin and Term Loans Credit Rating
Please refer to note 16 to the financial statements in this report for details of margin and term loans analysis by the
Group's internal rating and the total value of securities pledged as collateral in respect of the margin loans.

Market Risk

The Group is exposed to market risk, which refers to the risk on the changes of fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument due to market price fluctuations. Market risk is originated from open positions which are exposed to
the volatility of general and specific market movements such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and securities prices.

In response to this risk, the Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the overall risk management
strategies, risk appetite, risk tolerance, important risk limits and the risk management policy of our Company. The Company
sets appropriate risk limits based on the nature of different businesses, such as transaction limits, VaR limits, concentration
limits, sensitivity limits and stop loss limits. The Risk Management Department is responsible for day-to-day identification,
measurement, monitoring, control the overall market risk, and report to the Risk Management Committee and Risk Committee
on a regular basis. The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and controlling the market risk which is
originated from the ordinary and usual course of business. Stress tests are conducted on a regular and case by case basis.
The Group's interest rate risk mainly sources from the volatility of fair value of financial instruments held by the Group
which are sensitive to the interest rate risk, resulting from market interest rate negative fluctuation. Other price risk is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of change in market price.
The Group adopts sensitivity analysis to measure the interest rate risk and other price risk. Please refer to note 42 to the
financial statements in this report for details of interest rate sensitivity and price sensitivity analysis.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk refers to losses resulting from inadequate or ineffective internal processes, personnels and systems, or from
other events. Since operational risk is embodied in every activities within the Group, the Group relies on all employees to
maintain an effective internal control environment and manage operational risk within their respective roles. Operational
risk must be managed by all employees as part of our day-to-day activities.

The Risk Management Committee, the management-tier committee, is responsible of defining the group-wide operational
risk strategy, approving and periodically reviewing the corporate Operational Risk Management Framework, and ensuring
the operational risks are managed properly. Each business line and supporting function is responsible of identifying,
assessing, monitoring, controlling, mitigating, reporting and escalating operational risks specific to its business, products
and activities under the Group's Operational Risk Framework. The Risk Management Department assists the management
in discharging their responsibilities for understanding and managing operational risk and ensuring the development and
consistent application of operational risk policies, processes and procedures throughout the Group.

Liquidity Risk

The Group considers that liquidity risk is originated from the Company's inability to meet contractual or contingent financial
obligations when they fall due. Such risk also involves all operations and activities. Hence, ALCO is designated to oversee
liquidity risk and the Risk Management Department, Finance Department and Treasury Department are designated to perform
daily monitoring and control of liquidity position.

The primary objective of risk management is to ensure that the Group can meet all contractual and contingent financial
obligations. The Group has asset and liability management measures in place in managing its liquidity through its diversified
sources of funding (both short-term and long-term), such as bank loans, perpetual securities issuance, rights issue, placement,
and medium term note program, etc.. The Group's licensed subsidiaries are subject to specific statutory liquidity requirements
as prescribed in the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap.571N of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group
has put in place a monitoring system to ensure that it maintains sufficient liquidity to fund its financial obligations. As
a safeguard measure, the Group has also maintained stand-by banking facilities to meet any emergent operational needs.

Please refer to note 42 to the financial statements in this report for details of the maturity profile of the Group's financial
liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash flows.
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Legal and Compliance Risks
Legal risk includes the financial and reputational impacts on the Company which is originated from (1) defective contracts,
documents or deal structures which may lead to contractual or legal claims against the Group; (2) the inability or failure
to manage litigation or other dispute proceedings effectively; and (3) legal consequences of compliance risk. This risk may
also be caused by change of laws.

Compliance risk refers to the risk of impairment of our integrity. It is originated from failure to comply with our values
and compliance risk-related laws, regulations and standards relating to specific financial services provided by the business
units, which may damage our reputation and lead to legal or regulatory sanctions and/or financial losses.

The Group manages legal and compliance risks through a comprehensive set of control systems and procedures to deal
with external and internal risks. Business and operational departments are responsible for proactive identification and
management of legal and compliance risks within the Group. Legal Department and Compliance Department are responsible
for setting policies and procedures for the Company and providing independent supervision on and guidance to business
departments. The Risk Committee is the primary body to oversee the legal and compliance risks, while Legal Department
and Compliance Departments prepare reports on key risks reqularly for the Risk Committee's and the Board's review.

Concentration Risk

Concentrations may arise with respect to specific exposures, industries, countries, geographic regions, products, asset
classes, and any other category that within the Group's definition of concentration risk (such as tenor, currency, funding
source or issuer). The Group manages concentration risk across all business lines, including brokerage, margin financing,
financial products, corporate finance, asset management, and sales and trading.

The Risk Management Department monitors the key and relevant concentration risk regularly and reports the material ones

to the Risk Committee. Risk appetite and tolerance are set for relevant and material concentrations and concentration risk
is identified, measured, monitored and controlled continuously and effectively.
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Strategic Risk

Strategic risk refers to factors which may affect the development direction, corporate culture, competitiveness or corporate
efficiency of an enterprise as a whole. Such risk is embedded in every operating unit while other key types of risk may also
affect strategic risk. We manage strategic risk by the following principles: (1) proactively consider strategic risk during the
strategic planning process; (2) set strategies within the context of our overall risk appetite; and (3) monitor the performance
of our strategic plan and analyses the yearly progress.

Our strategic plan, capital plan, financial operating plan and risk appetite are reviewed and approved annually by the Board.
Major strategic actions, such as capital activities, material acquisitions and disposals must be reviewed and approved by
the Board.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk refers to negative public opinions or comments in relation to the Company's operations, management
and other behaviors or external events, which cause/may cause damage of, and have adverse impact on, the Company's
reputation and brand image ultimately.

The Group will continue to proactively optimize its policies, systems and process of reputational risk management by adhering
to the principles of comprehensiveness, transparency, prospective and effectiveness. By inclusion of reputational risk
management into its comprehensive risk management system, the Company ensures preventive approach and contingency
plan of reputational risk are in place. The Company applies accurate identification, prudent assessment, dynamic monitoring,
promptly response and fully control on reputational risk in terms of management and operations, with an aim to prevent
any incidents that may affect the reputation of the Company.

Unknown Risk

Unknown risk refers to a situation where we are unable to identify or not even aware of certain risks which we are exposed
to. Such risks are generally referred to as "unknown unknowns” and the Company requires to continuously review and
examine its risk identification and assessment ability, and cultivate a robust risk culture (i.e. managing risk is everyone's
duties) and encourage discussions and recommendations on risk management.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. The Board strongly believes that good corporate
governance is essential for effective management, a healthy corporate
culture, sustainable business growth and enhancing Shareholders'
value. The Company adopted all principles and code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 (the “CG Code") to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules") on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) as
its own code of corporate governance. Throughout the year 2018, the
Company has complied with all principles and code provisions of the
CG Code, except for code provision A.2.1, details of which are set out
in the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer" in this
Corporate Governance Report.

Looking ahead, we will keep our corporate governance practices under
continual review to ensure consistent application, make updates and
improvements following the developments of the CG Code.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive directors (the "Executive
Director(s)”), being Dr. YIM Fung (“Chairman"), Mr. WONG Tung Ching,
Ms. QI Haiying, Mr. LI Guangjie, two non-executive directors (the "Non-
executive Director(s)"), being Dr. XIE Lebin and Mr. LIU Yiyong and four
independent non-executive directors (the "Independent Non-executive
Director(s)"), being Dr. FU Tingmei, Dr. SONG Ming, Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung
and Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer. There is a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) with a strong independent element on the Board,
non-executive Directors constitute more than half of the Board and
independent non-executive Directors constitute not less than one-third.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director a confirmation of his independence pursuant to the criterion
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other. Brief biographical
particulars of the Directors are set out from page 102 to 105 of this
annual report.

ELDEE
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Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board, under the leadership of Chairman, is accountable to Shareholders and the Company as a whole, and primarily
responsible for formulating overall strategic plans and key policies of the Group, supervising business and financial
performance, and ensuring effective corporate governance practices with appropriate risk and control measures in place so as
to enhance Shareholders' value. The Board has delegated certain of the functions to its committees, namely Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Risk Committee, while the duties of managing daily operations of
the Group are vested in Executive Directors and senior management. Matters such as approval of financial statements,
declaration of dividend, capital restructure and issuance of securities, merger and acquisitions, major investments, connected
transactions, appointment and removal of directors and auditors, remuneration of directors and senior management, etc.
are specifically reserved to the Board.

The Company has arranged Directors' & Officers’ Liability Insurance for its directors and officers in respect of legal
proceedings and other claims against them arising from their office and execution of their powers, duties and responsibilities.
The directors and officers shall not be indemnified where there is any negligence, fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust
proven against them.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All Directors, including Non-executive Directors, have a specific term of appointment which is not more than three years.
Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement or a letter of appointment with the Company and shall be subject
to retirement by rotation for re-election at the AGM at least once every three years. In accordance with the articles of
association of the Company (“Articles of Association"), one-third of the Directors (if the number is not three or a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office at each AGM and be eligible for re-election by
Shareholders. The retiring Directors should be those who have been the longest in the office since their last re-election.
In addition, any Director appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold the office only
until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election by Shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. YIM Fung has been performing both of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since
24 August 2012. Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The Directors believe that Dr. YIM can provide strong and
consistent leadership in the development and execution of the Group's business strategies which is beneficial to the Group.
Notwithstanding the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are vested in the same individual, all major decisions
are either made by the Board or in consultation with the Board and the senior management of the Company. As there are
four Independent Non-executive Directors in the Board, the Directors consider that there is sufficient balance of power
and the current arrangement maintains a competitive position of the Company.

Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four times a year and at about quarterly interval. Notice of at least 14 days is given for a regular
Board meeting so as to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Agenda accompanying board papers are circulated to
all Directors normally a week before the meeting and in any event not less than 3 days before the meeting. Draft and final
version of minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to Directors for their comment and record respectively.

All Board members have separate and independent access to management, and are provided with full and timely information
about the Group for them to perform their duties and responsibilities. Besides, all Board members are provided with monthly
management updates and accounts which contain periodic financials with summaries of key events, outlook and business
related matters of the Group. All Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice on performing their duties
at the Company's expense.
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Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings
The number of meetings of the Board, its committees and general meetings held in 2018 and the attendance record of
each Director at the meetings is set out below:

Audit Nomination Remuneration {1 Annual Extraordinary
Board Committee = Committee Committee Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting  Meeting Meeting
No. of meetings held 4 3 2 2 2 1 1
Executive Directors
Dr. YIM Fung 4/4 - 2/[2 - 2/[2 11 1
Mr. WONG Tung Ching 4/4 - - - - 11 1
Ms. QI Haiying 4/4 - - - 2/[2 11 1
Mr. LI Guangjie 4/4 - - - - 11 1
Non-executive Directors
Dr. XIE Lebin 44 - - 2/2 - 11 11
Mr. LIU Yiyong 4/4 - - - 2/[2 11 1
Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei 4/4 3/3 - 2/[2 2/[2 11 1
Dr. SONG Ming 3[4 3/3 2/[2 2/2 1/2 0/1 11
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung 4/4 3/3 2/[2 2/[2 2/[2 11 1
Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer Note 2/[2 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0

Note: Professor CHAN was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 22 August 2018 and nominated as a member of Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Risk Committee on 14 December 2018 respectively.

In addition to the above-mentioned meetings, the Chairman of the Board also had a meeting with the Non-executive
Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors without Executive Directors present.

Directors' Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a comprehensive and tailored induction training which covers, among others,
information about the Group's operations and business, the roles and responsibilities of the Board and its key Committees,
the Company's governance structure and practices, and relevant rules and regulations. On an ongoing basis, all Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company also updates the Directors from time to time on the development of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws,
rules and regulations, news on corporate governance issues and development trend of corporate governance, in order to
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. During the year, the Company has arranged an in-house
training for the Directors covering the topics of recent reqgulatory trend and approaches in relation to directors' duties and
responsibilities and Listing Rules updates.
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A summary of the training record received from each Director for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Name of Director

Executive Directors

Dr. YIM Fung

Mr. WONG Tung Ching

Ms. QI Haiying

Mr. LI Guangjie

Non-executive Directors

Dr. XIE Lebin

Mr. LIU Yiyong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer

Type of training
Attending seminars/

Reading  workshops/forums/
materials conferences @

v v
v v
v v
v v
v v
v v
v v
v v
v v
v v

Notes:
M Reading materials relevant to the industry, regulatory updates and monthly management reports. etc.
2) Attending seminars/workshops/forums/conferences relevant to the industry, business and directors’ duties.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for, and has reviewed and performed during the year, the corporate governance duties, including:

(a) to develop and review the Company's policies and practice on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practice on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual which applicable to employees and

Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this report.
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Board Committees

Under the Board, there are four board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Risk Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms
of reference.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four Directors, including one Executive Director, being Dr. YIM Fung and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, being Dr. SONG Ming (chairman), Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and Professor CHAN Ka
Keung Ceajer.

Under its terms of reference, which has been amended on 14 December 2018, the duties of the Nomination Committee
include, but not limited to, setting out the nomination procedures and the process and criteria to select and recommend
candidates for directorship, reviewing the structure and size and composition of the Board, assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors, and making recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships. The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on website of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out in the paragraph headed "Attendance
Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings" of this report.

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee during the vyear included, among other things, made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer as an Independent Non-executive
Director. The Nomination Committee had taken into account a number of factors including size and composition of the Board,
a balance of skills and experience of the Board as well as its diversity in setting its appointment criteria. The Nomination
Committee also reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the amendments to its terms of reference and the
adoption of the nomination policy during the year.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the nomination policy on 14 December 2018. With a view to give an adequate consideration on a
balanced composition of the Board, the policy sets out the ways to identify potential candidates, selection criteria, selection
process and appointment or re-appointment procedures with regard to the nomination and appointment of directors. The
selection criteria in assessing the suitability of potential candidates includes, but not limited to, their professionalism and
personal ethics, board experience, expertise, time commitment, measurable objectives set out in the board diversity policy.
The Nomination Committee may use any process it considers appropriate for evaluating and shortlisting candidates, which
may include, personal interviews, background checks, written submission by the candidates and third party references. The
selection process for each of their appointments shall be evaluated using a substantially similar process and shall be fair
and transparent. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing this policy to ensure the effectiveness of this policy.
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Board Diversity

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy, which is available on the Company's website. The Company recognises the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving a sustainable and
balanced development, the Company seeks to achieve board diversity with number of aspects includes, but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All Board appointments shall be based on meritocracy, and candidates shall be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing this policy
to ensure the effectiveness of this policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Committee comprises five Directors, including four Independent Non-executive Directors, being Dr. FU Tingmei
(chairman), Dr. SONG Ming, Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung, Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer and one Non-executive Director, being
Dr. XIE Lebin.

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration package of individual executive directors and senior management according to the terms
of its terms of reference. Under its terms of reference, which has been amended on 18 March 2019, the duties of the
Remuneration Committee also include, but not limited to, making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
matters for non-executive directors, setting up of formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. The
full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

No Director or any of his/her associates is allowed to determine his/her own remuneration. In determining the remuneration
of Executive Directors and senior management, the Remuneration Committee shall consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and their responsibilities, employment conditions, desirability of performance-

based remuneration and the performance of the Company as well as the individual Executive Director or senior management.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set out in the paragraph headed "Attendance
Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings" of this report.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year included:
(a) reviewed and approved the proposal for 2018 remuneration of Executive Directors and senior management;
(b)  made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors;

(c)  reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the granting of share options to Executive Directors and employees;
and

(d)  reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the directors’ fee of Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer as an
Independent Non-executive Director.

The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration Bands Number of individuals

HK$10,000,000 or below 3
HK$10,000,001 to HK$15,000,000 2

The particulars regarding Directors' and chief executives' emoluments are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung (chairman), Dr.
FU Tingmei, Dr. SONG Ming and Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer, all of them are equipped with commercial and financial
skills and experiences required for understanding of accounting information. The Chairman of the Audit Committee has
professional accounting qualification.

Under its terms of reference, which has been amended on 22 August 2018, the duties of the Audit Committee include, but
not limited to, making recommendations on the appointment of external auditor and monitoring the independence and
objectivity of external audit, overseeing the integrity of financial information and financial reporting system, supervising the
internal control system and internal audit functions and ensuring such functions are adequately resources. The full terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are available on website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in the paragraph headed "Attendance Record
at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings" of this report.

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year included:

(a) reviewed the 2017 annual results (including annual financial statements, annual report and final results announcement)
and 2018 interim results (including interim financial statements, interim report and interim results announcement)
and recommended the same to the Board for approval,

(b)  reviewed reports submitted by external auditor on their statutory audit of the 2017 annual financial statements and
their review of the 2018 interim financial statements, and made recommendations on the control matters in relation
to accounting, internal audit, financial reporting functions;

(c) reviewed the external auditor's statutory audit plan for 2018, reporting obligations and its engagement letters;

(d) reviewed the independence and objectivity of the external auditor, the scope and nature of audit and non-audit
services and related audit and non-audit fees;

(e) reviewed the representation letters submitted by each departments on effectiveness of internal control functions;

(f)  reviewed reports submitted by internal auditor on the efficiency of internal control system of the Group, including
the audit findings and recommendations, and the implementation status of related audit recommendations;

(g) reviewed the adequacy on staffing and resources of the internal audit functions and the internal audit plan for 2019;

(h)  reviewed the adequacy on staffing and resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the accounting and financial reporting function;

(i) reviewed the continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group and letter on continuing connected
transactions issued by the external auditor; and

() reviewed the amendments to its terms of reference.
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Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility of overseeing the Group's systems on risk management and internal control and
reviews their effectiveness through meetings of the Risk Committee and the Audit Committee at least twice a year and
at least three times a year respectively. To facilitate the effective and efficient operations and to ensure compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, the Group emphasizes the importance of a sound internal control system which is also
indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk exposures. The Group's system of internal control is designed to provide a
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives. The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing
basis by the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing reasonable assurance in relation to protection of
material assets and identification of business risks. The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and management
of risks associated with business activities and has implemented a practical and effective control system which includes a
defined management structure with limits of authority, a sound risk management system and periodic review of the Group's
performance by the Audit Committee and the Risk Committee of the Board.

Internal Audit

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays an important role in providing objective assurance to
the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated by management. The head of the internal audit
team directly reports to the Audit Committee on audit matters. By adopting a risk-based approach to evaluate risk level
on control environment, the internal audit team makes their audit schedules annually in consultation with, but independent
of, the management, and the audit plan is submitted to the Audit Committee for approval. The head of the internal audit
team shall periodically present audit reports and express opinion to the Audit Committee on the internal control of the
audit units. The annual audit work plan covers major activities and processes of the Group's operating business. Moreover,
special reviews shall be conducted on requested by the Audit Committee and management.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the internal audit
functions, and their training programmes and budget, and considered that the staffing is adequate and the staffs are
competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities, and the performance of the internal audit function for the year
under review was efficient.

External Auditor
During the year ended 31 December 2018, Ernst & Young was appointed as the external auditor of the Group. The
remuneration paid/payable to the external auditor is set out as follows:

Services rendered Fees paid/payable
HK$'000

Audit services 2,613
Interim review 760
Tax and other consultancy services 1,759
5,132
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Risk Committee

The Risk Committee comprises seven Directors, including two Executive Directors, being Dr. YIM Fung (chairman) and Ms.
Ql Haiying, and one Non-executive Director, being Mr. LIU Yiyong, and four Independent Non-executive Directors, being
Dr. FU Tingmei, Dr. SONG Ming, Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer.

Under its terms of reference, which has been amended on 14 December 2018, the duties of the Risk Committee include,
but not limited to, overseeing management in design, implementation and monitoring of risk management system and
ensuring it has an effective system, advising the Board on the Group's overall risk appetite and principles, approving the
Group's risk policies and risk tolerance, and reviewing major investigation findings on risk management matters as well as
significant risk control failing or weakness where identified.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Risk Committee is set out in the paragraph headed "Attendance Record at
Board meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings" of this report.

During the year, the Risk Committee has discussed with management to ensure that management has performed its duty
to have effective risk management system, including the changes, since last review, the nature and extent of significant
risks faced by the Group and its ability to respond to the changes.

Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility of evaluating and determining the risk appetite and risk tolerance that the Group
is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives, maintaining a sound risk management system and reviewing its
effectiveness on regular basis.

The Risk Committee has approved the risk framework of the Group, which sets out the risk culture and governance, defining
the risk appetite and risk limit, key risk types and overall risk management process. The risk framework serves as an outline
of the Group's overall risk management system and process, which facilitates the Board to identify and assess the nature
and extent of significant risks, the Group's ability to respond to changes in its business and the external environment, as
well as the scope and quality of management's ongoing risk monitoring and related internal control measures.

The Group's risk management framework is embodied by the two-tier system, the Risk Committee, which delegated by the
Board, being the first-tier level, whereas the Risk Management Committee, the Asset Liability and Investment Committee
and the Credit Committee, composed of management members from frontline and internal control functions, being the
second-tier level, who shall report to the Risk Committee through the Chief Risk Officer on all significant risks, material
changes and the associated mitigating actions to enhance the accountability and quality of risk management process. For
details, please refer to the section headed "Risk Management Report” in this annual report.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control Effectiveness

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems through the Risk Committee twice a year and the Audit Committee three times a year
respectively, covering all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and is of the view
that the Group's risk management and internal control systems are effective and adequate to safeqguard the interests of
Shareholders and the Company as a whole.
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Whistleblowing

The Company has its internal complaint handling policy sets out in the compliance manual which provides employees with
reporting channels and guidance to raise concerns about possible improprieties in any matter related to the Company.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) ("SFO"), the Group has a policy on disclosure of inside information
with various procedures and measures, including arousing the awareness to preserve confidentiality of inside information
within the Group, sending blackout period and securities dealing restrictions notification to the Directors and relevant
employees, and disseminating information to specific persons on a need-to-know basis. In all cases, great care is taken to
ensure that no inside information is disclosed to selected outsiders.

Directors' Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model Code") sets out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. On specific
enquiry made by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code throughout the year of 2018.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Ms. FENG Zheng Yao Helen was appointed by the Board. She is an employee of the Company
and responsible for facilitating the Board's processes and communications among Board members, Shareholders and
management. She has confirmed her compliance with the requirements of at least 15 hours of relevant professional training
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year of 2018.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective communication with Shareholders and maintains an on-going dialogue
to ensure Shareholders are provided with timely information about the Company. Shareholders are encouraged to active
participation in communication with the Company and exercise their Shareholders' rights in an informed manner.

We also encourage two-way communications with both Shareholders and investors through WeChat, LinkedIn as well as
Facebook, while the Company's general meetings remain the most traditional platform for face-to-face communication
between the Board and Shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each motion at the general meetings.

The Company endeavors to disclose all material information to public in a timely manner. The Company maintains a
corporate website (www.gtjai.com) where important information about its activities such as annual and interim reports,
announcements, business development and operations, corporate governance practices and other information are available
for public's access. The Company has adopted its investor relations policy which sets out the communication methods to
facilitate its relationship with investors, media and the public.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report

99



100

Corporate Governance Report

Dividend Policy

The Company endeavors to reward Shareholders with stable dividend income whist retain adequate reserves for its future
development. We aim to distribute to Shareholders with regular dividends semi-annually with a certain percentage of net
profit after tax of the Group and may be supplemented by special dividends from special income. From 2015 to 2018,
the annual dividend payments amounted to 50% to 53% of net profit after tax of the Group, the Board considers that it
would be appropriate to target a payout ratio between 30% and 50%, and subject to the economic conditions as well as
the Company's position.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the constitutional documents of the Company during the year 2018.

Directors’ Responsibilities on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities of supervising the preparation of financial statements of each financial
period which shall consistently adopt suitable accounting policies and to comply with the accounting standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and to reflect the financial position, the results and cash flow of
the Company during the year in a true and fair manner.

Shareholders' Rights

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “C0O"), the Listing Rules, and the Articles of Association as amended from time to time, Shareholder(s)
may call general meeting, put forward proposals at AGM and direct enquiries to the Board in accordance with the following
procedures:

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the
Company may request the Directors to convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Section 566 to 568 of the CO.

In accordance with sections 566 of the CO, the Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has received
requests to do so from Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having
a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the
meeting; and may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Such requests may be sent to the Company and attention to the Board or the Company Secretary in hard copy form (by
depositing at the registered office of the Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central,
Hong Kong) or in electronic form (by fax: 2509-0030); and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. In
accordance with Section 567 of the CO, the Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the CO and such meeting must be held on a date not more than
28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.
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Putting Forward Proposals at AGM
To put forward a resolution at AGM, Shareholder(s) is/are requested to follow the requirements and procedures set out in
Section 615 and 616 of the CO.

Section 615 of the CO provides that the Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received requested to do so
from (a) the Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who have a right
to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate; or (b) at least 50 Shareholders who have the rights to
vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.

Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the Board or the Company Secretary in hard copy form
(oy depositing at the registered office of the Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road
Central, Hong Kong) or in electronic form (by fax: 2509-0030); (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d) must be received by the Company not later
than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM to which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting. Section 616 of the CO provides that the Company that is required under Section 615 of the CO to give notice of
a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company's own expense to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the
AGM (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable
after, it gives notice of the meeting.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director can be found on the website of the Company
at www.gtjai.com.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders' Enquiries to the Board

Enguiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary
at the contact details below:

Registered office: 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong
Email: comsec@gtjas.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2509-9118

Fax: (852) 2509-0030

Share Registration Related Matters
For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration, change of name or address, loss of share
certificates or dividend warrants, Shareholders can contact the Share Registrar, at the contact details below:

Name: Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Address: Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, No. 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2862-8555

Fax: (852) 2865-0990
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Dr. YIM Fung, JR aged 56, the Chairman of the Company since August 2012 and an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since March 2010. He was the vice-chairman of the Company during the period from March 2010
to August 2012. Dr. YIM is concurrently the chairman of the Risk Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Dr. YIM is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company, a director of Guotai Junan Holdings
Limited and Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, both are the controlling shareholders of the Company. Dr. YIM joined
the Group in 1993. He has over 27 years experience in the securities industry. Dr. YIM is a Senior Economist and holds a
doctorate degree in Economics from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences and a bachelor's degree
in Environmental Engineering from the Tsinghua University. Dr. YIM is currently an independent non-executive director of
Beijing Urban Construction Design & Development Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1599.HK) and Shenzhen International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 152.HK). At present, he is a member of the 13th National Committee of the Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference. In addition, he is also a member of the Election Committee of the Government of the
HKSAR, a deputy director of the International Strategy Committee of Securities Association of China, a member of HKTDC
Mainland Business Advisory Committee, the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association, the president
of Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce, the honorary life president of the Chinese Securities Association of Hong
Kong, a standing committee member of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, Hong Kong and a life president of
Tsinghua Alumni Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. WONG Tung Ching, aged 47, an Executive Director since March 2010 and the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since December 2013. He is responsible for overall business and management of corporate finance, equity capital
markets and institutional business of the Group. Mr. WONG is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. WONG joined the Group in 2000. He obtained a master's degree in Business Administration from the University of
Lincolnshire & Humberside (now known as the University of Lincoln) in 2001 and a higher diploma in International Trading
from the Shenzhen University in 1992.

Ms. QI Haiying, aged 37, an Executive Director and the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March 2015
and is responsible for the overall operation of the fixed income, currencies and commodities business, equity derivatives
business, asset management and Singapore business of the Group. In addition, Ms. Ql is concurrently a member of the Risk
Committee of the Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Between 2004 and 2012, Ms. Ql worked for
Shenzhen Supervision Bureau of the China Securities Regulatory Commission and was responsible for regulatory supervision
of securities companies and listed companies. In 2012, Ms. QI joined Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (stock code:
2611.HK; 601211.SS), the parent of the Company, and held the positions as deputy general manager in Compliance Department
and Strategic Management Department respectively and subsequently joined the Group in March 2015. Ms. QI holds a
master's degree in Financial Economics from the London School of Economics and Political Science (LSE) and a bachelor's
degree in International Economics and Trade from the University of International Business and Economics (UIBE) in China.
At present, Ms. Ql is a director and vice president of the Chinese Securities Association of Hong Kong Company Limited,
the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association Youth Committee, a member of the 3rd committee of
All-China Financial Youth Federation, a member of the Chinese Financial Association of Hong Kong, a committee member
of the Tianjin Youth Federation and a member of Shaanxi Overseas Friendship Association.

Mr. LI Guangjie, aged 50, an Executive Director since March 2010 and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since
December 2017. Mr. LI is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. LI joined the Group in 2001. Mr. LI
used to work for Shenzhen Jinpeng Certified Public Accountants as the deputy head of appraisal department. He has over
27 years experience in accounting, audit, taxation and asset appraisal. Mr. LI holds a master's degree in Economics from
the Central University of Finance and Economics and a bachelor's degree in Economics from the Shenzhen University. He is
an Economist and a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chinese Certified Tax Agents
Association.
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Non-executive Directors

Dr. XIE Lebin, aged 51, a Non-executive Director since June 2017. Dr. XIE is concurrently a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company. At present, Dr. XIE is also the chief risk officer, the chief financial officer and the general
manager of the Planning and Finance Department of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd (stock code: 2611.HK/601211.5S)("Guotai
Junan Securities"), the parent of the Company. Since 2012, he was also appointed as a director of Guotai Junan Innovation
Investment Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities. Dr. XIE used to work at the Investment Banking Department of
Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd. from 1993 to 1995 and served as an executive director of the Investment Banking Department
of J&A Securities Co., Ltd from 1995 to 1999, respectively. He held various positions at Guotai Junan Securities since 1999,
including as a deputy general manager of the Shanghai Investigation and Auditing Department, a deputy general manager,
an executive deputy general manager and the general manager of the Investigation and Auditing Headquarters and as the
deputy chief financial officer and the general manager of the Planning and Finance Department, respectively.

Dr. XIE obtained a doctorate degree and a master's degree in Economics from the East China Normal University in Shanghai
in 2010 and 1993 respectively, and a bachelor's degree in Economics from the Shanghai Fisheries University (currently known
as the Shanghai Ocean University) in 1990. Dr. XIE was accredited the International Certified Internal Auditors' Certificate
by the International Institute of Internal Auditors in 2009.

Mr. LIU Yiyong, aged 55, a Non-executive Director since June 2017. Mr. LIU is also a member of Risk Committee of the
Company. At present, Mr. LIU is the general manager of the Compliance Department of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd
(stock code: 2611.HK/601211.SS) (“Guotai Junan Securities"), the parent of the Company. Mr. LIU served as a senior staff
member of the Securities Supervisory Division of Shenzhen Branch of the People's Bank of China from 1994 to 1997, a
principal staff member of the Non-bank Financial Institutions Department of Shenzhen Branch of the People's Bank of
China from 1997 to 1998, a principal staff member of the Institutions Inspection Office of Shenzhen Supervision Bureau
of China Securities Regulatory Commission from 1998 to 2002, and a staff member of the Market Division Il of China
Foreign Exchange Trade System from 2006 to 2009, respectively. Since 2009, Mr. LIU held various positions at Guotai
Junan Securities, including a deputy general manager, an executive deputy general manager and the general manager of
the Compliance Department, respectively.

Mr. LIU studied in the Graduate School of the People's Bank of China from 1991 to 1994 and obtained a master's degree in
Economics. Mr. LIU subsequently obtained a master's degree in Public Administration from the Columbia University in 2003.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. FU Tingmei, aged 52, an Independent Non-executive Director since June 2010. Dr. FU is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee and Risk Committee of the Company. Dr. FU has
extensive experiences in investment, finance, law and business management. Between 1992 and 2003, he conducted many
corporate finance transactions in several investment banking firms based in Hong Kong, including serving as a director of
Peregrine Capital Limited, and a deputy managing director and subsequently a managing director of BNP Paribas Peregrine
Capital Limited. Dr. FU is currently engaged in private investment business. Presently, he is also an independent non-
executive director of CPMC Holdings Limited (stock code: 906.HK), Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd (stock code: 1658.
HK), China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (stock code: 3320.HK) and COFCO Meat Holdings Limited (stock code:
1610.HK). He was an independent non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock code: 392.HK) from
2008 to 22 June 2017. Dr. FU graduated from the University of London with a doctorate degree and a master's degree in
Law in 1993 and 1989, respectively.

Dr. SONG Ming, aged 57, an Independent Non-executive Director since June 2010. Dr. SONG is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Committee
of the Company. Dr. SONG has over 24 years experiences in research of banking regulations and management, financial
market, and macroeconomics. Dr. SONG is currently the dean of the School of Economics and Management at the Wuhan
University. He is also an independent non-executive director of The United Laboratories International Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 3933.HK), Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1369.HK), Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Armada Holdings Limited) (stock code: 583.HK), and an independent director of Tande Co., Ltd (stock
code: 600665.SS), respectively. Dr. SONG holds a doctorate degree in Economics from the Ohio State University, a master's
degree of Science in Mathematics from the Huazhong University of Science and Technology and a bachelor's degree of
Science in Mathematics from the Zhejiang University.

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung, aged 65, an Independent Non-executive Director since June 2010. Mr. TSANG is also the chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and the Risk Committee
of the Company. Mr. TSANG joined KPMG in 1975 and retired as a senior banking partner in 2003. At present, Mr. TSANG
is an independent non-executive director of L. K. Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 558.HK). Mr. TSANG was an
independent non-executive director of China CITIC Bank International Limited, a licensed bank in Hong Kong, and CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited, from 2004 to 2017. Mr. TSANG holds a higher diploma in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer, GBS, SBS, JR aged 62, an Independent Non-executive Director since 22 August 2018.
Professor CHAN is concurrently a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Risk Committee of the Company. At present, He is also an adjunct professor and the senior advisor to the Dean of
the Business School of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology ("HKUST"). He was appointed as the Secretary
for Financial Services and the Treasury of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region from 2007 to
June 2017. Prior to that, he was the Dean of the HKUST Business School. Before joining the HKUST in 1993, Professor CHAN
taught for nine years at the Ohio State University in the United States. Professor CHAN was a non-executive director of
MTR Corporation Limited (stock code: 66.HK) from 2007 to July 2017. He is currently a senior advisor of Welab Holdings
Limited, an independent non-executive director of Langham Hospitality Investments and Langham Hospitality Investments
Limited (stock code: 1270.HK), a non-executive director of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and a member of
the Competition Commission of Hong Kong.

Professor CHAN holds a bachelor's degree in economics from the Wesleyan University and followed by M.B.A. and Ph.D. in
finance from the University of Chicago. He has expertise in asset pricing analysis, trading strategy evaluation and market
efficiency and has published numerous articles on these topics.

Senior Management

Mr. LAl Changhua, aged 52, the Chief Risk Officer of the Company since December 2017 and is responsible for overall risk
management of the Group (including compliance and legal matters). He joined our Group in October 2015. Before that,
Mr. LAl held a management role in the risk management departments of several international investment banks, with over
20 years' experience in financial markets and risk management. Mr. LAl holds a master degree in Economics from the
Nankai University, a master degree in Business Administration from the Western Sydney University, and a bachelor degree
in Engineering from the Sichuan University. He is also a certified FRM (Financial Risk Manager) and PRM (Professional Risk
Manager).
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Report
of the

Directors

The Directors have pleasure in presenting to Shareholders their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in brokerage, corporate finance,
asset management, loans and financing, financial products, market making and investments. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required by Schedule 5 of the CO, including a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group's business
are set out in the sections of "Chairman’s Statement”, "Management Discussion and Analysis", "Risk Management Report”
and "Notes to the Financial Statements" in this annual report.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income on page 129 of this annual report.
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The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.020 per Share for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: a final dividend of HK$0.045 per Share), which subject to the approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, and
are payable on Thursday, 20 June 2019 to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the company
on Wednesday, 5 June 2019. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.033 per Share which was paid on 26 September
2018, the total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 will amount to HK$0.053 per Share (2017: HK$0.090).

Segment Information

Detailed segment information of the Group's revenue and segment results is showed in note 4 to the financial statements
of this annual report.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extract from the audited financial statements as appropriate, is set out on pages 66 and 67 of this annual report.
This summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

Particular of Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements of this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements
of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the CO, amounted to HK$281,710,000 of which HK$154,313,000 has been proposed as final
dividend for the year. Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity on page 133 to 134.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to HK$150,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers and the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total sales and purchases
respectively.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company's Securities

On 24 May 2018, the Company had accepted all the subordinate perpetual securities (the "Securities”) valid tenders for
purchase of an aggregate principal amount of US$255,000,000, the price payable per US$1,000 principal amount of the
Securities equals to US$1,000 together with accrued distribution payments. As at the date of this report, an aggregate
principal amount of US$45,000,000 of the Securities is outstanding.
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On 8 November 2018, the Company redeemed all of its outstanding 2.8% senior notes due 2018 with an aggregate principle
amount of US$450,000,000, the redemption price equals to 100% of the principle amount plus accrued and unpaid interest.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2018 other than act as an agent for the trustee of the
share award scheme of the Company (the "Share Award Scheme").

Directors

The list of the Directors is set out under the section of "Corporate Information” on page 119 of this annual report.

On 22 August 2018, Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director as an
addition to the Board. In accordance with Article 90 of the Articles of Association, Professor CHAN will hold the office
only until the forthcoming AGM and being eligible and offers himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 99(A) of the Articles of Association, Mr. WONG Tung Ching, Dr. FU Tingmei and Mr. TSANG
Yiu Keung will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM, all of them being eligible, and offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ and Senior Management Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Company are set out on page 102 to 105 of this report.

Emoluments of Directors and Chief Executives and the Five Highest Paid Employees

Details of the Directors' and chief executives' emoluments and the five highest paid employees of the Group are set out
in notes 37 and 40 to the financial statements respectively.

Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this annual report are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

CHAN Ka Wah LI Guangjie WANG Junhong
CHAN Lap Tak Jeffrey LO Kwong Shun Wilson WONG Anthony
CHIU Simon Siu Hung NG Pui Nee WONG George Ka Kui
DAl Bo OEl Su Chi lan WONG Tung Ching
DUANMU Zhenyu ONG Wei Hiam YAU Deirdre

GUO Rui** Ql Haiying YEUNG Tze Fung

LAl Changhua SIN Hau Yi YIM Fung

LAl Kai Hung TAN Koon Seng* ZHANG Gaobo

LEE Ming Chuan Eric TAY Shu Wei Yvonne ZHANG Jinhui

Notes:

*

no longer the director(s) of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2018.

*%

no longer the director(s) of the subsidiaries of the Company as at the date of this annual report.
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Change of Information of Directors

There is no other information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since last published
report.

Directors' Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transaction, Arrangement, Contract

None of the Directors or his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements, or contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group where were entered into by the Group
and subsisting during, or at the end of, the year.

Directors' Interest in Competing Businesses

None of the Directors and their associates had any interest in an entity whose business competes or is likely compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of business of the
Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executives' Interest in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company or Any Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of
underlying
Number of shares in Percentage
awarded relation to of Shares
Number of Shares share in issue
Name of Directors Capacity Shares etz ) options (Botep)
YIM Fung Personal interest 66,917,955 1,700,000 1,300,000 69,917,955 0.91%
WONG Tung Ching Personal interest 11,958,564 1,717,000 1,300,000 14,975,564 0.19%
Ql Haiying Mote 2 Personal interest 3,136,000 1,438,000 1,300,000 14,874,000 0.19%
9,000,000 ™Note 2)
(Cancelled on 30/01/2019)
LI Guangjie Personal interest 8,470,970 1,012,000 1,300,000 10,782,970 0.14%
FU Tingmei Personal interest 1,512,096 — - 1,512,096 0.02%
SONG Ming Personal interest 1,512,096 - - 1,512,096 0.02%
TSANG Yiu Keung Personal interest 1,512,096 — - 1,512,096 0.02%
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Notes:

1. The awarded Shares were unvested and held by the trustee of the Share Award Scheme. Details are set out in paragraph headed "Share
Award Scheme" under this section and note 33 to the financial statements.

2. 9,000,000 share options (being the adjusted number after the bonus issue) granted on 11 June 2015 were cancelled on 30 January 2019.
As at the date of this annual report, 1,300,000 share options were held by Ms. QI Haiying.

3. The percentage was calculated based on 7,715,673,090 Shares in issue on 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shared-based Compensation Scheme

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation schemes including a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme") and a Share Award Scheme. Details of which are set out in the paragraphs below.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19 June 2010. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the people working for the interests of the Group with an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus linking
their interests of the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive to work better for the interests of the Group.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme are the directors (whether executive or non-executive and whether independent
or not) and employee of the Group who, in the absolute opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company or the Group.

The total number of Shares that may be issued upon exercise of all share options granted and to be granted must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 164,000,000 Shares).
As at the date of this annual report, the total number of Shares available for issue under the Share option Scheme was
79,227,696 (of which options to subscribe for 65,844,303 Shares had been granted and were outstanding), representing
approximately 1.03% of the Shares in issue.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of share options granted and to be granted
(including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes to: (A) each participant in the 12-month period up to and including the date of grant, shall not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue; and (B) a participant who is a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director, or any of their respective associates in the 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
(i) representing in aggregate shall not exceed 0.1% of the total number of Shares in issue; and (i) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of
each grant, shall not in excess of HK$5,000,000. Any further grant of share options in excess of the above limits is subject
to shareholder approval in general meeting.

The exercise period of share option granted under the Share Option Scheme is determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, and shall expire no later than the 10th anniversary of date on which the share option is granted.
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There is neither any minimum period for which a share option must be held, nor any performance target which required
to be achieved before the share option can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the Board and specified at the
time of the offer.

The consideration of HK$1 for the acceptance of the grant shall be remitted in favour of the Company within 28 days from
the date of offer or other period as may be determined by the Board.

The exercise price of share options is determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, and shall be at least the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five consecutive days on which Shares are traded on the Stock Exchange immediately preceding the date of offer.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption (i.e. 18 June 2020)
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms stipulated therein.

Movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out as
follows, details of which are set out in note 32 of the financial statements:

Number of share options

At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed At Exercise
1 January during during during during 31 December price Date of grant Exercise period
Name of participants 2018  the year  the year  the year  the year 2018 (HK$)  (ote s (Lot
Directors
YIM Fung 800,000 - - - 800,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
500,000 500,000 1720  04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
WONG Tung Ching 800,000 - - - - 800,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
500,000 500,000 1720  04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
Ql Haiying 9,000,000 - - - - 9,000,000 4.854  11/06/2015 11/06/2016-10/06/2025
(Note 1) (Cancelled on 30/01/2019) (Note 1)
(Note 3)
800,000 - - - - 800,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
500,000 500,000 1720 04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
LI Guangjie 800,000 - - - - 800,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
500,000 500,000 1720 04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
(Note 2)
12,200,000 2,000,000 - - — 14,200,000
Employees (in aggregate) 6,920,960 - (3324192 - - 3,596,768 0.827  24/04/2012 10/06/2012-09/06/2021
(Note 1) (Note 5) (Note 1)
40,465,948 - (6,668,413) - - 33,797,535 1.264 10/01/2014 10/01/2015-09/01/2024
(Note 1) (Note 6) (Note 1)
4,500,000 - - - (4,500,000) - 4854  11/06/2015 11/06/2016-10/06/2025
(Note 1) (Note 1)
6,800,000 - - - (400,000) 6,400,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
8,000,000 (150,000) 7,850,000 1720  04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
(Note 2)
58,686,908 8,000,000 (9,992,605) — (5,050,000) 51,644,303
Total 70,886,908 10,000,000 (9,992,605) - (5,050,000) 65,844,303
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Notes:

1. The number of outstanding share options and the exercise price may be subject to adjustment in case of reorganization of the capital
structure of the Company. Pursuant to the announcements dated 29 September 2014 and 9 July 2015, the Company adjusted respectively the
number of outstanding share options and the exercise price with reference to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the supplementary
guidance attached to the letter of the Stock Exchange relating to share option scheme dated 5 September 2005.

2. The closing share price was HK$1.660 per Share on 3 July 2018, being the date immediately before the day on which such options were
granted.
3. 9,000,000 share options (being the adjusted number after the bonus issue) granted on 11 June 2015 were cancelled on 30 January 2019.

As at the date of this annual report, 1,300,000 share options were held by Ms. QI Haiying.

4. In respect of the share options granted on 24 April 2012, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 10 June 2012, 10 June
2013 and 10 June 2014 and exercisable until 9 June 2021.

In respect of the share options granted on 10 January 2014, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 10 January 2015,
10 January 2016 and 10 January 2017 and exercisable until 9 January 2024.

In respect of the share options granted on 11 June 2015, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 11 June 2016, 11 June
2017 and 11 June 2018 and exercisable until 10 June 2025.

In respect of the share options granted on 13 July 2017, one-third of the share options shall be vested evenly on 13 July 2018, 13 July
2019 and 13 July 2020 and exercisable until 12 July 2027.

In respect of the share options granted on 4 July 2018, one-third of the share options shall be vested evenly on 4 July 2019, 4 July 2020
and 4 July 2021 and exercisable until 3 July 2028.

5. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which the options were exercised during the year was
HK$2.41.

6. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which the options were exercised during the year was
HK$2.39.

Share Award Scheme
The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 27 October 2011 (as amended on 30 October 2014 and 25 November
2015 subsequently) and shall be valid until 26 October 2021 unless otherwise terminated by the Board.

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the contributions by certain employees and directors of any
member of the Group and to give incentives in order to retain them for the continuing operation and development of the
Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which can be awarded under the Share Award Scheme is 10% of the Shares in issue as at
the adoption date (i.e. 164,000,000 Shares), and the maximum number of the Shares which may be awarded to a grantee
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the Shares in issue on
the adoption date (i.e. 16,400,000 Shares).

When a grantee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include performance, operating and financial targets and

other criteria, as determined by the Board at the time of making the award and become entitled to the Shares forming the
subject of the award, the trustee shall then transfer respective awarded Shares to that employee or director at no cost.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report



Report of the Directors

No payment to purchase Shares shall be made, and no instruction to acquire Shares shall be given, to the trustee of the
Share Award Scheme where any Director is in possession of inside information in relation to the Company or where dealing
in securities by Directors are prohibited under any codes or rules and applicable laws from time to time.

Before the Shares are transferred to the grantee, the voting rights and powers of any Shares held by the trustee shall be
exercised by the trustee who shall abstain from voting.

As of 31 December 2018, the Company had awarded in aggregate of 126,619,000 Shares since 27 October 2011, representing
77.2% of the limit of the Share Award Scheme.

During the year, 34,804,000 Shares were awarded and 3,908,000 Shares were lapsed and 26,063,000 Shares were vested.
As at 31 December 2018, 28,926,000 Shares were unvested. Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note 33 to
the financial statements of this annual report.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save as the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing Shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Directors' Rights to Acquire Shares or Debenture

Save as the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2018,
none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company or its associated corporations
and none of the Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt
securities of the Company or its associated corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

Substantial Shareholders' Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2018, the following persons (not
being a Director) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which had been
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:—

Number  Percentage of

of Shares Shares in issue

Name of Shareholders Capacity (Long positions) (Note 2)
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 5,119,508,800 66.35%
Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited Mot |nterested in controlled corporation 5,119,508,800 66.35%
Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited Interested in controlled corporation 5,119,508,800 66.35%
(Note 1)
Notes:
1. Guotai Junan Holdings Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited and accordingly, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan Securities
Company Limited are deemed to be interested in these 5,119,508,800 Shares.

2. The percentage was calculated based on 7,715,673,090 Shares in issue on 31 December 2018.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company has not been notified by any persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 6 April 2016, the Company entered into a master services agreement ("2016 Master Services Agreement") with Guotai
Junan Securities Company Limited (“GTJA"), a controlling shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which the Company
and GTJA agreed that each of them may, and may procure the Company (and its members, collectively referred to as the
“Group") and GTJA (and its members, collectively referred to as the "GTJA Group") respectively, to provide services of 1)
brokerage transactions, 2) investment management and advisory service transactions, 3) consulting service transactions,
and 4) corporate finance transactions, to each other in accordance with the terms of the 2016 Master Services Agreement
for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. The 2016 Master Services Agreement was superseded by
the New Master Services Agreement during the year (as described herein below).

On 19 March 2018, the Company entered into a new master services agreement (“New Master Services Agreement”) with
GTJA, pursuant to which the Company and GJTA agreed that each of them may, and may procure the Group and GTJA Group
respectively, to provide services of 1) brokerage transactions, 2) investment management and advisory services transactions,
3) consulting services transactions, 4) corporate finance transactions, and 5) investment and finance transactions, to each
other in accordance with the terms of the New Master Services Agreement for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2020. The annual caps and categories of services covered in the 2016 Master Services Agreement had
been revised in the New Master Services Agreement to cater the business needs of the Company. As GTJA is a controlling
shareholder of the Company and therefore is a connected person of the Company, the transactions contemplated under the
New Master Services Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company and are expected to be of
a recurrent nature and may occur on a regular and continuous basis in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group. The transactions contemplated under the New Master Services Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent Shareholders' approval requirement as one of the applicable percentage ratios exceeds 5%
under the Listing Rules. The New Master Services Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder were approved
by the independent Shareholders on 16 April 2018. For further details, please refer to circular dated 26 March 2018.

The Group and GTJA Group shall, from time to time during the term of the New Master Services Agreement, enter into

separate operational agreements in respect of the provision of any services, provided that such operational agreements and
their terms shall be subject to and shall not exceed the terms of the New Master Services Agreement.
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The annual caps in respect of continuing connected transactions contemplated under the New Master Services Agreement
for three financial years ended 31 December 2018, and ending 31 December 2019 and 2020 are shown as below:

Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ending year ending

31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2019 2020
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)

Annual caps in respect of income attributable to the Group arising from:

1 Brokerage services provided to GTJA Group 19 26 35
2 Investment management and advisory services provided
to GTJA Group 2 3
3 Consulting services provided to GTJA Group 2 2 2
4 Corporate finance services provided to GTJA Group 17 19 21
Total 40 50 62

Annual caps in respect of expenses incurred by the Group arising from:

1 Brokerage services from GTJA Group 20 23 25
2 Investment management and advisory services provided
by GTJA Group 18 34 59
3 Consulting services from of GTJA Group 29 38 51
4 Corporate finance services provided by GTJA Group 32 38 45
Total 99 133 180

Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ending year ending

31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2019 2020
(HK$ billion) (HK$ billion) (HK$ billion)

Annual caps in respect of principal-to-principal investment and finance transactions between the Group and
GTJA Group:

1 Bonds traded 2.7 3.6 4.
2 Structured products sold by the Group 3.9 5.9 10.6
Structured products purchased by the Group 1.6 1.6 1.6
Total 8.2 11.1 163
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Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group in the normal course of business are set out in note
41 to the financial statements, some of those transactions constituted non-exempted continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, for which the Company has complied with applicable disclosure requirement in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better;
and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Directors engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the aforesaid continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000 (Revised) "Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” ("HKSAE 3000") and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules" ("PN740") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has reported to the Directors in accordance with HKSAE 3000 and with reference to PN740 that the transactions
(i) had been approved by the Board of the Company; (i) were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company; (iii)
had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iv) had not exceeded
the relevant CAPs.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules

On 21 August 2017, the Company (as guarantor) and Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (as borrower), entered into a facility agreement with a group of financial institutions (as lenders) (the "Lenders") in
respect of a HK$/US$ dual currency revolving loan facility in an aggregate amount equal to HK$8,000 million (the “Loan")
for a term of 3 years (the "Facility Agreement”). Under the Facility Agreement, it will be an event of default if Guotai
Junan Securities Co., Ltd., the controlling shareholder of the Company, is not, or ceases (directly or indirectly) to be the
single largest legal and beneficial holder of Shares or does not, or cease to, control the Company. In case of an event of
default occurred, the Lenders may, by notice to borrower: (i) cancel all or part of the Loan; and/or (i) declare all or part of
the Loan, together with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued or outstanding under the Facility Agreement be
immediately due and payable; and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the Loan become payable on demand.

Use of Placing Proceeds

To obtain further capital for the Group's business development, on 29 January 2018, the Company placed a total of
700,000,000 ordinary Shares held by Guotai Junan Holdings Limited ("GJH"), the controlling shareholder of the Company,
to not less than six independent third party placees at a placing price of HK$2.85 per Share under the top-up placing,
and then on 6 February 2018, the Company allotted and issued a total of 700,000,000 new ordinary Shares to GJH at a
subscription price of HK$2.85 per Share (the "Subscription Price") under the general mandate (the "Placing”). The net proceeds
from the Placing received by the Company were approximately HK$1,987 million, equivalent to a net Subscription Price of
approximately HK$2.84 per Share. The closing price of the Shares was HK$3.09 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 23 January 2018, being the last full trading day immediately prior to the signing of the documents in connection with
the Placing.
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As at 31 December 2018, the net proceeds of the Placing had been utilised as follows:

Amount

utilized as at

Amount of net 31 December

proceeds 2018

(HK$ million) (HK$ million)

General working capital 1,987 —
- Market making and investment in debt securities — 1,550
- Loans and advances to customers — 437
Total 1,987 1,987

Permitted Indemnity

Subject to the CO and under the Articles of Association, every Director is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses and liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution or discharge of
his or her duties and/or the exercise of his or her powers and/or otherwise in connection with his or her duties, powers or
office. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant
legal actions against the Directors and officers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25%
of the total number of issued Shares was held by the public throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this report.

Corporate Governance

The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
90 to 101 of this report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The major laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group's business include the CO, the SFO, the Anti-
money Laundering and Counter-terrorist Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the Listing Rules. Throughout the year of 2018 and as at the date of this report, as far as the Board and management
are aware, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance with, the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that
has a significant impact on its businesses and operations.
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Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

The Group is committed to discharging its corporate social responsibility and enhancing its ability on environmental, social
and governance issues. In order to preserve our environment, we have consistently implemented different measures in
day-to-day business and we are granted with the "Green Office and Eco-Healthy Workplace" label.

The participation of stakeholders is essential for the development of the Group. The Group has attached great importance
to the expectations and needs of various stakeholders and strengthened the existing communication mechanism. This year,
we have engaged an independent consultant to collect advices from our stakeholders (such as employees, clients, service
providers, business partners, non-profit organizations and general public) by way of online survey. For details, please refer
to the "2018 Environmental, Social and Governance Report” to be issued by the Company.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been audited by Ernst &
Young, who will retire, and being eligible and offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Dr. YIM Fung, JP
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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Independent Auditor's Report
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Ernst & Young ZXEETEE BT Tel E35: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower EH BRI S 1 Fax {£H:+852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue = AE221E ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

EY::

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan
International Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group") set out on pages 129 to 288, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed
the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
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risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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/mpa/rment assessment on loans and advances to customers

As at 31 December 2018, gross loan and advances to
customers and its related impairment allowance amounted
to HK$12,851 million and HK$575 million respectively.
Impairment allowance for credit exposures at Stage 3
amounted to HK$562 million.
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We obtained an understanding of the Group's credit risk
management and practices, and assessed the Group's
impairment provisioning policy in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9, including an evaluation of
management judgement on i) the level of disaggregation
of portfolios for impairment assessment; ii) the use of
reasonable and supportable credit risk information that is
available without undue cost or effort; and iii) the staging
criteria for determining if a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred.
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Key audit matters (continuea)

EEETEE

Key audit matter
HRESEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AREGNEREETTRONUEHN

Impairment assessment on loans and advances to customers (continued)
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The assessment of impairment for loans and advances to
customers and accounts receivable involves significant
management judgements and estimates on the amount of
expected credit loss at the reporting date.
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At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and the
date of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes
quantitative and qualitative information and also, forward-
looking analysis.
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For assessment of impairment allowance as of 31 December
2018:
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° We tested the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of significant increase in credit risk
and the basis for classification of exposures into the
3 stages. Our testing included the checking to loan
overdue information, loan-to-value percentage or
other related information, and considering the stage
classification determined by the Group;
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° For loans and advances to customers classified
at stage 1, we evaluated the Group's estimation
methodology of expected credit losses, and checked
the parameters to external data sources where
available, including the price volatility of selected
underlying collateral used in multiple scenario
analysis;
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° For loans and advances to customers classified
at stage 3, in assessing the impairment allowance
made by the Group, we checked the valuation of
the collateral and other sources of cash flows,
and developed a reasonable range of expected
cash shortfall for comparison with the Group's
assessment.
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We also evaluated the Group's disclosures in relation to
credit risk in note 16 and note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continuea)
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Key audit matter
HRESASEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Valuation of financial instruments

M TAMNIEGE

The Group has applied valuation techniques to determine
the fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted
in active markets. These valuation techniques, in particular
those that include significant unobservable inputs, involve
significant management judgements and assumptions.
EEEERGENZEC LB ERTSRENSHT
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group's financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value and categorised within
Level 3 amounted to HK$5919 million and HK$6,342
million respectively, representing 12% and 23% of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value.
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We obtained an understanding of the Group's policy on the
valuation of financial instruments, including independent
price verification, independent model validation and
approval.
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We focused on the valuation methodologies and
assumptions of financial instruments that were classified
as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. We involved our
valuation specialists in evaluating the valuation techniques,
inputs and assumptions through comparison with the
valuation techniques that are commonly used in the market,
the validation of observable inputs using external market
data, and comparison with valuation outcomes obtained
from a number of pricing sources.
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We have also assessed the adequacy of the Group's
disclosure on the fair value hierarchy and related disclosures
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
BMTETRESEEAATESANRERGS Y
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor's Report

&

Auditor's

iz BEN RS

responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor's Report
T Nz BURD ¥R S

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or requlation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's
report is Kwong Chun Kit.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
18 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

% H 5

S AEL T

N

Year ended 31 December 2018

HE-_Z-)\E+_A=+—RHLLFE

35K

2018 2017
—E-)N\E —+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAE T

Revenue Ug =5 5 3,012,208 3,132,393

Other income H b U A 3,932 2,399

Revenue and other income Uz & H b dg A 3,016,140 3,134,792

Staff costs 8T Bk AR 6 (642,853) (676,031)

Commission to account executives REXERAE (68,894) (61,947)

Depreciation he (36,541) (38,736)

Other operating expenses HEf&eEm (584,508) (405,196)

Operating profit 5 A 1,683,344 1,952,882

Finance costs Bl & B AN 7 (713,754) (393,770)

Profit before tax B 25 A1 A 8 969,590 1,559,112

Income tax expense BT 15 % B 2 9 (134,098) (223,073)

Profit for the year F A% F 835,492 1,336,039

Other comprehensive income for the year, R E M2 E UK -
net of tax HIBR B 18
— Exchange difference on translation of — HNEEFE K

foreign exchange =% 294 (1,548)

Total comprehensive income for FR2ME W=
the year wmE 835,786 1,334,491

Profit for the year attributable to: G F R -

Owners of the parent: NEHEA AN 848,651 1,333,336
— Holders of ordinary shares - EEBRFEA 796,835 1,228,174
— Holders of other equity - HEfh s T H

instrument FAEA 51,816 105,162

Non-controlling interests IE 122 iR #E 2 (13,159) 2,703

835,492 1,336,039

Total comprehensive income for the FE{hF A2 EK &
year attributable to: wmem:

Owners of the parent ISE/NCIE7FEWN 848,945 1,331,788
— Holders of ordinary shares - TEBEFEA 797,129 1,226,626
— Holders of other equity - HihEmTA

instrument FAA 51,816 105,162

Non-controlling interests IE 12 iR 1 7 (13,159) 2,703

835,786 1,334,491

Earnings per share attributable to BAREERRR
ordinary equity holders of the parent EhHSRAZR
— Basic (in HK cents) — EARCABAED 11(a) 10.5 17.7
— Diluted (in HK cents) — BB (AB L ED) 11(b) 10.5 17.6
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129



130

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sra B AR 0 R

As at 31 December 2018
RZE—-N\F+ZA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-)N\E —+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAE T
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEEB 12 471,644 480,006
Intangible assets mEE 13 3,195 2,823
Other assets HEmEE 14 5,531 13,174
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE E 15 129,807 50,745
Loans and advances to customers BTEPHER KB R 16 2,338,830 29,918
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 2,949,007 576,666
Current assets REEE
Loans and advances to customers BTEFPRER KRB R 16 9,936,545 15,553,655
Accounts receivable FEHSZ?J’\IE 18 5,347,223 4,347,402
Prepayments, deposits and SRR E?ééli
other receivables EIT‘@JEHKT 19 322,421 120,252
Financial assets at fair value through }E’D\$TE§$J\TE£T&E’\J
profit or loss TEEE 20 47,861,469 37,170,762
— Financial assets held for trading and - BIEEEREEN
investments TRMEE 15,019,421 8,924,271
— Financial assets products - @RMEEEm 32,842,048 28,246,491
Derivative financial instruments MESMTA 21 76,832 110,461
Receivable from reverse repurchase = 1A) 1= B 155 =
agreements JE U 3R I8 22 3,109,006 1,513,177
Tax recoverable A] Y [ £ 18 6,131 7,495
Client trust bank balances REETEITEH 23 14,319,985 12,348,012
Cash and cash equivalents ReERIREEEY 23 4,105,672 2,212,502
Total current assets REBEEHSE 85,085,284 73,383,718
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BT AR
As at 31 December 2018
R-ZZE-NF+-A=+—8H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —t4&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F & T TET
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FE 1 3k I8 24 (18,883,841) (16,952,250)
Other payables and H A JE A K
accrued liabilities JEErEE 25 (537,400) (473,094)
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmMTA 21 (23,620) (27,722)
Bank borrowings IRITER 26 (9,441,083) (13,781,721)
Debt securities in issue EETEBE 27 (25,999,272) (16,363,891)
— At amortised cost — LKA (6,721,259) (5,885,015)
— Designated at fair value through - BEERATE
profit or loss AR = (19,278,013) (10,478,876)
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAFEFABEED
profit or loss =N 28 (8,413,380) (9,008,776)
Obligations under repurchase agreements [0 88 15 % (& 18 29 (13,156,517) (6,244,957)
Tax payable J& <t %% 18 (67,159) (94,899)
_Total current liabilities rmAmesE (76,522,272) | (62,947,310)
_Net current assets RBRERE 8,563,012 10436408
_Total assets less current liabilities RERBRRBAMR 11,612,019 11,013,074
Non-current liabilities EkRBEES
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE 15 - (21,648)
e -] (21,648)
Net assets EEFHE 11,512,019 10,991,426
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R MBI R

As at 31 December 2018
RZE—-N\F+ZA=+—H

Equity

Share capital

Other reserve

Currency translation reserve

Share-based compensation
reserve

— Share option reserve
— Share award reserve

Shares held under the
share award scheme
Retained profits

Equity attributable to holders of
the ordinary shares

Equity attributable to holders of
other equity instrument

Equity attributable to
owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

B &

(LN

Ho A 1

ERBEER

AR D 73 B R
HEEE
- BREREE
- B R

Bein BB ET 8IH T
SR %)

R B it A

LREBIHEA
FE 15 1 3¢

Hibh#ERmTARBA

FE(L =

AFHEE A
At 4 3
I 2 08 4 2

A

31
35

2018 2017
—g-NF —t%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
8,125,856 6,118,060
(1,236,460) (1,236,460)
(655) (949)
66,186 64,973
37,816 40,769
28,370 24,204
(142,051) (181,281)

. RIOTEEON SRS
10,831,931 8,608,086

. S0 - AT
11,182,715 10,954,880

. S S8
11,512,019 10,991,426

Dr. YIM Fung
B+

Director

EF
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Consolidatepl Statement of Changes in Equity
GAREEHE

Year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z—N\E+-_A=t+—RHIEE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
NAEEAE & o

Shares held
under the
R Share Share share Other Non-
Share Other translation ~ option award award  Retained equity controlling
capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits instrument interests Total equity

BE HEEE BB BE

j 2 3 185
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'00! HK$000 HK$000
? ) ETT ? ) ? ) ?sBTE ?sa‘ﬁ‘ ?saﬁ‘
Balance at RZT—tf
1 January 2017 —B—H&&R 6054025 (1236460) 599 48,266 40636 (214,323) 3482455 2,346,685 10,521,883 11,951 10,533,834
HKFRS 9 adjustment on REEEMERE
retained earnings R 2954
REBHMAR - - - - - - (220273 - (220273 - (220213
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2ERHAE - - (154 - - - 128174 105162 1,331,788 2703 1,334,491
Capital contribution from minority SERRER
interests EE - - - - - - - - - 21892 21892
Recognition of equity-settled BRI B R
share-based payments RAERHFR
(Notes 32 and 33) (K #E32R33) - - - 7611 70801 - - - 78412 - 7841
Purchase of shares held BERGRDHE
under the share award scheme BTHENHRA
(Notes 33 and 34) (M3E33R34) - - - - - (72.7%0) - - (727%0) - (727%0)
Vesting of shares for ki % B3t 2l
the share award scheme HERH
(Notes 33 and 34) (K &E3334) - - - - (87233 105828  (23430) - (483) - (483)
Shares issued upon exercise of BREEETE
share options under the EREMET
share option scheme (Notes 31 and 32)  AIEE A
(W 31%32) 64,035 - - (15109) - - - - B9 - 49
Perpetual securities distribution KEEFD K - - - = = = - (105053 (105,053) - (105083
Final dividend for 2016 IHZE-RERE
(Note 10) T & (F0) - - - - - - (311,380 - (311,380 - (311380
Interim dividend for 2017 IHZE-tFhH
(Note 10) R 8 (BE10) - - - - - - (31,803 - (31,803 - (31,803
Balance at 31 December 2017 and RZB-—+%
at 1 January 2018 T-A=t-Ak
—F-N\&

—A-BE&ER 6118060 (1236460 (949) 40769 24204  (181281) 3843743 2346794 10954880 36546 10991426
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

/\\/ \

—HEe N/ 4y
4» /\ mom

EH KR

Year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z—N\E+-_A=t+—RHIEE

Share

capital

BA
HK$'000
TER

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
BRREAARERSE

Shares

held under

Share  the share
award award
reserve  scheme
LR
HFEET
BEN
&
HK$'000
TR

Share
option
reserve

Other
Retained equity
profits instrument

Currency
QOther translation

Teserve  reserve Total

HBRE
i
HK$'000
TR

BRE
i
HK$'000
TR

RH %R
i
HK$'000
TR

R

RER -
HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér TiErn

Hfbfife
HK$'000
TAR

At
HK$'000
7

Non-
controlling
interests

Total
equity

FER
B
HK$'000
TAR

Ri
ag
HK$'000
TRT

Balance at 31 December 2017 and - SF S
at 1 January 2018 T-A=+-Ak
“E-\F
—A—H&&E% 6,118,060 (1,236,460) (949) 40,769 24,204 (181,281) 3,843,743 2,346,794 10,954,880 36,546 10,991,426
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EKEEE - - 294 - - - 796835 51,816 848945 (13,159) 835786
Shares issued upon placement RERMMETE
of shares (Note 31) Bin (B &E31) 1,992,848 - - - - - - - 1,992,848 - 1,992,848
Capital contribution from minority LEREER
interests TE - - - - - - - - - 305917 305917
Recognition of equity-settled FERIAE 4 5 5 0L
share-based payments R RER
(Notes 32 and 33) R (F E3233) - - - 5297 69,471 - - - 74768 - 74768
Purchase of shares held B aﬁx Ve
under the share award scheme BTHBNHRA
(Notes 33 and 34) (K333 %34) - - - - - (52,579) - - (52,579) - (52,579)
Vesting of shares for i3 & Bt &l
the share award scheme HER M
(Notes 33 and 34) (MTE?B&M) - - - - (65305) 91,809  (30,364) - (3,860) - (3,860)
Shares issued upon exercise of BRESEET
share options under the IR ERER
share option scheme EIHRH
(Notes 31 and 32) (K 31 %32) 14,948 - - 3771) - - - - 1MA71 - M7
Transfer of share option reserve upon the B&RRIE &M &%
forfeiture of share options BRERE - = - (4419 = - 4479 - - = -
Perpetual securities distribution KEBFH DK - - - - - - - (66731) (66,731) - (66731)
Perpetual securities redemption KEEAED - - - - - - - (1,981,095) (1,981,095) - (1,981,095)
Final dividend for 2017 SHZE-tERHY
(Note 10) T & (F10) - - - - - - (343,960) - (343,960) - (343,960)
Interim dividend for 2018 IRHZF-NEhE
(Note 10) T & (F10) - - - - - - (251,678) - (251,678) - (251,678)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA
=+—HHM&R 8125856 (1,236,460) (655) 37,816 28,370 (142,051) 4,019,055 350,784 11,182,715 329,304 11,512,019
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SFERESRER

Year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z—N\E+-_A=t+—RHIEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net cash flows used in KEEBMARE
operating activities mEFR 38 (2,984,199) (14,495,045)
Cash flows from investing activities REZHRERE
Purchases of property, BEWE -
plant and equipment % = K 5% 12 (28,186) (25,135)
Net cash flows used in KEEBFMAR S
investing activities mEF R (28,186) (25,135)
Cash flows from financing activities METHRERE
Net (repayment of)/proceeds from RITERCGER),
bank borrowings T 15 5k 18 % 58 (4,340,638) 4,870,288
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities ZE1TETSE 5 TS5 E 39,728,637 19,256,195
Repayment of debt securities BEEBHFES (30,093,256) (8,715,545)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares upon B &2 & % 5 M 3% 17 A% 15
placement of shares P 1S SIE % H 1,992,848 -
Repurchase of other equity instrument BoEMmERT A (1,981,095) =
Net proceeds from issuance of shares upon [l B % 1 & 77 {5 i 2% 17
exercise of share options A& 1D FT 15 ;IR F §8 32 11,177 48,927
Distribution on other equity instrument HEHEamTESIR (66,731) (105,053)
Dividend paid to shareholders > IR AR B (599,498) (628,018)
Capital contribution from DEBRRE R
minority interest shareholders B 305,917 21,892
Purchase of shares held under the BEERMDEBEIET
share award scheme BEEHRKRNG 34 (52,579) (72,786)
Net cash flows from BEEB MG
financing activities WEmEFHE 4,904,782 14,675,900
Net increase in cash and REeRBRELEEY
cash equivalents ¥ 0 7F 58 1,892,397 155,720
Cash and cash equivalents at FReR
beginning of year REEFEEY 2,108,512 1,954,398
Effect of foreign exchange rate XN E
changes, net FRE 301 (1,596)
Effect of impairment allowance on ﬁﬂﬁﬁ’éﬁ HBEE R
cash and cash equivalents, net SEBYH
%&ﬁ ek (12) (10)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRAEER
end of year BELEEY 4,001,198 2,108,512
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SEeReEmEXR

Year ended 31 December 2018

BHE-_E—-N\E+-_A=1+—RHI§E

2018 2017
—E-N\E e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&ETT
Analysis of balances of cash and HeRBRSEEYN
cash equivalents HEER DM
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITER 23 3,896,502 2,108,512
Non-pledged time deposits with U R B EA B R
original maturity of less than =B A &Y K 7
three months when acquired TE B F K 23 104,696 -
Cash and cash equivalents as RemERMINZ
stated in the statement of cash flows BHeRIBEEEY 4,001,198 2,108,512
Non-pledged time deposits with 5] Iz B R B HA B B i
original maturity more than =@ Az REH
three months when acquired € B 17 3K 23 104,474 103,990
Cash and cash equivalents as stated B AR R R P SI 2
in the statement of financial position BehBEeZEEY 4,105,672 2,212,502
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 1% ¥ R M 5
31 December 2018
2\ +ZA=+—H

1.

Corporate and group information

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and its shares were listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange") on 8 July 2010. The registered office address of
the Company is 27th Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181
Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
brokerage, corporate finance, asset management, loans and financing,
financial products, market making and investments.

The Company's immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company are Guotai Junan Holdings Limited ("GJHL") incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and Guotai Junan Securities Company
Limited ("Guotai Junan") incorporated in the People's Republic of China,
respectively.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as
follows:

RAREEEHR

ARARR_ZE-—ZEF=ANAR
BEBRRGIETBEMKILLZ
BERAR  ARBNKROR -FT—
ZEELANRERBMAEREME
RAR (B ERLET - AR
FEMMEEO It IBTEER
RERI8IHEH LTRSS EEE27E -
ARARBREZERRR - N B
RIXERERL  o5ME  BE
BEE BEXRMBE  ERER &
MRRER -

RABINEEZERAR R & EZER
RAE) DR AT B B X B SR A
YHWBERERZERAERAR (B3
BRERDERPEARLKMBEE
MBI ZRE LS R DERA
A(EFEER] -

R-B-NFE+-_HA=+—H
EMBEARMFBLT

Company name

DEER

Guotai Junan (Hong Kong)
Limited ("GJHK")

BZEZ(BE)ARAH
(BREZEFE))

Guotai Junan International
(Singapore) Holdings
Pte Limited

Place of

incorporation

and business

of it B 3 R Share capital
R &N

SamoafHong Kong HK$6,330,989,070
BET /B 6,330,989,0707% 7T
Singapore $6$300,000
WIS 300,000 A0 3% T

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
ARREEREBDLL

Direct Indirect

B &
100% =

100% =

BEELZBERERERAAF |2018F K

Principal activities

FEER

Investment holding and provision
of general administration
and support services to its
subsidiaries

1% B R AR R re O B A R £R £t
—REBRXERS

Investment holding and provision
of general administration
and support services to its
subsidiaries

BB PRI K e E B A R £R £
—REERERE
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 3= BT 5
31 December 2018
- )\F+=ZHA=+—H

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. RRARKEEER @
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as RZZE-NFE+ZA=+—H =
follows: (continued) EMBEBATNFEBOT : (&)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation attributable to the Company

and business ERRAEEREED L

Company name of i B 3 R Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ACEE Sy LES B Mg TEEHR

Guotai Junan International Singapore 5G$1,000,000 - 100%  Asset management
Asset Management
(Singapore) Pte Limited

03K 1,000,000%f 3% 7T BEER
Guotai Junan International Singapore $6$500,000 - 100%  Securities brokerage and other
Securities (Singapore) financial services
Pte Limited
A 500,000%7 115K 7T BEHFRLERAMSRIRE
Guotai Junan Securities Hong Kong HK$7,500,000,000 - 100%  Securities dealing and broking
(Hong Kong) Limited and provision of wealth
management services
BRERER (BR) BB 7,500,000,0007% 7T BFEERBLRAR
AR R REMEERRY
Guotai Junan Futures Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 - 100%  Futures dealing and broking
(Hong Kong) Limited
BRELZHE(FHE) B 50,000,000/ 7T HEBERER
ARAR
Guotai Junan Finance Hong Kong HK$300,000,000 - 100%  Money lending and
(Hong Kong) Limited trading in securities
BRERNE (FR) BB 300,000,000 7T BFERESFEE
BRAT
Guotai Junan Capital Limited  Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 - 100%  Provision of consultancy and
financial services
AZELZRERRAA Bt 50,000,000 7T R R B R
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 3= BT 5
31 December 2018
- )\F+=ZHA=+—H

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. ARAREEER®
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as RZZE-NFE+ZA=+—H =
follows: (continued) EMBEBATNFEBOT : (&)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation attributable to the Company
and business AAFEERERAI L
Company name of i B 3 R Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
NCECE 1R iy B R EE Mg FEEX
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 = 100%  Asset management
Limited
AREREEER(DMN) FA 50,000,000 7T EEER
BARAR
Guotai Junan Fund Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 500%  Asset management and
Management Limited' trading in securities
BEREZEEER Bt 10,000,000 7T BEEBRERER
BRAR
Guotai Junan Financial Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Trading in securities
Products Limited
ARELXCRERARLDR FE 1,000,0007% 7T EFHEE
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100%  Leveraged foreign exchange
dealing and broking
BREZINEER QA 00 30,000,000/ 7T BEANERFREL
Note 1: The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and Mzl BARASEAERNEZEEHER
operating policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or EEGARZHKE  MAEH
remove the majority of the members of its board of directors. REHEARNEEZERNONM

BREBBRE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the LRI EZSRREUAFEREE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year EFEFENBRAEBREEF
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To EEXEEXDoZ2ARABINBEAR - B
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, ERE IEHEMHBRAT ZER
result in particulars of excessive length. SEYREANITR -

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by ZEUBRREN=_ZT—NLF=A
the board of directors on 18 March 2019. TNBEZE=gHE RRETE -
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2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, debt
securities in issue designated at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair
value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group") for the year ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 20 MEEE )

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4 and Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation
of the Group's financial statements, the nature and the impact of the
new and revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects
of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet an employee's
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify
that the approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies to
cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee's tax obligation is classified in its
entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the result that
it becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction
from the date of the modification. The amendments have had no
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group as
the Group does not have any cash-settled share-based payment
transactions and has no share-based payment transactions with
net settlement features for withholding tax.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and
it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included in note
5 to the financial statements. As a result of the application of
HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the accounting policy with
respect to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of
initial application or only to contracts that are not completed
at this date. The Group has elected to apply the standard to
contracts that are not completed as at 1 January 2018.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any material impact
on the financial statements.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should transfer
property, including property under construction or development,
into or out of investment property. The amendments state that
a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to
meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence
of the change in use. A mere change in management's intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change
in use. The amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine the date
of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the situation where
an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of
it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability
(such as deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the entity
must determine the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration. The interpretation has had
no impact on the Group's financial statements as the Group's
accounting policy for the determination of the exchange rate
applied for initial recognition of non-monetary assets or non-
monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance provided in
the interpretation.
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2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Definition of a Business ?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation '

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture *

Leases '

Insurance Contracts °

Definition of Material 2

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement '

Long-term Interests in Associates

and Joint Ventures '

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
i No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report
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2.3 Issued but not Jet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance
to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of HKFRS 9
only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include long-term interests that
in substance form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore,
an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-
term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the context of recognising
losses of an associate or joint venture and impairment of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture. The Group does not have
any investment in associate or joint venture, and therefore the Group
expects the amendments have had no impact in the financial position
or performance of the Group.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 278

Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant
and equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and
the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also
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Reporting Standards (continued)

be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of
certain events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS
17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS
16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures
than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group plans
to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 and will not restate
the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-
of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. The Group plans to
use the exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose
lease terms end within 12 months as of the date of initial application.
During 2018, the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the
impact of adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group has estimated that right-
of-use assets of HK$53,060,000 and lease liabilities of HK$51,106,000
will be recognised at 1 January 2019.
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2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 5
Reporting Standards (continued) MR E 2R (@)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as "uncertain tax positions").
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope
of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity
makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an
entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation
is to be applied retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without
the use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application, without the restatement of comparative information. The
Group expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments under Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle sets out
amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and HKAS 23. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2019. None of the
amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact on
the Group. Details of the amendments are as follows:

o HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that, when an entity
obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it must
apply the requirements for a business combination achieved in
stages and remeasure its entire previously held interest in the
joint operation at fair value.

° HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Clarifies that when an entity
that participates in (but does not have joint control of) a joint
operation obtains joint control over that joint operation that is
a business, it does not remeasure the interest it previously held
in that joint operation.

° HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes: Clarifies that an entity recognises all
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity, depending on where the entity
recognised the originating transaction or event that generated
the distributable profits giving rise to the dividends.

° HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs: Clarifies that an entity treats as part
of general borrowings any specific borrowing originally made to
develop a qualifying asset, and that is still outstanding, when
substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset
for its intended use or sale are complete.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, debt securities in issue designated at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments,
fund investments, debt investments and equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report

AFEFE®E)

MR ENEENT B RRER
MEERABTS  AEEBBR
Rﬁi%fiﬁ&ﬁ\ﬁ%#%
NFHEIBEEHEBEANRE
E%%H@m%%%iTﬂi&%

% o

FETREERE
WEBSKBREELTRE A
HEE(EREERIN ETFER
BRI AefEsrZBmEENAK
EEE - BENARESER/ZE
EXHRELBEUNEREESR
ERFEBHEXRAFTOHERSE
WHEREETAEE * BRIFZE
EYTEARABEELBINE
EEXEEMANRSRA &
BERT AIRE SRR ZEE
MBRCELBNTUERE -

HMEBEENEENEAEES
HAlg o & B g - AP EEME
BN B AXRERESARR
BRMEHZEENERKHEER
K RBRET AR B AT TR E - 4
REHRE REBERELSH
NEBRDERTEDBEEENE—
BH X BB R AHE -

REBREREREEAFIEHERETE
BEBTIBEERREBERTHE
FEIEMD - MFEEZTR - A
GEAATKNEERE - BEBRBNE
EREEBEEEENANEEZE
ERRE S BN G E R EE
HRORNESEIESRNERA
TFEYEAEERRDRERSRE
M F& © 7 5 /9 B T 5 (30 BR (E A 37
B %@E’Jﬁﬁ)@ﬂéﬁéﬁﬁ@iﬁﬂ
Bt ARSI



Notes to Financial Statements

By 1% ¥ = M 5
31 December 2018
—E-N\F+-A=t+-A

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land Shorter of the remaining
under finance leases lease term and the useful
life of the buildings

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing club membership and eligibility rights
to trade on or through The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the
“Stock Exchange"”) and The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited,
with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. These intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as
finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of these leases are charged
to profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Financial assets and liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an ECL allowance
is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and
investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI, which results in
an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when an asset
is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from
the transaction price on initial recognition, the entity recognises the
difference as follows:

(i)  When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

(i) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument's fair value can be determined
using market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets

(i

Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group's financial assets include accounts receivable,
deposits and other receivables, loans and advances to
customers, client trust bank balances, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements, derivative financial instruments,
other assets and cash and cash equivalent.

From 1 January 2017, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 and
classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

(i) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);

(i)  Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI); or

(i) Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity
instruments are described below:

Debt instruments
Classification and subsequent measurement of debt

instruments depend on:

(i)  the Group's business model for managing the asset;
and

(i)  the cash flows characteristics of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

Business model assessment:

The business model reflects how the Group manages the
assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether
the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the
contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from
the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g.
financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the
financial assets are classified as part of ‘other' business
model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the
Group in determining the business model for a group of
assets include past experience on how the cash flows for
these assets were collected, how the asset's performance
is evaluated and reported to key management personnel,
how risks are assessed and managed and how managers
are compensated.

SPPI test:

The Group assesses the contractual terms of instruments
to identify whether the contractual cash flows are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding' ("SPPI"). Financial assets that are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement are considered to
meet the SPPI criterion. In a 'basic lending arrangement’,
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk
are typically the most significant elements of interest. It
may also include consideration for other basic lending
risks such as liquidity risks, costs associated with holding
the financial assets for a period of time (e.g., servicing or
administrative costs) and a profit margin.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(i

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
SPPI test: (continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt
instruments into one of the following three measurement
categories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI"), and that
are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortised
cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by
any ECL allowance recognised and measured as described
in note 2.4(a)(ii). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in ‘Interest and similar income' using the
effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets'
cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not designated at
FVTPL, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument's amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in ‘Net investment income'.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
‘Interest income' using the effective interest rate method.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(i

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
SPPI test: (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not
meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income within ‘Net trading income' in the period in which
it arises, unless it arises from debt instruments that
were designated at fair value or which are not held for
trading, in which case they are presented separately in ‘Net
investment income'. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in 'Interest income' using the effective
interest rate method

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes. The reclassification takes place from the start
of the first reporting period following the change. Such
changes are expected to be very infrequent and none
occurred during the period.

24 FESHTHEBEw)

cREEREE®)
(a) Z=HEEE)

() SERkEERT=EE)
BEEITAE)
EREERANEMSR
(%)

BRAFEFAER
THEBERARLIE AT
B AHEMEEERE
EMNEERE RN FEA
BmatE - HREAF
Bt ABRAVEHF
BERAKRE D NERKER
Bl sk BENIE R
B UREELAHEE
BomkEMEEmEER
MIRZRAFBEINZ
5 - BRIFEMIEE RIZ
NV {EF B IEFFE
BEENBERIAEL
EHBERTRIE R
AFBIADRZY -

ZETHMEENNEWK
AR ERM XA
[ S WAL

EREEERERHIRE
E’J%iﬁ%‘t%’éi‘*@b
CAEBFBEZEE
Fi%ﬁ“* c BT OME
R %A B E) 18 1 & E R
HHRM AT - T8
Bt EEHIEETER
BHIR I R 8 & -

EHEELZBEBRIERABRAR |20185F &

161



162

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 R MY Rt

31 December 2018

T N\FE+A=+—H

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(i

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the
definition of equity from the issuer's perspective; that is,
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation
to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer's
net assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic
ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
Group's management has elected, at initial recognition,
to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Group's
policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when
those investments are held for purposes other than to
generate investment returns. When this election is used,
fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including
on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value. Dividends, when represent a return on such
investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are
included in the ‘Net trading income' line in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(if)

Impairment

The Group applies a simplified approach to measure ECL
on accounts receivable and a general approach to measure
ECL on loans and advances to customers, time deposits
and other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost
as well as loan commitment.

Under the simplified approach, the Group measures the
loss based on lifetime ECL. Under the general approach,
financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition:

Stage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit-impaired upon origination, the portion of
the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default
events occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining
lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(if)

Impairment (continued)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For exposures that have become credit-impaired, a lifetime
ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
(net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk
of default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and
qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis.
For certain portfolio of margin loans, the Group rebuts the
presumption that there have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition when financial assets
are more than 30 days past due as management considers
the probability of default is highly correlated with the
collateral value rather than the past due days.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies ontived) 2.4 EE T BEBE @)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued) TREEREE®
(a)  Financial assets (continued) (a ZFHEEGE)
(i) Impairment (continued) (i) WEE)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired (continued) SEIMEER - A EHAR) TR
HERBX-EERE
The Group assesses whether the credit risk on an exposure RNEE L E R kR i
has increased significantly on an individual or collective EXEEERBRELRE

basis. For the purposes of a collective evaluation of
impairment, financial instruments are grouped on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics, taking into account
instrument type, remaining term to maturity and other
relevant factors.
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The amount of ECL is measured as the probability-weighted TEEERBRNEE T
present value of all cash shortfalls over the expected life SAERERIRERN KA,
of the financial asset discounted at its original effective IR A & B T A8 5 F A
interest rate. The cash shortfall is the difference between ABERE T EEERA]

all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company and
all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.
The amount of the loss is recognised using a provision for
doubtful debts account.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)
(i) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When
this happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new
terms are substantially different to the original terms.
The Group does this by considering, among others, the
following factors:

° If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash
flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be
able to pay.

° Whether any substantial new terms are introduced,
such as a profit sharefequity-based return that
substantially affects the risk profile of the loan.

° Significant extension of the loan term when the
borrower is not in financial difficulty.

° Significant change in the interest rate.

° Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

° Insertion of collateral, other security or credit
enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(iif)

Modification of loans (continued)

If the terms are substantially different, the Group
derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a
‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective
interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation
is consequently considered to be the date of initial
recognition for impairment calculation purposes, including
for the purpose of determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group
also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised
is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition,
especially in circumstances where the renegotiation was
driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally
agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount
are also recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on
derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the
renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the
financial asset and recognises a modification gain or
loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the
original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective
interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised
when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the assets have expired, or when they have been
transferred and either (i) the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (i) the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and the Group has not retained
control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows
to other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as
‘pass through' transfers that result in derecognition if the
Group:

(i) has no obligation to make payments unless it
collects equivalent amounts from the assets;

(i) is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

(iii)  has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from
the assets without material delay.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(@)

(6)

Financial assets (continued)
(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions is not derecognised because the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards on
the basis of the predetermined repurchase price, and the
criteria for derecognition are therefore not met. This also
applies to certain securitisation transactions in which the
Group retains a subordinated residual interest.

Financial liabilities

Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives and financial liabilities held
for trading. Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss are presented partially in other
comprehensive income (the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is
not attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise
to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount
of change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such a
presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting mismatch,
in which case the gains and losses attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the liability are also presented in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
their fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Whilst the Group enters into a derivative contract for trading purposes
or to provide economic hedges under the Group's risk management
framework, it does not apply hedge accounting.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held under the
share award scheme) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments. Any
difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognised in equity.

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised
financial institutions to hold clients' deposits arising from normal
business transactions. The Group has classified the clients' monies as
client trust bank balances under the current assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the Group is allowed to retain some
or all of the interest income on the clients’ monies and recognised
corresponding accounts payable to the respective customers in the
current liabilities clients on grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients' monies. Under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) and the Hong Kong Insurance
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 41), the Group is not allowed to use the
clients’ monies to settle its own obligation.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned above, the
Group provides brokerage and asset management services and the
Group acts in a fiduciary capacity which results in the holding or
placing of assets on behalf of its customers. These assets and any gains
or losses arising thereon are not included in these financial statements
as the Group has no contractual rights to these assets and its gains
or losses under fiduciary activities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to the Stock
Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited and other regulators. They are intended to
be held on a long-term basis and are stated at cost less impairment
losses.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018) WABRZB(B=F—-NF-—A—
B ER )
Revenue from contracts with customers B &E A

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

Provision of securities and futures brokerage services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the
customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the trades
are executed.

Provision of investment banking services

The performance obligation for sponsoring and certain consultancy
and financial advisory services are fulfilled when all the relevant
duties of a sponsor or a financial advisor as stated in the contract are
completed.

Revenue from sponsoring fee is recognised at a point in time when
all the relevant duties of a sponsor as stated in the contract are
completed. Certain consultancy and financial advisory services'
performance obligations are satisfied over time as services are
rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Provision of asset management services

Revenue from asset management services is recognised over time as
the services are provided. Fees for asset management services are
calculated based on a fixed percentage of the value of assets managed.

Performance fees are recognised on the performance fee valuation
day of the investment funds and managed accounts when there is a
positive performance for the relevant performance period and it is
determined that it will not result in significant reversal in a subsequent
period, taking into consideration the relevant basis of calculation for
the investment funds and managed accounts.

Fund distribution activities are separate performance obligations from
the asset management and the obligation being satisfied at a point in
time upon the investors' subscription. Subscription and handling fees
relating to the distribution services are recognised at a point in time
when the services are performed and the amount is known.

Provision of wealth management service

The performance obligation relating to the insurance brokerage service
is satisfied at the point when the terms of the insurance policy have
been agreed contractually by the insurer and policyholder, and the
insurer has a present right to payment from the policyholder (the
"transaction date").

Revenue from other sources and other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(i) commission income from securities, futures and options
brokerage, on the transaction dates when the relevant contract
notes are exchanged;

(i)  net income from leveraged foreign exchange transactions, on
the contract dates;

(i) commission income from the provision of insurance brokerage
services, on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
the underlying agreements;

(iv) commission income from underwriting/placing/sub-underwriting
in securities, on execution of each significant act based on the
terms of underlying agreements and mandates;

(v  management, consultancy, financial advisory fees and handling
income, when the services have been rendered;

(vi) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

(vii) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established;
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

(viii)

performance fees, on the day of the investment funds and
managed accounts when there is a positive performance for
the relevant performance period, taking into consideration
the relevant basis of calculation for the investment funds and
managed accounts;

information services income, when the services have been
rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease term;
and

net gains/losses on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and those held for trading, including realised gains/losses
which are recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant
contract notes are exchanged; and unrealised fair value gains/
losses which are recognised in the period in which they arise.

Employee benefits

(@)

(b)

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme") under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees' basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on an approved formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the Group after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)  Share-based payments
The Group operates two equity-settled share-based
compensation schemes including a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of assisting in recruiting,
retaining and motivating key staff members. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase in the “share
award reserve" and “share option reserve" under equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled in share-based compensation expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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Employee benefits (continued)

(c)  Share-based payments (continued)
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company's articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Securities borrowing and lending agreements

The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending
business with financial institutions and the Group's customers, under
which all transactions are secured in the form of cash. The Group
maintains no net position in such securities borrowing and lending
transactions and is not subject to significant price risk. However, under
the securities borrowing and lending arrangements, the cash collateral
received and cash collateral placed is included in the accounts payable
and accounts receivable from brokers and dealers respectively. Fees
received or paid in connection with securities borrowing and lending
is recorded as interest income or interest expense, respectively.
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Assets sold under repurchase agreements (repos)

In addition, the Group may enter into repurchase agreements whereby
securities are sold to third parties with a concurrent agreement to
repurchase the securities at a specified date. The securities related
to these agreements are not derecognised from the Group's financial
statements, but are retained within the appropriate financial assets
classification. The Group may be required to provide additional
collateral based on the fair value of the underlying assets if necessary.

Assets purchased under agreements to resell (reverse
repos)

The Group may enter into purchases of assets under agreements
to resell. Reverse repos are initially recorded at the cost of the
loan or collateral advanced in the consolidated statement of
financial position. These securities are not recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as the counterparty
retains substantially all risks and returns of the securities. In the event
of failure by the counterparty to repay the loan, the Group has the
right to the underlying assets.
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Foreign currencies Sh s

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which ZEMBwRERTIAB T (BIAR

is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in MNEER 2T EB)Z3) - $§E<l
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included BTEERBTEEHEARTNING

in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the currency translation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family

and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(o) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other

entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(o) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (continued)

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for
income and other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the
determination is made.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses as at
31 December 2018 was amounted to HK$12.3 million (2017: HK$12.3
million). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$ nil million (2017: HK$8.5 million). Further
details are contained in note 15 to the financial statements.

Impairment allowances on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different
levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose.
This includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using external valuations or valuation techniques. The Group uses a
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date. Valuation techniques
used include the use of comparable recent arm's length transactions,
discounted cash flows analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation techniques commonly used by other market participants.
Changes in assumptions on the valuation techniques could affect
the reported fair values of these financial assets. Further details are
contained in notes 20 and 42 to the financial statements.

Operating segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Group's senior executive
management and in accordance with HKFRSs. The Group's operating
businesses are structured and managed separately according to the
nature of their operations and the services they provide. Each of the
Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other operating segments.

Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

(a) the brokerage segment engages in the provision of securities,
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and
broking as well as insurance brokerage services to customers;

(o) the corporate finance segment engages in the provision of
advisory services, placing and underwriting services of debt and
equity securities;
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4. Operating segment information (continued)

(c)

the asset management segment engages in asset management,
including fund management and the provision of investment
advisory services;

the loans and financing segment engages in the provision of
margin financing and securities borrowing and lending to margin
customers, initial public offering (“IPO") loans, other loans to
customers and bank deposits;

the financial products, market making and investments segment
represents fund, debt and equity investment, structuring of
financial products as well as trading and market making of debt
securities, exchange traded funds (“ETF") and derivatives; and

the "others" segment mainly represents rental income and the
provision of information channel services.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to the
prices charged to third parties.
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4. Operating segment information (continued)

4, REFHER &)

The segment results of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018

Brokerage

HK$'000
TET

Corporate
finance

hEHME
HK$'000
TET

Asset
management

BEER
HK$'000
TET

BE_ZT-N\FR-_ZT—LtF+=

B=1t—BILFE REENHD I
HEEMT

2

BiIE$E

Loans and

financing

Financial
products,
market

making and
investments

SHER -

ERRME
HK$'000
TR

HmRkRE

HK$'000
TR

Hitr
HK$'000
TER

—E-N\E+ZA=1+—

Total

)
HK$'000
TER

Segment revenue and = Rk

other income: Hitn B -
Sales to external customers HETIHNBEP 454,962 594,970 16,716 1,307,294 638,266 3932 3,016,140
Inter-segment sales AHZEHE - - - - - - -
Total @it 454,962 594,970 16,716 1,307,294 638,266 3932 3,016,140
Segment results PHMEE 144,173 304,822 (7.621) 578,322 (50,106) - 969,590
Income tax expense FrEfEX (134,098)
Profit for the year F N5 7 835,492
Other segment information: Hithn HE#
Net impairment charge on loans £ FEFEH K

and advances to customers BHREFE - - - 265,870 - - 265,870
Net impairment charge/(reversal) &4 R IB R (E

on accounts receivable Tt/ (B E)

] (6,925) 1 196 - (14,855) - (21,583)

Net impairment charge/(reversal] ~ HfteBEERE

on other financial assets it/ (B E)

FHE (4,196) 5 2 - (27) - (4,216)
Depreciation wE 8,698 10,066 2,008 11,905 3,864 - 36,541
Finance costs BE KA 8,862 - - 311,885 393,007 - 713,754
Bl R E LB ERZERE R QA | 20184 5],
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4, REFTBER @)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZE—tH5+=-A=1+—
HiEFE

Brokerage

)
HK$'000

s
B 7T

Corporate
finance

rERE
HK$'000
FTHET

Asset
management

BEEE
HK$'000
TET

Loans and
financing

HK$'000
TET

Financial
products,
market
making and
investments
Rk &% &
HK$'000
TERT

Others

HAh
HK$'000
FTET

HK$'000

s
87T

Segment revenue and 2B R

other income: NN
Sales to external customers HETIHBER 517,118 683,526 29,792 1,288,777 613,180 2,399 3,134,792
Inter-segment sales PEW2EHEE - - - - - - -
Total @it 517,118 683,526 29,792 1,288,777 613,180 2,399 3,134,792
Segment results DEEE 248,736 342,112 9,080 688,573 270,611 - 1,559,112
Income tax expense FEHES (223,073)
Profit for the year F R F 1,336,039
Other segment information: HEtnpEHE#
Net impairment charge on loans A FEFEHR K

and advances to customers BROREFE - - - 74,679 - - 74,679
Net impairment charge on J& W IR R E

accounts receivable FE 5,297 2,187 7 - 15,131 - 22,622
Net impairment charge/(reversal) — Hii& @& EHE

on other financial assets Tt/ (& E)

B (9,951) - 8) - 72 - (9,887)

Depreciation ne 8,088 14,826 2,139 13,683 - - 38,736
Finance costs B AR 42 - - 283,777 109,951 - 393,770
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4. Operating segment information (continued)

Geographical information

(@)

(b)

Revenue and other income from external customers

reEsHER 2

b 15 & #
@) SIKEF Yz KA MIPA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T T T
Hong Kong BB 2,861,614 3,015,012
Other countries E B xR 154,526 119,780
3,016,140 3,134,792
The information of revenue and other income above is based on Exmlizm R A4k AE B

the locations of the markets.

Non-current assets
Majority of the non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
assets) of the Group are located in Hong Kong.

TyRmiG A m A o

) Fr#EE
AEBREAIFREDE E (T
BREERBEE)BUNE
& o
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5. Revenue 5. W&
The Group's revenue is disaggregated as follows: AEBHWZDFWET
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T T
Revenue from contracts with customers EE&AK zm
Brokerage: AR TS
Securities & 5 366,654 430,129
Futures and options e & Hi#E 28,488 25,095
Handling income FEBRA 49,803 47,966
Insurance & B 7,658 11,185
Leveraged foreign exchange 18 12 SN E 2,359 2,743
e 454,962 517,118
Corporate finance: PERE:
Placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting s AEHRDEABENEE
commission
— Debt securities - BBES 483,303 350,269
— Equity securities -BREZHF 78,219 244,920
Consultancy and financial advisory BEEEREBAR
fee income N 33,448 88,337
o 594,970 | 683,526
Asset management: BEERE:

Management fee income BEEEIW A 12,338 27,722
Performance fee income RIEEIA 4,378 2,070
o 16716 29,792

Financial products, market making CRIE®  Mmk
and investments: wE
Net income on structured financial products #5814 & B & T WA F 58 641,667 304,104
641,667 304,104
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& 1C )

5. Revenue (continued) 5.

2018
—E-NF

HK$'000
TR

2017
—F—tF
HK$'000
THET

Revenue from other sources H i KR 7
Loans and financing: ERRBEEE:
Interest and handling income FRERAE R
from margin loans FBEBRA 779,207 968,661
Interest income from banks and others RIT R H AL F B U A 293,302 173,878
Interest and handling income EHERFE &
from term loans FEBRA 137,946 107,035
Interest income from securities BHEEE
borrowing and lending 2 A 56,410 21,545
Interest income from IPO loans BARARBEEERN B A 10,430 12,314
Interest income from = 171 [E] B 15 =2
reverse repurchase agreements B U A 29,999 5,344
1,307,294 1,288,777
Financial products, market making and TRESR MHEERE:
investments:
Trading (loss)/gain on debt securities BEEEFRS (EE) I
— Listed securities T (346,444) 30,477
— Unlisted securities — ELEMESH (16,415) 2,319
Interest income from debt securities BB FH W F B A
— Listed securities T 466,392 200,927
— Unlisted securities — ELEMRESH 37,757 11,223
Trading loss on exchange traded funds REMRHEERPEE (59) (437)
Trading (loss)/gain on equity securities BABAERS(BE),/WE (145,859) 37,434
Trading (loss)/gain on unconsolidated EEHTEEER S
investment funds (E8), = (73.695) 22,292
Net gain on foreign exchange SN BE U 5 5 R 43,806 27,046
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments EERAFEFABRD
designated at fair value through eRIAEMNKZ
profit or loss (E518) & 7,700 (39,097)
Interest income from unlisted financial EEREAFEFAEBZED
instruments at fair value through FEMEMIT AR
profit or loss B U A 3,833 1,540
Dividend income f& 8 Uk A 19,583 15,352
(3.401) 309,076
3,012,208 3,132,393
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6. Staff costs

6. EIRA&

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FABT

Staff costs (including directors' remuneration): E LR AN (BIEZEEHS) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - JEAL N EBL 559,929 590,228

Share-based compensation expense R mAEERBERX
— Share Option Scheme (note 32) — BERE#E T 2 (B 5E32) 5,297 7,611
— Share Award Scheme (note 33) — [& 7 22 Eh &t &) (BT 5£33) 69,471 70,801
Pension scheme contributions RNE FFEI R 8,156 7,391
642,853 676,031
7. Finance costs 7. ®ERAKN

2018
= Wy

HK$'000
FTER

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FHET

Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITERNEX 301,771 310,408
Debt securities in issue BEETEEE 202,479 25,054
Securities borrowing and lending BEEE 2,330 863
Repurchase agreements [B] 88 1 =% 111,173 22,804
Financial instruments at fair value through BATFEGFABERD
profit or loss TRIA
— Debt securities held for trading - BHEEENEEES 82,204 18,057
Others HA 13,797 16,584
713,754 393,770
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8.

Profit before tax

8. PBR®i Al A

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): A £R B H) R BAT = A T0 R

Auditor's remuneration
(i) audit services
(i) interim review
(iii) tax and other consultancy services
Foreign exchange differences, net
Other commission expenses
Information services expenses
Marketing, advertising and
promotion expenses
Minimum lease payments under
operating leases
Professional and consultancy fee
Repair and maintenance
(including system maintenance)
Net impairment charge on loans and
advances to customers
Net (reversal)/impairment charge
on accounts receivable
Net reversal of impairment charge on other
financial assets and loan commitments

GFEAVATBEESH

2018 2017
—E-N\F -+ F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
1% 25 B B &
() &R 2,613 2,292
(i) FEAZE B 760 707
(i) 7% 75 K2 B Ath 55 58 AR 75 1,759 3,308
SN B T = & 33,313 (26,441)
EmAEeREX 57,445 77,171
A RE X W 28,820 25,633
MGHRE - BE Kk
EEXH 6,058 7,973
KeAEn
=IEHEE 12,227 5,082
EXRERE 63,508 68,237
WS R HEE
(BRERSHE) 45,740 38,800
LKTEFPEFR
B ES L FE 265,870 74,679
JEU KB (), RE
X R (21,583) 22,622
HEivemtEENE REE
BB B O F R (4,216) (9,887)
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9. Income tax expense 9. FMIEHHAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017: BANEH IR EAERBEED
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during flt 51 FE R T8 AR A X 16.50 (==
the year. — -+ 4F : 16.5%) B °
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHE T
Current — Hong Kong BNEf — &
— Charge for the year - FRRAX 219,045 239,056
— Overprovision in prior years - BEFERBEREE 15,763 (313)
Deferred (note 15) i FE (Bt 5£15) (100,710) (15,670)
Total tax charge for the year FARIERS B 134,098 223,073
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using REREAERE BB AR MGFE
the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as ZBIEERERERNEFTE LN
follows: HERZHERWOT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Profit before tax B A5 AT A 969,590 1,559,112
Tax at the statutory tax rate at 16.5% R ER R 16.50%:1 8 2 Fi 18
(2017: 16.5%) (ZZ—+F:16.5%) 159,982 257,253
Under/(over) provision in BEEEBETIR
prior years (EBEE R H) 15,763 (313)
Income not subject to tax BARE KA (66,688) (45,210
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A 32,107 13,524
Tax losses utilised BEEAMRIEEIE (7,058) (2,082)
Temporary difference not recognised AERELH =% (8) (99)
Tax charge for the year FRBIERAZ 134,098 223,073

194 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements

B 1% ¥ R M 5
31 December 2018
2\ +ZA=+—H

10. Dividends

10- Bﬁ/%‘

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T THE T
Interim, paid — HK$0.033 hE B -
(2017: HK$0.045) I & AR 0.03348 7T
per ordinary share —E—tF 004585 7T) 254,617 315,023
Less: Dividend for shares held under the B AR E R D S B R E
Company's share award scheme HTAT#EF RO B R A (2,939) (3,220)
I 251,678 311,803
Final, proposed — HK$0.02 RAE - B -
(2017: HK$0.045) % E B 1%0.0278 T
per ordinary share (ZZ— 1 : 00455 1) 154,313 315,256
Less: Dividend for shares held under the B AR E R B AT EIIR
Company's share award scheme T P75 I% 0 19 A% B (1,.268) (2,781)
e 153,045 312,475"
404,723 624,278

* The Company paid a final dividend of approximately HK$343,960,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017, as further adjusted to include the dividend

for shares issued under the share option scheme amounting to approximately
HK$436,000, the dividend for shares held and vested shares under the share
award scheme amounting to HK$466,000 and HK$15,000 respectively.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

ARRBERBEHE_ZT—tF+=
A=+ BLEFEZRERE4L
343,960,000 7T : EHRBE/EH FHE
A ABRES S BET R ETR
13 B % B #9436,000 © BT« KR 1D
B EBETRAEREGBROZ
% B 5 Bl 466,000 7T 5% 15,0007
T o

FARKRKAKRSALRRBRER
REEBRRBEAS LHE 50
FE -
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11. Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity  11.
holders of the parent

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

(@) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows:

BAREBERBRREMLS
g 2 F
BREARBERBFTIERLATS
Al

(@ BREXER
BREXRBANOE AN
T

Profit attributable to ordinary equity B AR E@ARKRE

holders of the parent (in HK$'000) FE 18 % R (AT T Et) 796,835 1,228,174
Weighted average number of ordinary B3 17 T AR N

shares in issue less shares held for the SR B AR 10 2 Bh 5T &)

share award scheme (in '000) A0 &5 (AT 5 7,581,163 6,923,078
Basic earnings per share (in HK cents) FRREARBF (CABE) 10.5 17.7

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
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11. Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity

holders of the parent (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is as follows:

Profit attributable to ordinary equity

SN S &

AFEERRREMLSE

o

153
R & F )

(b) BK&
5p
T

BEEN @)
o E BN E

&5k

holders of the parent (in HK$'000) i K (LA 7 T &) 796,835 1,228,174
Weighted average number of ordinary RErEFRERET
shares in issue less shares held for the E%;’%TT i 38 A /Y 00 A
share award scheme used in the basic ) SR 3L IR 10 22 B 51 21
earnings per share calculation (in '000) ARG (AT ED 7,581,163 6,923,078
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEYE - TRRKRY
number of ordinary shares: N S5 8
Share options under the BRETEIETH
share option scheme (in ‘000) 8 e 4 (LAF51) 13,231 25,934
Awarded shares under the % {7 22 Bh 5T 21 I T A
share award scheme (in '000) 22 By % 19 (AT &) 12,072 18,991
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose S EREERFTEmM S
of the diluted earnings per share B E@EREE
calculation (in '000) (AF&H) 7,606,466 6,968,003
Diluted earnings per share (in HK cents) BR#EERAN (CABIED) 10.5 17.6

BEELZBERERERAAF |2018F K

197



198

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 R P 5

31 December 2018
- )\F+=ZHA=+—H

12. Property, plant and equipment

12. ¥ -BERRXE

Office Furniture  Land and Leasehold Motor
equipment and fixtures  buildings improvements vehicles Total
BAE B K Tk HEYx
R kE BF %% RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TET TER TER TET TER
For the year ended HEZZ-\4F
31 December 2018 +-B=1+-H
L&
As at 1 January 2018 A\ZE-N\E
—HA—H
Cost R 85,266 5111 563,831 35,357 2993 692,558
Accumulated depreciation 25t E (62,524) (3.688) (115,834) (27,708) (2,798) (212,552)
Net carrying amount EEFE 22,742 1423 447,997 7,649 195 480,006
Opening net carrying amount  F#EEF & 22,742 1,423 447,997 7,649 195 480,006
Additions NE 18,289 1,634 - 8,263 - 28,186
Exchange realignment HNEE 3 & (9) - - 2 - )
Depreciation charged ERME
during the year (14,871) (910) (15,187) (5,378) (195) (36,541)
Closing net carrying amount & BREF & 26,151 2,147 432,810 10,536 - 471644
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+=-A=+-H
Cost N 103,546 6745 563,831 43,622 2,993 720,737
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (77.395) (4,598) (131,021) (33,086) (2,993)  (249,093)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,151 2,147 432,810 10,536 - 471,644
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

12. M¥E BERRZRE®

Office  Furniture and  Land and Leasehold Motor
equipment fixtures  buildings  improvements vehicles Total
PRE B & Tk MEME
B kB BT K& HE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET TAET THET THET THET
For the year ended HEZZ—t41=
31 December 2017 B=t—-HILEE
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—+ %
—A—H
Cost P 2N 69,338 3,339 563,831 27,874 2,993 667,375
Accumulated depreciation LM E (47,024) (2,470)  (100,648) (21,342) (2,332)  (173,816)
Net carrying amount REFE 22,314 869 463,183 6,532 661 493,559
Opening net carrying amount  EAIRAFE 22,314 869 463,183 6,532 661 493,559
Additions NE 15,898 1,771 - 7,466 - 25,135
Exchange realignment INE B 30 1 - 17 - 48
Depreciation charged during ~ F R &
the year (15,500) (1,218) (15,186) (6,366) (466) (38,736)
Closing net carrying amount ~ F & BREF A 22,742 1,423 447,997 7,649 195 480,006
As at 31 December 2017 RZE— 4
+-A=+-H
Cost XA 85,266 5111 563,831 35,357 2,993 692,558
Accumulated depreciation R E (62,524) (3,688)  (115,834) (27,708) (2,798)  (212,552)
Net carrying amount RAFE 22,742 1,423 447997 7,649 195 480,006
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13. EREE

13. Intangible assets

Trading Club
rights membership Total
R 51 SE A @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA& 7T & T FE T
As at 1 January 2017 and RZZE—+tF—H—H
31 December 2017 ;=T —+F
+=-—A=+—H”
Net carrying amounts B FE 1,913 910 2,823

Trading Club
rights membership Total
REE eEfesE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET
Net carrying amounts BREFE
As at 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H 1,213 910 2,823
Additions WE - 372 372
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\F
+=-A=+—H 1,913 1,282 3.195

200

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had three trading rights
in the Stock Exchange and one trading right in The Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not amortised for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 as the trading rights and club
membership have no expiry date.
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14. Other assets 14. Hh & &

2018
—®-N\F

HK$'000
FAERT

Basic contribution of the guarantee fund paid X TFTHBFREEH
to Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company BERAR(BEBEED®

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FABT

Limited ("HKSCC") REBE S E AR 690 959
Deposits with Stock Exchange: REE R TR R &
— Compensation fund - HEES 150 150
— Fidelity fund - BERES 150 150
— Stamp duty deposit - BfEfHZEe 500 500
Admission fee paid to HKSCC SXNTEBEENEAR 150 150
Reserve fund with The SEHK Options Clearing REBB AKX S ELEE
House Limited ERARINFEREE 1,541 8,892
Settlement Risk Fund paid to the Shanghai Stock ¥ E /&% H5 R 5 FTHY
Exchange HEERESD 227 239
Deposit with HKFE Clearing REAREEEER AN
Corporation Limited biogca 1,500 1,500
Funds deposited with the Securities and Futures RE SR P EEFHEREZE
Commission ENEE 50 50
Licence deposit with the Monetary Authority of RFTIIE SR EE BN
Singapore & RIR & 573 584
5,531 13,174
The carrying amounts of the Group's other assets approximate to their AEBHEMEEMNREAERELRT
fair values. BRE -
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15. Deferred tax

15. iE fE $i 18

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

FAEEHARABENEEZSH N

T

EEHRERE

Accelerated

tax
depreciation Fair value gain Total
IR B IETE A FE W= #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T T FHT
At 1 January 2017 R—E—+tF—H—H (9.172) (43,945) (53,117)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to RiEZ R,
profit or loss FTAEER 1B (291) 8,686 8,395
At 31 December 2017 and at RZZE—+F+=A
1 January 2018 =+—B8k
- N\F—-H—H (9,463) (35,259) (44,722)
Deferred tax credited to KB A
profit or loss iR SE 7 18 3,911 35,259 39,170
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\F
+=—A=+—8 (5.552) - (5.552)
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15. Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Losses available
for offsetting

15. IEER B (#)
EEHBEBEE

against future Fair value  Share-based
taxable profits loss compensation ECL allowance Total
A3 8 R KB IE AYE BB & BHER
i A B B BR ERNSH BARE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEL TAEL TAEL TAL TEL
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F
—H—H 16,441 - 6,576 - 23,017
Adjustment on adoption of ~ RMEBEHBREE
HKFRS 9 Bl 95K K5 ) 38 B - - - 43,527 43,527
Deferred tax credited/ i PNACIL)
(charged) to profit or loss ELEHE (4,139) = (2722) 14,136 7.275
At 31 December 2017 and at R-ZE—+ %
1 January 2018 +-A=+—H
RZE-\F
—HF—H 12,302 - 3,854 57,663 73,819
Deferred tax credited/ WE&EFA/ (H5R)
(charged) to profit or loss EEH B (49) 21,151 826 39,612 61,540
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=+—H 12,253 21,151 4,680 97,275 135,359

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
taxation authority. The deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
to be utilised and settled after one year and the following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

EREERNAUABGAYHAEE
HEAMBAAGREHERRELERS
BiE R R — B 5 MR B I A] KR
EAEHEERAEBELREKE - &
EAEHEERBERRN —FRT
NBRRGEE M NEFAEE
AERETNERAUNEREWT
R KA -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000
TAET

HK$'000
TR

Deferred tax assets IR AE 7 TE & = 129,807 50,745
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE B FE - (21,648)
129,807 29,097
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15. Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

The Group had total tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$74.2 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$74.6 million), that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose.

As at 31 December 2018, no deferred tax assets which have not been
recognised in respect of losses (2017: nil). These losses have arisen in
group companies that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

16. Loans and advances to customers

15.

16.

I EBLIE ()

EEBREBEBEEZ)

RZFE—-N\F+=ZA=+—H ' &
SERBEE BN IARIEBLNF74.2
BEBL(ZZE—LF :746B88%
JC) - EERE R B AR AR
ELXBEARIRRRERT AT o

R-F-NE+-_A=+—H %
BREVMBEERLBERER(Z
T—tF &) ZEZBRITABE
EF-—BREHENEERAREL A
3N RIBE A FE SR B A K B %
BIAERE -

MTEFHNERKEZX

2018
—2-N\%

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
THET

HK$'000
THER

Non-current ERB

Term loans to customers HTRFHNTEHER 2,340,000 29,918

Less: impairment o RE (1,170) =
e 2,338830 . 29918

Current mE

Margin loans FREX 9,430,753 12,917,920

Term loans to customers BTEPHNEHER 1,079,788 3,021,883

IPO loans BRAREEER - 18,705

Less: impairment B ORE (573,996) (404,853)
o 9.936,545 15,553,655

12,275,375 15,583,573

As at 31 December 2018, margin loans balances included loans to
directors of HK$253,000 (2017: nil) as detailed in note 17 to the
financial statements.

Loans and advances are categorised into excellent, good and
individually impaired. Excellent refers to exposures which margin
obligation can be met and payment of interest and principal is not in
doubt, with good quality and liquidity of collaterals. Good refers to
exposures which principal and interest are partially or fully secured
but at a relatively low level. Individually impaired refers to exposures
which loss, partial or full, has incurred and with insufficient collateral.
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. E FTEFHNERRBR
(%)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December by the BRAEERNSBEETRERFRDE
Group's internal credit rating and year end classification: MR+ A=+—HNEEEED
#T :
2018 —E_N\&
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-months not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
KXEERE EFERHE
NEAEH WE2HEH HW2HEH
FEEX FEEX FEEX et
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(F1BEER) (F2RER) (FE3IRER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal rating grade A EB AT AR FER FER FER FER
Performing Rif
Excellent B5 11,695,838 - — 11,695,838
Good 1R f - - - -
Non-performing TR
Individually impaired (ERIVERED - — 1,154,703 1,154,703
11,695,838 - 1,154,703 12,850,541
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. 8 FEFNERRKEBERX
(%)
2017 —E—+tF
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-months not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
AEERE BEERE
1218 AFEH ME2HTEE M2 HE7EH
FEEBEX FEEBEX ZEEX FEe
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(BB EY)  (F2fBE) (FE3REE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal rating grade A B & AR FAT FAT FAT FAT
Performing Rif
Excellent BF 12,229,375 — — 12,229,375
Good 1 4f 2,819,630 — — 2,819,630
Non-performing TR
Individually impaired 1& 51 5k & - = 939,421 939,421
15,049,005 — 939,421 15,988,426
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16.

Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Analysis of the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL

allowance is as follows:

12-months
ECL

1218 A 8 8

EREBEX
(Stage 1)
(B1REER)
HK$'000
AT

BX - A&

%%ﬁE’JE

w 15

FEAERARERERBEREE

DITWAT

Lifetime ECL
not credit-
impaired

A ap B HA
®TEH{E A

Lifetime
ECL credit-
impaired

A ap B HA
®TEH{E A
BK -
EERE
(Stage 3)
(E3PEER)
HK$'000
AT

EERE
(Stage 2)
(25 %)
HK$'000
AT

5t

HK$'000
TET

S&- N

Gross carrying amount as at RZZE—+4F
1 January 2017 —HA—Hf®
REEE 13,743,727 — 888,245 14,631,972
New assets originated, EEA BBEI
purchased or transferred EEENNEE 5,518,689 - 62,560 5,581,249
Assets derecognised or repaid B4R 1 FE R sk
DEENEE (4,213,411) - (11,384)  (4,224,795)
Gross carrying amount as at R -ZT—+4F
31 December 2017 and asat +-—A=+—H
1 January 2018 ERZF—NF
—RA—HH
REEE 15,049,005 - 939,421 15,988,426
New assets originated, EEA BEBEI
purchased or transferred EHEENHMEE 3,225,675 - 344,940 3,570,615
Assets derecognised or repaid B IEHER T
BEEMNEE (6,578,842) - (34,101) (6,612,943)
Amount written off during FRMHEEHE
the year - - (95,557) (95,557)
Gross carrying amount as at ~ RZ=ZZT—/\F
31 December 2018 +=A E+ H&
REEE 11,695,838 - 1,154,703 12,850,541
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. 8 FEFNERRKEBERX
(#)
The movements in the expected credit loss (“ECL") impairment LHTEFPMNER KRB RBHRERE
allowance on loans and advances to customers are as follows: K(FEHERBEXR]D N REREE
E/R/ I NE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-months not credit- ECL credit-

ECL impaired impaired
EwERN  EonAHN
1218 A #9 T H{E A T H{E A

T H{E A PN PN
BEX TEEFEERE = ERMAE m@at
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(F1REER) (20 E) (F3RER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET TAET
ECL allowance as at RZE—tF
1 January 2017 —A—HmEH
EREREE (21,854) - (308,320) (330,174)
New assets originated, purchased or B E4 - BB E
transferred BEENNEE (2,263) - (105,269) (107,532)
Assets derecognised or repaid B IETER K
BEEENEE 16,432 - 16,421 32,853
ECL allowance as at 31 December 2017 A& —+tF
and 1 January 2018 +TZHA=+—Hk
—E-N\F
—B—BHBEH
ERBEXEE (7,685) - (397,168) (404,853)
New assets originated or purchased EELXEBEER
HMEE (272) - - (272)
Assets derecognised or repaid BERILERREE
BNEE 2,539 - - 2,539
Changes to risk parameters ENEE (8,062) - (199,280) (207,342)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 HEIERREAZS
3R 164 - (164) -
Changes arising from transfer TR 7 B R Y
of stage & - - (60,795) (60,795)
Amount written off FAMHESHE
during the year - - 95,557 95,557
ECL allowance as at R-ZB-NF+=
31 December 2018 A=+—HKHE
HERBRRER (13,316) - (561,850) (575.166)
The contractual amount outstanding on loans and advances to RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H" B
customers that have been written off, but were still subject to Hif 5 1B 10 78 #E 1T 08 Bl BOE 1T B AY
enforcement activity was HK$95,557,000 at 31 December 2018 (2017: BTITRFHMERRBHRHAEES
nil). 4 & ¥ /395,557,000 T (ZE —+

)
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. ®FEFNERRKRER
(#&)
Margin financing operations TRBMERXY
The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities AEEREFRFATFPREFE

transactions, which are secured by customers' securities held as
collateral. The maximum credit limit granted for each customer is
based on the customer's financial background and the quality of

BME UEPHESHIEEMRME
R BEEPERNESERRE
TIAEEO WM E 5 M AR K

related collateral. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over HmWEREREE - REERRE

its outstanding receivables and has a credit and risk management P H R )E B EBRIB ) B AR 22 5l -

department to monitor credit risks. WA T B & A b E 12 AR P L 4
EERR -

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying pledged
securities, bear interest at a rate with reference to the Hong Kong

RTEPNIFRERAEEDER
BEHRER REELTZEERMNE

dollar prime rate and are repayable on demand. The carrying value of TR WIREREE - FEEHRH
margin loans approximates to their fair value. No ageing analysis is REEEEATEES -BRES
disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an ageing analysis does RE ERAFREREBHHLEES -
not give additional value in view of the nature of the margin loans R M P EIRMEINEE - W
business. The amount of credit facilities granted to margin clients is MERERERRIOT RTHAEE

determined by the discounted market value of the collateral securities
accepted by the Group. As at 31 December 2018, the total value of
securities pledged as collateral in respect of the margin loans was
approximately HK$25,580 million (2017: HK$49,575 million) based on
the market value of the securities as at the end of the reporting period.

FHEEBERENIREASER
MEIEIRE S IRMERE - N=
Z-\F+_-_HA=+t—HB" {ERF
REXEMENECERZSAE
A R25,580A BB T (ZT— L5

49,5758 A TT) © W TIIR B HF N W
LSHRAMEFESE -
Term loans to customers BFEFNEHER
The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining the AEETRAEFREEHER - B
interest rates, reference is made to the credit standing of the relevant ETHXE @2ZHBEPHN

customers and the quality and value of the collateral pledged. The
term loans granted to customers amounted to HK$3,380,146,000
(2017: HK$3,034,201,000), and the accrued interest amounted to
HK$39,642,000 (2017: HK$36,305,000) as at 31 December 2018. The
carrying amounts of the term loans to customers approximate to their
fair values.

BT 75 1= B R 0L LA K2 BT & 18 B 4 F
mEEREE R_T—N\F+=
A=+—HEREFEFHNTHENRA
£03,380,146,0008 T (=T —tF :
3,034,201,0007% 7T) « £ & & F B
4 $£39,642,0008 L (ZF — £ F -
36,305,000 7T) ° 45 T & F H) € B
EFXNEEHEHEEATERES °
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17. Loans to directors 17. #FTESHWER
Loans to directors, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong R IE B B A a & H) #383(1)(d) 15 &
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure AEl(BBREEFMNRER) ROIE3
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows: HEE AEELTESENERH
RN
Maximum
Maximum amount
amount At 31 December outstanding
At 31 December outstanding 2017 and during the At 1 January
2018 during the year 1 January 2018 prior year 2017 Collateral held
R=-Z—+t%F
+t=ZA=+-HK
—E-N\E FARS —E-N\E TERER R=-EB-tF
+=A=+—-H AEESHE —H—H AEEBESE —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAET TAET TAET
Marketable
Mr. LI Guangjie securities
FRAKE - 4,982 - 1,933 - AERE %
Marketable
Mr. WONG Tung Ching securities
REFRE 253 253 - - - HEES
The loans granted to directors bear interest range from Hong Kong ETEENERDNEASTLRESR
dollar prime rate +/-3% per annum depending on risk assessment on FMEMREFINTE - RTHE
collateral received and the facilities were granted to the directors for WE R mey R mE - RET
a period of 3 years ending on 31 December 2020. EZCERTH RE=ZFHZEZ

F_FHE+-_A=+—Hi -
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18. Accounts receivable

(@)

Analysis of accounts receivable
The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the
course of business of the Group are as follows:

Accounts receivable arising from brokerage

18.

AR 4T 5 75 e R TR

JE W K 1H

() FEWEHESN

AEBEBRBETRELED

A 3B B BR A T ¢

2018
—EB-N\F

HK$'000
THER

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
T T

- cash and custodian clients - RERTAERFR 33,503 187,406
- the Stock Exchange and other — B AP %
clearing houses Efth 45 E A 1,310,012 893,259
- brokers and dealers - RBERRFH 3,723,323 2,868,570
Accounts receivable arising from insurance 4R [ £ 42 AR 7
brokerage services & W SR I8
- cash and custodian clients -ReRkaAEERRP 23 168
Accounts receivable arising from securities & & f& & 2%
borrowing and lending JE W 5k 18
- brokers and dealers - RBERRFZHE 129,116 123,444
Accounts receivable arising from corporate ¥@E EEEHE -
finance, asset management, financial ERMEM MMk
products, market making and investments & & 3 7% & W 5K 18
- corporate clients, investment funds - TEEP REES®
and others & H A 156,871 318,692
5,352,848 4,391,539
Less: impairment ORE (5.625) (44137)
5,347,223 4,347,402
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. B E(#)
(@) Analysis of accounts receivable (continued) (a) EWFRIED M E)
The movements in the impairment allowance on accounts EWKRIEREREEZ SN
receivable are as follows: N

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January nw—A—H 44,137 16,960
Adjustments on adoption of HKFRS 9 RNE BB R EER
SE9 5% B Y 7Y B - 4,515
Impairment charged to profit or loss FAFGTTABERH
during the year VEAIE] 467 22,720
Impairment reversed during the year F N 3 B B R E (22,050) (98)
Amounts written off i sH & 58 (16,950) -
Exchange difference ME 5, 38 B 21 40
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 5,625 44,137
The contractual amount outstanding on accounts receivable RZE-—NEFE+ZA=+—
that have been written off but were still subject to enforcement H - B #3818 3 78 # 17 98 &l
activity was HK$16,950,000 at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil). HETENG TEPHNER

LB AREEANEEAS
16,950,000/8 7T (=& — £ :
=)o
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. EW KA (&)
(b) Accounts receivable neither past due nor credit- (b) BERBHTKREEREN
impaired & W =X 1E

Accounts Accounts

receivable receivable

Accounts from the from
receivable Stock corporate Accounts
from Exchange Accounts clients,  receivable
cash and  and other  receivable investment from
custodian clearing from brokers  funds and insurance

clients houses and dealers others brokerage
¥
RER B B R BER EF RE
TEEF HMt&HEM XEE ESRHEM RBREKLE
P W 8 FE Wt K 3E JE W 08 EhRE BEKRE B 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TR TEL TEL TR

As at 31 December RZE-N\&

2018 T=A
Sr=g
Neither past due nor SR A 280 B 75
credit-impaired BEE
BE 21,809 1,310,012 3,852,439 106,854 23 5,291,137
Less: impairment B ORE (11) (642) (762) (58) - (1,473)
21,798 1,309,370 3,851,677 106,796 23 5,289,664
As at 31 December R=B—t#F
2017 +=A
=t+-H
Neither past due nor R &
credit-impaired D) i3
EERE 155,884 893,259 2,992,014 218,220 168 4,259,545
Less: impairment BB (78) (423) (1151) (110) = (1,762)
155,806 892,836 2,990,863 218,110 168 4,257,783
Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are BT K 180 B 75 R {5 B R E B B
neither past due nor credit-impaired represent unsettled client WIR e REERFSREER
trades on various securities exchanges transacted on the last two TRBHERGAETRRE
to three business days prior to the end of the reporting year. No FERARIZEMZE=(AZ
ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, (XARAEENETERPRSAA
an ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the BRERIE - HREERR
nature of these accounts receivable. ERNZERRRENMLE -

Rk DA A SR M EIE
B W ERERE DN -
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. EW KA (&)
() Accounts receivable past due but not credit- ) CRAHEREEREN
impaired & W =X 1E

Accounts Accounts

receivable receivable

Accounts from the from
receivable Stock corporate Accounts
from Exchange Accounts clients,  receivable
cash and  and other  receivable investment from
custodian clearing from brokers  funds and insurance

clients houses and dealers others brokerage
¥
RER B B R BER EF RE
TEEF HMt&HEM XEE ESRHEM RBREKLE
P W 8 FE Wt K 3E JE W 08 EhRE BEKRE B 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TR TEL TEL TR

As at 31 December RZE-N\&

2018 =5
=t+-H
Past due less than A H = & A LA
3 months A 11,514 - - 48,451 - 59,965
Past due 3 to 12 months BEI=Z+—=
& A - - - - - =
Past due over 12 months BEI+ (@A
M - - - - - -
Less: impairment R E (3,109) - - (487) = (3,596)
8,405 - - 47,964 - 56,369
As at 31 December RZB—t&
2017 T=A
=t+-H
Past due less than B =18 AL
3 months & 17,670 - - 76,949 - 94,619
Past due 3 to 12 months BEI=2%
+=@A - - - - = =
Past due over 12 months B HEI+ =1 7
B - - - - = =
Less: impairment W ORE (4,771) = = (15,107) = (19,878)
12,899 - - 61,842 - 74,741
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18. Accounts receivable (continued)

(c)

Accounts receivable past due but not credit-
impaired (continued)

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which
are past due but not credit-impaired represent client trades
on various securities exchanges which are unsettled beyond
the settlement date. When the cash and custodian clients fail
to settle on the settlement date, the Group has the rights to
force-sell the collateral underlying the securities transactions.
The outstanding accounts receivable from cash and custodian
clients as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are considered past
due but not credit-impaired after taking into consideration the
recoverability from the collateral. The collateral held against
these receivables is publicly traded securities.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients, investment funds
and others which are past due but not credit-impaired represent
receivables arising from asset management, corporate finance,
investment holding and market making which have not yet
been settled by clients after the Group's normal credit period.
The outstanding accounts receivable from corporate clients,
investment funds and others as at 31 December 2018 and 2017
were considered not to be credit-impaired as the credit rating
and reputation of the trade counterparties were sound.

18. FEW FKIE &)

(c)

EEHEREEREN
PE W FRIE (&)

B8 BB K {5 B B B 1B 43R
ERAEEREFPREENRTR
BERSHETREERE
BMAREBEENRRERZ MY
MH@mE - —BRENTE
BEEARENSEEAHEMNK
B ASEBERKEERS LS
HEARSEENERR -
= BRI A R U B 1R
RZB-—N\EFER=_F—t&F+
A=+ —HB KRG BEK
ReRAERFREBHE
BEEBERRE - 2SR
WHEFEHERARAETA
HEBNZES o

EA@MBEREERENDZE
EFE KEESRKHEMEW
REEREFPRAEE —KE
EHEEFHATE®NEIR
RE(EABEEER 1%
BE - REEREMHET) - B
ZEN\EFEERZE—tF+=
A=+—HBREBLERF
WEE S K& H M E W R IA
BIEXAEERE REAXR
SHFEREEANALE
=® o,
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18

(d) Credit-impaired accounts receivable

Accounts

receivable

Accounts from the

receivable Stock
from Exchange Accounts
cash and and other receivable
custodian clearing from brokers

clients houses and dealers

REk BRHRK BER
TERF Et&EEMR 58
EBUHE ERHE EURXE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TR TR

As at 31 December RZZE-N\&

. BEWEE )
d) EFEEBEERRE

Accounts
receivable
from
corporate Accounts
clients, receivable
investment from
funds and insurance
others brokerage
¥
EF -RE
EhRE BEKKE #gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL TET THET

2018 +=A
=t+-H
Credit-impaired accounts 1% &
receivable fE I 3R 180 - - 1,566 = 1,746
Less: impairment W ORE (133) - - (423) - (556)
47 - - 1,143 - 1,190
As at 31 December RZE—+t#F
2017 +=A
=t+—-H
Credit-impaired EfRERE
accounts receivable e 13,852 = = 23,523 = 37,375
Less: impairment R (E (13,785) - - (8,712) = (22,497)
67 - — 14,811 - 14,878

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients are
considered credit-impaired when clients fail to settle according
to settlement terms after taking into consideration the
recoverability of collateral.
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19. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 19. ANRE RERHEME
W FRIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaxT FB T
Prepayments and deposits BENRERES 232,914 83,374
Interest receivables & U 7 B 89,507 36,878
322,421 120,252
None of the above assets is either past due or credit-impaired. The i EEREAHR AL EEER
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables B - 5T A Ll 506 B W E IR/
for which there was no recent history of default. SREEMPHTEENLE -

20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 20. B AFETABZHNEE

BE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FA T
Financial assets held for trading BIEEBENSRMEE
— Listed equity securities - FTRAES 521,238 423,450
— Listed debt securities - EHEBES 13,319,376 7,517,668
— Unlisted debt securities - EEMEBRES 473,057 601,913
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABEED
profit or loss BB E
— Listed fund investments - FmESKE 2,753 23,249
— Unlisted fund investments (note (a)) —EETELSKE
(Hf 5% (a)) 447,903 238,399
— Unlisted convertible promissory note — LA MR AN EE 23,847 =
— Other financial instruments - HEMemIT A 231,247 119,592
— Financial products (note (b)) — @ E (£ (D) 32,842,048 28,246,491
Total financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFABEHS
profit or loss TREERT 47,861,469 37,170,762
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20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

Notes:

(a) The Group invested in unconsolidated investment funds for capital
appreciation and investment income. The interests held by the Group are
in the form of participating shares which provide the Group with the share
of returns from the investment funds, but not any decision making power
nor any voting right. Given that the Group only held the beneficial interests
without holding any voting right or substantial decision making power as
principal, these investments are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

(b) The financial products invested by the Group included listed equity
investments, listed debt investments, unlisted fund investments, unlisted
equity investments and derivatives. As at 31 December 2018, cash collateral
of HK$987.6 million (2017: HK$567.4 million) and securities collateral of
HK$310.0 million (2017: HK$855.0 million) were placed to the counterparties.

The financial products acquired by the Group are primarily driven by
customers' investment needs and used as hedging instruments for structured
notes issued under the MTN Programme (note 27) or derivative instruments
acquired by customers (notes 21 and 28). As a result, the variable return of
these financial products is not significant.
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AEERENCRERDE LT
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HEEKE - FLTRARERTE
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B THRARSHEFHRS KM
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21.

Derivative financial instruments

21.

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial
instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional
amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross, is the amount of a
derivative's underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the basis
upon which changes in the value of the derivative are measured. The
notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at
the year end and are indicative of neither the market risk nor the credit

risk.

Notional
amount
EHLTH
HK$'000
TE T

TESTMIA

TREINEBE/REEXABNIT
EEMTANAFEERELES
B N BB BABAITE
TRHEREE Z2ZTEXRHEHDH
SO UWRTETABENEEZD
MEE - ZRSERANFERAT
KRR ZE - BEA =T 5 R R IR 3E
EERBRNIER -

Fair value

A¥ME

Assets Liabilities
BE =R
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#E T T & T

As at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=ZA=+—8

Cross currency swaps R X E & 1= B - = =
Interest rate swaps | 2 3 B 1,890,418 15,002 1,333
Foreign exchange forwards = B ANE 6,174,072 26,038 16,146
Index futures EHHRE 292,826 1,585 65
Options B 4,884,938 749 4,840
Warrants R HE 3 - - -
Equity swaps P& 4 4= £ = = =
Index swaps 5 &1 = A7 197,083 - 1,236
Credit default swaps FEEENIED 783,150 8,236 -
Equity forwards in HR A% A 184,717 25,222 -

14,407,204 76,832 23,620
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continved) 21. fTE €I A
Fair value
NS
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
HZELHE BE afmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHETT FHT
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE— L+ F
+=—A=+—8
Cross currency swaps R X G H 1,950,525 1,522 =
Interest rate swaps ) % 4= B 1,438,486 778 10,405
Foreign exchange forwards = B HNEE 3,382,001 69,122 4,541
Index futures BEgHE 3,727 - 270
Options HE 1,330,206 17,049 5,492
Warrants EN g ) 967,890 9,262 —
Equity swaps % % 1= BR 988,374 11,687 7,014
Credit default swaps & BE A= H 781,630 1,041 -
10,842,839 110,461 27,722

The Group entered into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. ("ISDA") master netting agreements or similar
agreements with substantially all of its derivative counterparties.
Where legally enforceable, these master netting agreements give the
Group the right to offset cash collateral paid or received with the same
counterparty. As at 31 December 2018, amounts of cash collateral of
HK$261.1 million and HK$49.1 million were paid to and received from
respective counterparties (2017: HK$106.7 million and HK$24.0 million),
which are included in “"accounts receivable and accounts payable
arising from brokerage — brokers and dealers" in notes 18 and 24 to
the financial statements respectively.
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22.

23.

Receivable from reverse repurchase agreements

The receivable from reverse repurchase agreements arises when the
securities are bought by the Group with a concurrent agreement to
resell at a specified later date and price. These securities are not
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position
as the counterparty retains substantially all risks and returns of the
securities. The amount paid by the Group is recognised as receivable.
In the event of default by the counterparty, the Group has the right
to sell the underlying securities for settling the outstanding receivable.

As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding amount paid for the
reverse repurchase agreements was HK$3,109,006,000 (2017:
HK$1,513,177,000) and was recognised as receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements.

The fair value of financial liabilities held for trading received as
collateral for the outstanding receivable at the year end was
HK$3,096,454,000 (2017: HK$1,726,882,000).

Cash and cash equivalents and client trust bank
balances

22.

23.

= 1@ [B] &5 175 = FE U R IR

AEERERACDEHEBEE
% 0 B RIS RT L —IA 8 LA TR 48
EHRAPREREERS - %F
78 7 BN AR B A A B RO R
TR RAERZTRE%ER
FHBAR D ERR R @R o KEH
ST RO BRI RE RS I WRIR © iR
SHEN AEEARLERBE
FNEERE BN EBFOR -

RZE-NE+-_A=1+—8 &
= 17 B B8 1 5% X M R &5 08 BOIE
#3,109,006,0007 7T (= Z —+ 4 :
1,513,177,0007 7T) * WHER A R M
o] B 179 =% FE W 30IA o

F R B WEUE &K 455 FE IR E 18
ERmNBIEFEEcmABEN AT
& 43,096,454,000/8 T (=& — +
£ 11,726,882,0007% 7T) °

BERBEEB/BYUREF
= FER 1T A BR

2018
—B-N%F

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
TFaxT

Cash and bank balances " & MR 174 6k 3,896,502 2,108,512
Time deposits EHEX 209,170 103,990
— with original maturity of less than - REBALPR
three months =& A 104,696 -
— with original maturity of more than - REBBEA
three months =1{& A 104,474 103,990
4,105,672 2,212,502
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23. Cash and cash equivalents and client trust bank 23. BERESEEBYUREF
balances (continued) 5 17

ERBTESRE

i}

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

Denominated in: HIATEEE: FET FTE T
HK$ BT 842,062 848,408
USs$ ETT 3,181,992 1,318,025
RMB AR 44,965 27,195
Others EA 36,653 18,874
4,105,672 2,212,502

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no history of default.

As at 31 December 2018, the ECL allowance of cash and cash
equivalents and client trust bank balances amounted to HK$22,000
(2017: HK$10,000) and HK$8,321,000 (2017: HK$12,931,000)
respectively. Both of them are classified as Stage 1 under the ECL
model and there was no transfer to/from the other stages.
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24. Accounts payable

Accounts payable arising from brokerage

R EE AR

24, FE{FRRIE

2018
—®-N\F

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FABT

HK$'000
FAERT

— clients -BP 14,840,232 13,128,476
— brokers and dealers - RBERERSHE 1,110,459 1,895,561
— the Stock Exchange and other - B AP %
clearing houses Hi L EPT 302,901 374,634
Accounts payable arising from securities BARBEER
borrowing and lending & 15 5 IE 730,926 1,479,445
Accounts payable arising from corporate finance, (¥ @& « EE S
asset management, financial products, market & @ E &M © #H
making, investments and others & XK E S IR 1,897,770 72,857
Accounts payable arising from insurance IR B 48 40 K 75
brokerage services &1~ 5 IA 1,653 1,277
18,883,841 16,952,250

The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand except
for certain accounts payable to clients which represent margin deposits
received from clients for their trading activities in the normal course of
business. Only the excess amounts over the required margin deposits
stipulated are repayable on demand.

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment within
one business day. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion
of the directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of these businesses.

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust
accounts with authorised institutions of HK$14,320 million (2017:
HK$12,348 million), Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation
Limited and other futures dealers of HK$296 million (2017: HK$274
million).

Accounts payable arising from insurance brokerage services include
those payables in trust accounts with authorised institutions of
HK$1,553,000 (2017: HK$1,277,000). Accounts payable are non-
interest-bearing, except for the accounts payable to clients.

K EBH BT3B 5 A AR B R
B EETENTFESORERR
EERERLBARTRITEES
BUBRESHRESRI - RER
4 AR BB A0 % 28 BB B
BEF -

AEBEERE—EAEXBRNBEMN
BNREFR - NEE W 8T EREK
I RARESERINZREFEH
MEE - BRIk DM TS RRERINME
@ -

B FEFHRIBMBEF RN R
A EETLRFP/M143208 85 T
T —HF12348FEBERL) B
BHEEEAFRAGREMBE
RGEAEH296EEB T(ZE—+
FMMEEBIT) ©

1R B A 40 3 755 JE S 3R IB B 4R 7R 1)
Bz LR PRy FE S 5018 1,553,00078
T(=F — +4F : 1,277,000/ 7T) °

MR B P RESN - AR T
it -
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25. Other payables and accrued liabilities

25.

HttENREREFAE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHE T

Other payables H h JE 7 5IE 205,958 129,342
Accrued liabilities JEETEE 331,442 343,752
537,400 473,094

Other payables and accrued liabilities are non-interest-bearing and

have an average term of three months.

26. Bank borrowings

26.

Hip BN REREHBETTE
HEPHHRBIMEA -

iR 1T 8 =K

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FB T

Current: mE
Unsecured bank borrowings AR SR 1T B K 9,441,083 13,781,721
Total bank borrowings IRITENAREE 9,441,083 13,781,721

2018 2017
—E—N\EF —E—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Denominated in: AT EERE: FE T TETT
HK$ BT 4,100,000 13,195,498
Us$ ETT 5,341,083 586,223
9,441,083 13,781,721

The Group's bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered

Rate plus an interest spread.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their fair
values as the impact on discounting is not significant.
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27. Debt securities in issue 27. CRITEBRS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FABT

At amortised cost (note (a)): 2 8 58 AN (BT 5 (a)

Listed unsecured medium-term notes T R R A HA 2R R - 3,126,887
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes JE R A H R 6,721,259 2,758,128

Designated at fair value through profit or loss: #§EE A FEFFAEL:
Structured notes issued in relation to financial B EE1THI S BlE TAHE 2

products (note (b)) EEMEER(EED) 19,278,013 10,478,876
25,999,272 16,363,891
Unsecured medium-term notes denominated in: 3% T 5| &5 ¥ 51| (B 9 3k L &
EHRPHER:
uss$ E 4,081,371 4,018,976
HK$ BT 2,624,053 1,866,039
RMB AR 15,835 -
6,721,259 5,885,015
Structured notes issued in BRTIEEIED
relation to financial products EETHEHE®
denominated in: HEZEBERE:
EUR X TT 66,927 133,771
HK$ BT 1,114,482 963,892
us$ ET 17,662,217 7,798,718
RMB AR% 434,387 1,582,495
N 10478876
25,999,272 16,363,891

Notes: F &

(a)  The outstanding balance of HK$6,721.3 million (2017: HK$5,885.0 million) (a) REBHEKARIENRERSRE
stated at amortised cost represents unsecured notes issued by the Company 67213 BB T(Z T — + &
under the Company's Medium Term Note Programme (the "MTN Programme"). 5,885.08 &8 L) AR R R FE A
As at 31 December 2018, the debt securities in issue bore fixed interest rates AR P EEEE (PP ERE
ranging from 1.0% to 3.5% (2017: 0.9% to 2.8%). The carrying amounts of DB THEERER - R=ZT—
the debt securities in issue approximate to their fair values as the impact NE+ZA=+—8 BETEH
on discounting is not significant. B 5 E ) E1.000E3.50 (=ZF

— -+ F :0.9%ZFE2.8%) 5 8 > R
HUBRHTEL K - BREITER
BHEMNEEEREQAFERE

(b)  The outstanding balance of HK$19,278 million (2017: HK$10,479 million) (b) REEHTE192788EB L (=T —
represented unlisted structured notes which arose from selling structured +4F 10,4798 & % 7T) 5 1R 4R A
products under the MTN Programme with underlying investments related ERAEHHEABERE LN
to listed equity investments, listed debt investments and unlisted fund FHEBTEREE  HEREHE T
investments. RAKRE EMEKKERIELET

EeREEH -
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27. Debt securities in issue (Continued)

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other
breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2017: Nil).

The debt securities in issue are repayable on demand and the Group
has a practice to satisfy the request for redemption on the settlement
date.

28. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

27. ERTEERSF @)
2 = WA R 8 R AT A AR -
Fl e sk H R BITHEEHER (=
T— 4 E)

ERTEBEHFBAKRERESR

N EE 1B G A1 4 HE,HJW»%E{E
BEko

28. EATFEFABERZN SR
=K

2018
—E-N\F

2017
B
HK$'000
TAET

HK$'000
FERT

Financial liabilities held for trading: BIEEEN SR AE:
— Listed equity securities — ETRARE 41,913 6,634
— Listed debt securities - FTEBHES 3,334,378 1,573,357
Financial liabilities designated at fair value EERAFEFABERD
through profit or loss =N
— Financial products (note) - emE®EE) 5,037,089 7,428,785
8,413,380 9,008,776

Note: Included in the fair value of financial products were cash collaterals of

HK$1,576.7 million (2017: HK$2,177 million) received from the counterparty.

226
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29. Obligations under repurchase agreements 29.

The obligations under repurchase agreements arise when the securities
are sold by the Group with a concurrent agreement to repurchase at
a specified later date and price. These securities are not derecognised
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position and
are retained within the appropriate financial assets classification. The
amount received by the Group is recognised as liabilities as the Group
retains substantially all risks and returns of the securities.

As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding amount received
from repurchase agreements was HK$13,156,517,000 (2017:
HK$6,244,957,000) and was recognised as obligations under repurchase
agreements.

The following table specifies the amount included within financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss subject to repurchase
agreements at the year end (note 20).

AEERBELOBHELEES - &
R RTSL— A AR IR TE B AR
BMLEROBES  ZERBHFAL
BRAEEGEPBRRRFPL
IR UREEBESBEED
BA - AEBEWRRHNHIRERRE
B RESASERFREZSFNEKR
#B0 [ B B B %R o

R—ZTE—NF+_A=+—8"
LB BE W a WA R 45 ) FUIE A
13,156,517,0007% JT (= & — £ F :
6,244,957,000/8 7T) + WiER A B FE
HEBEIE o

TEREANRFERRBAFEFAABRSE
B & BB E P X O 15 sk AR R Y 3K
18 (Bff 5£20) °

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
TR

Financial assets held for trading BIEEBENSRMEE
— Listed debt securities - FTEBES 6,174,839 3,413,827
— Unlisted debt securities — ELETEBEES 219,346 228,758
Financial assets designated at fair value through & 7E & A F &t A
profit or loss EafemEE
— Financial products - SRE® 12,520,221 4,443,574
18,914,406 8,086,159
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30. Other equity instrument 30. Htt =S T A

228

On 15 June 2016, the Company issued US$300 million subordinated

R-ZE—AR"E~NA+HB XA

perpetual securities (the "Perpetual Securities”) with an initial T?"TTME%EW MoK B EH
distribution rate of 4.5% per annum. Distributions are paid semi- (kBEFD  VEDRESFER
annually in arrears and the first distribution date was 30 October 450 ° ok H%E’q\fifi,ﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁqi

2016. The Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer any
distribution. The Perpetual Securities do not have a maturity date
and are only callable at the Company's discretion on 30 April 2019 or
on any distribution payment date after 30 April 2019. After 30 April
2019, the distribution rate will be reset to the 3-year US swaps
rate plus 8% per annum. The Perpetual Securities constitute direct,
unconditional, subordinated and unsecured obligations of the Company
and are classified as equity instruments and recorded as equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

On 4 May 2018, the Company made an offer to repurchase the
Perpetual Securities for cash. The price payable per US$1,000
principle amount of the Perpetual Securities was US$1,000 together
with accrued distribution payments. Upon expiration of offer on
18 May 2018, an aggregate notional amount of US$255,000,000 was
repurchased by the Company and an aggregate notional amount of
US$45,000,000 remained outstanding. The amount as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 included accrued distribution payment.
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31. Share capital 31. BA
Number of
issued and
fully paid
shares  Share capital
ERTR
BERAEE [N
HK$'000
FA T
At 1 January 2017 R—ZE—tF—H—H 6,965,301,142 6,054,025
Shares issued upon exercise of share options &% J& 4 5+ 2| 18 17 {5 B8 A
under the share option scheme (note 32) i 217 &9 A% {9 (Bd 5E32) 40,379,343 64,035
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF+=A8
1 January 2018 =t+—BE=_ZF—N\F
—H—H 7,005,680,485 6,118,060
Shares issued upon placing of shares it & i% 10 18 B 1T IR (D 700,000,000 1,992,848
Shares issued upon exercise of share options  BERRHERT BB T 17 {F BB AR i
under the share option scheme (note 32) i 217 B9 AR (5 (B9 5£32) 9,992,605 14,948
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H 7,715673,090 8,125,856
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BRERAE

32. Share option reserve 32.

230

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme") for the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and
motivating key staff members. The board of directors has the discretion
to grant share options to employees and directors of any members
of the Group, including independent non-executive directors. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 19 June 2010 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date (i.e., 18 June 2020).

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 164,000,000 shares).
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time (i.e. 16,400,000 shares). Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders' approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders' approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and ends on a date which is
not later than ten years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company's shares on the date of offer of the share options; and
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.
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32. BERERE 2

32. Share option reserve (continued)

On 4 July 2018, the Company granted 10,000,000 share options at
the exercise price of HK$1.72 per share to its directors and employees
under the Share Option Scheme. Among the share options granted,
2,000,000 share options were granted to the directors of the Company.
The option period of the share options is from 4 July 2018 to 3 July
2028. Every one-third of the share options granted will be vested
on the first, second and third anniversaries of the date of grant
respectively. The closing price of the Company's shares prior to the
date of grant (i.e., 3 July 2018) was HK$1.66 per share.

The fair value of the equity-settled share options was estimated on
the date of grant using a binomial pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.

The following table lists out the key inputs to the model used for the
share options granted in 2018:

Share price at the date of grant (per share) HK$1.72
Exercise price (per share) HK$1.72
Expected volatility 51.11%
Expected dividend vyield 4.66%
Risk-free interest rate 2.20%
Weighted average share option price (per share) HK$0.67

The expected volatility and the expected dividend vyield reflect the
assumptions that the historical volatility and the historical dividend
yield, respectively, are indicative of future trends, which may not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

RZZE—NFLtAEOAB  XQF
EREREASETRTFEES
BINAETREEEREER N
10,000,00017 & i% #E £ AT % B8 AR
EE R 2,000,000 B8 B HEE R T
AAFMES - BREMNE XS
—E-N\FLrAMNHEEZ_ZT=-N
FHAZHIt - FIRBEBRENE=
DZ—HBORRTEHAHHE—
= HAFEHRB A a KM
REEZEBEIZZE—NFE+ A=
)RR T E A &R%1.6678 7T °

NG ERRENRFETE
A-EATERURNE L BRET
et W ARFH N BB AR R P K R
B 1R R B AR A o

TRIHER-_F-N\FRLZER
BFFABANTEZ280:

REHBEHN 17278 7T
IR B (F %)

TEE(ER) 1.727% 78
T8 HA R @ 51.11%
TE HA % B M R 4.66%
= 3 b A1 & 2.20%
N 39 B Ak A 0.677% 7T
B (@R)

8 R 0E & TR AR B a R R bR 4
ER R M B ER B E TN B 2R
REBEEFNEE > MREET—
ERBERER -
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32. Share option reserve (continued)

Upon completion of the bonus issue on 9 July 2015, the exercise
price and the number of shares to be issued and allotted under the
outstanding share options had been adjusted pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme in the manner set out below:

Immediately before the completion
of the bonus issue

REARBITTRA
REARBTEAA
Number of
Date of share options Exercise outstanding
granted price per share options
RITHER
R BERENAH BRITEE iz #E K B E
24(4[2012 HK$2.48 4,856,448
24878 T
10/1/2014 HK$3.79 36,959,910
3.79% 7T
11/6/2015 HK$14.56 4,500,000
14.567% 7T

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders' meetings.

9,992,605 share options were exercised during the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: 40,379,343 share options), resulting in the
issue of 9,992,605 shares (2017: 40,379,343 shares) for a total cash
consideration of HK$11,177,000 (2017: HK$48,926,000). An amount of
HK$3,771,000 (2017: HK$15,108,000) was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share capital account upon the exercise of the
share options. After adjustment for the bonus issue, the weighted
average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised
during the year was HK$2.38 per share (2017: HK$2.51).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, GJIHL has recognised an
equity-settled share-based compensation expense of HK$5,297,000
for the share options under the Share Option Scheme in profit or loss
(2017: HK$7,611,000).
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R-F—hF Lt ANBTRA RS
1718 - RERTEBIRES T ET
REZENEONTEERBBEER
ERREEENGRBENT

Immediately after the completion
of the bonus issue

EEARBTEARER

Adjusted number

Adjusted exercise of outstanding
price per share options
RAE RABKRTHE
BROTEE BRENRE

HK$0.827 14,569,344
0.8277% 7T

HK$1.264 110,879,730
1.26478 7T

HK$4.854 13,500,000
48547 I

BREYERTRHEARIKBEX
RERAEEREZRERF -

HE-_Z—)\F+-_A=+—HI
£ E - 59,992,605 & AY #E I 17
(= Z —+ £ : 40,379,34317 & A%
FE) - B 179,992,605 BX 15 (=
T — 4 4F 1 40,379,3430% % 12) © B
#EVIR & X (B & 5811,177,000/%8 7T
— T — + % : 48,926,000/ T) °
REEIREEITEZ - 3,771,000 7T
— T —+4: 15,108,000/ 7T ) HI X
HHRERERBEEZERAR - ©
RABRAERCRFRNETENE
BRERITHEBHOMETHRES
FHR238B L (ZZE—HF: 2518
JT) ©

BHE=_Z—-/\Ft+=ZA=+—8H1
FE BRELTEHEERERE
B RE AT ST T A B8 IR N 18 = T
RBUSBEEARD A ERA R
8F935,2970008 L (ZZF—+tF :
7,611,000 JT) °
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32. Share option reserve (continued) 32.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, 2,050,000 and 3,000,000 share
option were lapsed or forfeited (2017: Nil share options was lapsed)
prior to the vesting date as a result of staff resignation.

BRERE®

BE_FT-/\Ft_A=t—HL
F € + 2,050,000%3,000,00017 & A%
R B BB N 5B A HI AT K
MARK(—E—EF U EBR
R -

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—+tF
Weighted
EVEEDS Weighted
exercise price average
HK$ per Number of exercise price Number of
share options HK$ per share options
hn #& ¥ 35 hnE F1g
ITEE B R e TEE B A
BRAET #A BRET Qe
At 1 January m—A—A 2.071 70,886,908 1692 101,266,251
Granted during the year FRFE T 1.720 10,000,000 2.440 10,000,000
Forfeited during the year F A2 I 4.854 (3,000,000) = =
Lapsed during the year FAKK 4.154  (2,050,000) = =
Exercised during the year FAITHE 1.119  (9,992,605) 1.212 (40,379,343)
At 31 December R+=A
=+—H 1.971 65,844,303 2.071 70,886,908

At 31 December 2018, the Company had 65,844,303 (2017:
70,886,908) share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme,
which represents approximately 0.85% (2017: 1.01%) of the Company's
shares in issue as at 31 December 2018. The exercise in full of the
remaining share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 65,844,303 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of HK$129,747,000
(vefore issuance expenses). The option periods of the share options
are from 24 April 2012 to 9 June 2021, from 10 January 2014 to
9 January 2024, from 11 June 2015 to 10 June 2025, from 13 July
2017 to 12 July 2027 and 4 July 2018 to 3 July 2028.

RZE—-N\F+=ZA=+—H8 " ' &K
AR 7H65,844,303%0 (T —+F:
70,886,908 B A% #E 5T 81 TH T 1A KR
TEMNBRE  GRQFRR-ZF—
NF+ZRA=1+—HEETRHH
430.85% (ZZF — £ : 1.01%) ° 1B
BARARIERTHERLER - &EHR
BEREZHTE  2EREINE
765,844,303 AR Al & AR - A
T2 58 9) [1%129,747,000% 7T (& $1 &
BATF ) o B IR M A0 HA A 17 (5 AP
MAeE-_ZT——FNUWA-_+HHEHZE—
T-_—FXANE  —E—WHFE—
A+BZE=Z-_WW&—A LA =
TE—hFEANAT—HE-_ZT_AHF
ANATHEH —E—+tFtA+=AH
E_T_LtFELA+T_HEZ=_ZT—
NELANBE-_E-_NF+L A=
E| o
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32.

33.

Share option reserve (continued)

9,000,000 share options (being the adjusted number after the bonus
issue) granted on 11 June 2015 were cancelled on 30 January 2019. As
at the date of this annual report, 1,300,000 share options were held
by Ms. QI Haiying.

Share award reserve

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the share award scheme
(the "Share Award Scheme") under which shares of the Company (the
"Awarded Shares") may be awarded to selected employees (including
directors) of any members of the Group (the "Selected Employees”)
pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the
Share Award Scheme. The share award scheme became effective on
the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date, i.e., 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme throughout the duration of the
Share Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 164,000,000 shares). The
maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to
a Selected Employee in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 16,400,000
shares).

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which
might include service and/or performance conditions, specified by the
board of directors of the Company at the time of making the award
and become entitled to the shares of the Company forming the subject
of the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant Awarded Shares
to that employee at no cost.

The voting rights and powers of any shares held under the Share Award
Scheme shall be exercised by the independent trustee who shall abstain
from voting.
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33. RO RBRFEE=

33. Share award reserve (continued)

Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at
31 December 2018 are set out below:

Number of
Average fair Awarded
value per Shares

Number of
Awarded

Date of
Awarded Shares

granted share

BRERRB
il oR g

&R B R D BR¥I

A Q¥ E R4 HEE

Number of

Awarded Shares
granted Shares vested Shares lapsed
EEERB CBXARNER
i vil: ok =

RZE-N\F+ZA=+—HBEKH
Ko oK 55 8 1) 22 B AR {7 B0 5 15 1 51 40
T

Number of
Awarded

unvested Vesting dates
AEBREB

R4 K EE BEAY

13/4/2017 HK$2.44 26,628,000 (17,236,000) (2,137,000) 7,255,000 30/11/2019
24478 7T

13/4/2018 HK$2.36 34,804,000 (11,164,000 (1,969,000 10,856,000 30/11/2019
2.3678 7T 10,815,000 30/11/2020

The Group has recognised a share-based compensation expense of
HK$69,471,000 for the Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme
in profit or loss (2017: HK$70,801,000). 26,063,000 Awarded Shares
have been either transferred to the grantees or sold in accordance
with their instructions at no cost (2017: 30,550,000 Awarded Shares)
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

3,908,000 Awarded Shares lapsed prior to their vesting date as a
result of staff resignation for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
1,309,000 Awarded Shares).

After considering the number of shares which were granted in prior
years, as at 31 December 2018, the total number of the Awarded
Shares that can be awarded was 37,381,000 which represent
appropriately 0.48% of the Company's shares in issue as at
31 December 2018.

AEBERBKHOEBFEIETH
BRI NIB R FER ARG A E
5 #9 7 (B B9 5269,471,00058 7T (= F
— 4 4 : 70,801,000/ JT) ° & &= =
E-NE+-A=+—BItEE "
26,063,000 % 52 ) % 0 B 32 T pk A&
BT AR ASIREBEFSENIERD
€ (—=Z—+t 4 :30,550,0004% 2%
f&15) o

BE-_ZT—N\F+=-_A=+—81F
FE o BN B TEB - 3,908,000/
LE K5 (ZF — £ F :1,309,000
A% 22 B AR 15) A 55 8 B BB AT K 3K ©

KEERRAFEMEDL ZBRHEK
B RZZE—NF+=_A=+—
B AETHRENEERDEERE
37,381,000f% © KIEARRRIR=ZE—
NE+-A=+—HABETHRHH
0.4800 o
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34. Shares held under the Share Award Scheme

35.

Movements of shares held under the Share Award Scheme during the
year are as follows:

2018

4. RORBTERTNEEN

—E-N\F

HK$'000
TERT

Number of
shares

gvig - gE|

iR £

e th SRR A BIA T A MR F
mEEBHMT -

2017
—E—tF
Number of

shares

B 88

HK$'000
TAT

At 1 January W—H—H 181,281 61,800,400 214,323 62,804,400
Purchased during the year RERNEE 52,5679 27,679,000 72,786 29,546,000
Vested and transferred out MR E R B sk
during the year & (91,809) (26,063,000) (105,828) (30,550,000)
At 31 December R+=A
=t+—H 142,051 63,416,400 181,281 61,800,400

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the trustee acquired
27,679,000 ordinary shares (2017: 29,546,000 ordinary shares) of
the Company for the Share Award Scheme through purchases in the
open market, at a total cost, including related transaction costs of
approximately HK$52,579,000 (2017: HK$72,786,000).

Other Reserve

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2017
represents a merger reserve, being the difference between the
issued share capital of HK$31,980,000 of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong)
Limited and the amount of share capital and share premium of
HK$1,268,440,000 of the Company transferred and issued to GJHL in
exchange for the entire issued share capital of Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited on 14 June 2010.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report

35.

REE_ZE—N\F+_A=+—
BIt&EE 5T ARKMDER
ZIA AN (BRIERBERSKA)
4752,579,000/%8 L (= T — & F:
276790008 ) E AR M IZ E A
52,579,000 8 N AR E @R (ZF —
+ 4 1 29,546,000 % & 3@ A% ) °

H ftb i 18

AEENHESBEREZHNE
ERDEHRANZR -

RZZE—NER-_T—+F+_A
=t+t—H A5EEMREELREH
whE - BERER(FEB)BRAA
B B 2 17 A% 731,980,000/ 7T 1A —
T—TFNA+MAEKRRMRH
RELEREERETRARRK
MRENALREREE L2 (FB)
ERABIMEIMEEITRAN) &
1,268,440,000/8 7T Z [ HY Z 58 ©
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36. Operating

lease commitments,
commitments and other commitments

capital

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease
payables under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

36. L&A
kHE

R-B-NF+-_A=+—8" &
SERETARELEREAE T
HEAZBNRARENNREEE
RIRABEWMT

2018
—B-N\F

2017
—LtF
HK$'000
TET

HK$'000
FER

Within one year —F R 20,851 3,397
In the second to fifth years, inclusive “ERF(REEEMSF) 33,192 -
54,043 3,397

Capital commitments BAREE

The Group had capital commitments for system upgrade and
renovation of premises of approximately HK$9,575,000 which were
contracted but not provided for as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$3,026,000).

Other commitments

The Group undertakes underwriting obligations on placing, IPO,
takeover and merger activities and financial obligations to loan
facilities granted to customers. As at 31 December 2018, the
underwriting and financial obligations were approximately HK$451
million and HK$53 million respectively (2017: HK$2,836 million and
HK$159 million).

AEBERALRGERWERBE
B AN EHE #99,575,00078 T © &K
HEFHBEITRNR-_F— )\$+_
A=+—HFUBECCE—tF:
3,026,000 7T) °

H fih & &

AEBARE BRAAEES W
BhEHEBIRERERER AR
FTEFNEZRRERERERE -
RZE—NEFE+=-_A=+—8"
HEBE R DR AISTBEES T
MES3E BB T(ZZT —tF:2836
BEBTRISOBEEBTT) °
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37. Directors' and chief executive's emoluments
(a) Directors' and chief executive's current emoluments
The current emoluments of every director of the Company paid/

payable by the Group for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2018

Directors'
fees

ExHs
HK$'000
TR

Name of director

37.

Salaries and

allowances

FaREMN

HK$'000
THET

EERBSTTBRAENS

() EERBETHASRE
[k
AEBBE-T—\FR-T
—+F+=A=+—ALLEE
Bt /A AATEEER
B e B #5000 T

BE-2-NF+=A=+-
Bk

Employer's

contribution to
pension scheme Total

ExmRiE
AR A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRR THET

Discretionary
bonuses

BEEA
HK$'000
TER

Executive directors: HITEE -
Yim Fung (Note () 7 & (Pt 3 (i) - 3,755 6,552 18 10,325
Wong Tung Ching ILE - 3,528 3,780 18 7,326
Qi Haiying ZiipicR= - 3,481 6,650 18 10,149
i Guangjie ERA - 3,420 4,312 18 7,750
Non-executive directors: FHITEE:
Liu Yiyong (Note(i)) 2% 3 (K (1) - - - - -
Xie Lebin (Note(ii) i 4, (= i) - = = = =
Independent non-executive directors: BUHHTEE:
Fu Tingmei BEXE 550 - - - 550
Song Ming R 550 - - - 550
Tsang Yiu Keung 2o 550 - - - 550
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer (Note(iii)) B R 3 (M 2 (i) 145 - - - 145
1,795 14,184 21,294 72 37,345

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report
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37. Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments

3. EERBEITRAEME

(continued) (&)
(@) Directors' and chief executive's current emoluments (a) EERESTHRAEREK
(continued) [ ACD,
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tHt+=-HA=+—
HIEFE
Employer's
Directors'  Salaries and  Discretionary contribution to
fees allowances bonuses  pension scheme Total
ExmEAKE
EEWE FHek=2EH BB SRR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director TAL TAT THETL TATL
Executive directors: HITEE:
Yim Fung (Note (i) & (3 () - 3,710 9,362 18 13,090
Wong Tung Ching I45 - 3,528 9,450 18 12,996
Qi Haiying Figig: - 3,504 8,470 18 11,992
i Guangjie ERA - 3,461 6,160 18 9,639
Non-executive directors: HHITEE:
Liu Yiyong (Note (ii)) 2% B (B 3E (i) - - - - -
Xie Lebin (Note (if)) 1 420 (B 5 (1)) - - - - -
Independent non-executive B BT
directors: EZE:
Fu Tingmei BREE 398 - - - 398
Song Ming N 398 - - - 398
Tsang Yiu Keung 2208 398 - - - 398
1,194 14,203 33,442 72 48911

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

Note (i): Dr. Yim Fung is the executive director and chief executive officer
of the Company.

Note (ii): Dr. Xie Lebin and Mr. Liu Yiyong have been appointed as non-
executive directors with effect from 19 June 2017.

Note (jii): Professor Chan Ka Keung Ceajer has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director with effect from 22 August
2018.

FAALBEEHETETHA
B TR E 3 B W 2 (E ] 5 B
a7

MizE(): MEBEEETARARNIT
EERITHEH -

MisE(): WERBLIR2HBE
AEEZZE—tF XA
THhAREZERIEHR
TES -

B EEGil) : MRABABER=_Z—N
ENA-+-—BEZE
RBIIERTES -
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37. Directors' and chief executive's emoluments
(continued)
(b) Directors' and chief executive's deferred
emoluments

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors' and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.

Certain directors were granted share awards under the share
award scheme of the Company, further details of which
are set out in note 33 to the financial statements. As at
31 December 2018, the total number of the Awarded Shares
awarded to directors amounted to 5,867,000 and a share-based
compensation expense of HK$15.1 million has been recognised
in profit or loss.

The amount of share-based compensation expense illustrated in
the below table represents amortisation to profit or loss of the
fair value of these share options and awarded shares granted to
the directors measured at the respective grant dates.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report

37. EERBETHAEME

(%)

(b)

EERKRSTRAEE
it B &

REAR > BTESTRARAE
BRiEFEBETHEALTEE
1 3 B AR 75 T 28 4% S AR
#E— BTN ®KM
32 AEBERENAFE
ERFBEHENER Rk HEAM
2EHWRKXPER) IR
HHEE - Mt ANFEEH
BHRERNEECIALAE
ENTBETRAEBHMKE
H oo

ETEERARRKRMDER
STEETEERMDER  #
— S B RN B R B R
3B RE—N\F+-_A=+
—H BRTESHNARBREE
fi% 5 42 4 5,867,000/% » 15.1
BEBTURGAEERNE
ERTERERPER -

TR B A B A 7 B O
ERAXEER/RTEENE
Pt Rk ZE IR DIRERER LY
B EMAFERERT
MBEHEE -
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37. Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments 37. EERBETHRAEMS
(continued) (&)
(b) Directors’ and chief executive's deferred (b) EERBEITHAERE
emoluments (continued) EME2)
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z2—N\F+=-A=+-—
HIEFE

Name of director

Share-based compensation reserve
Share option scheme
BRETS

Share option

Date of
grant

RHBH

expense
(Note 32)
i % fE

B &

(B &£32)
HK$'000
THET

Share award scheme

I 47 5 B =t 8

Date of
grant

RHBAH

Share award
expense
(Note 33)
% 17 48 B

B X

(B &£33)
HK$'000
TET

Executive directors: HITESE
Yim Fung (Note (i) 2 & (BfT = (i) 13/7/2017 405 18/4/2016 761
4/7[2018 101 13/4/2017 1,404
13/4/2018 2,200
Wong Tung Ching FEF 13/7/2017 405 18/4/2016 903
4/7[2018 101 13/4/2017 1,419
13/4/2018 2,222
Qi Haiying 1B 11/6/2015 756  18/4/2016 563
13/7/2017 405 13/4/2017 1,039
4/7[2018 101 13/4/2018 1,991
Li Guangjie ZHAN 13/7/2017 405 18/4/2016 451
4/7[2018 101 13/4/2017 680
13/4/2018 1,449
Non-executive directors: FHITESE -
Liu Yiyong (Note (ii)) 2= B
(B 3 (1) - -
Xie Lebin (Note (ii) EIES
(B 3 (i1) = —
Independent non-executive B FEH 7T
directors: EE:
Fu Tingmei (LR EES - -
Song Ming R - -
Tsang Yiu Keung 2 o - -
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer PR =X o8
(Note (iif)) (B 72 (i) = =
2,780 15,082
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37. Directors' and chief executive's emoluments 37. EERESTHRAEME

(continued) (&)
(b) Directors’ and chief executive's deferred (b) EERBEITHAERE
emoluments (continued) EB S (2)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE=ZEZ—t&+=-A=1+-—
HIEFEE

Share-based compensation reserve

AR R ER A E#E

Share option scheme Share award scheme
i Ak i 51 2 fig 7 22 @ 5+ 8l
Share option Share award
Date of expense Date of expense
grant (Note 32) grant (Note 33)
i % % 17 5% B)
HF3 HF3
KB H (Bt 5£32) XA A (Bt 5£33)
HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director FATT FA T
Executive directors: HITEE
Yim Fung (Note (i) ) & (Pt 3 (1) 10/1/2014 17 15/4/2015 3,441
13/7/2017 254 18/4/2016 2,063
13/4/2017 2,559
Wong Tung Ching ERF 10/1/2014 9 15/4/2015 1,871
13/7/2017 254 18/4/2016 2,447
13/4/2017 2,582
Qi Haiying AR 11/6/2015 2,755 18/4/2016 1,529
13/7/2017 254 13/4/2017 1,895
Li Guangjie FHAN 10/1/2014 4 15/4/2015 532
13/7/2017 254 18/4/2016 1,223
13/4/2017 1,240
Non-executive directors: FERITESE -
Liu Yiyong (Note (ii)) 2 %= B (9 7% (i) - -
Xie Lebin (Note (ii)) 2%, (B & (i) — -
Independent non-executive &7 FEH 7T
directors: EFE:
Fu Tingmei HiEE = =
Song Ming N - -
Tsang Yiu Keung 2 o - -
3,801 21,382

242  Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements

B 1% ¥ R M 5
31 December 2018
—E-N\F+-A=t+-A

37. Directors' and chief executive's emoluments
(continued)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive's deferred

emoluments (continued)

Note (i): Dr. Yim Fung is the executive director and chief executive officer
of the Company.

Note (ii): Dr. Xie Lebin and Mr. Liu Yiyong have been appointed as non-
executive directors with effect from 19 June 2017.

Note (iii): Professor Chan Ka Keung, Ceajer has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director with effect from 22 August
2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the directors received
total remuneration amounting to HK$55.2 million (2017: HK$74.1
million), which included share-based compensation and share
award expenses of approximately HK$2.8 million (2017: HK$3.8
million) attributable to share options granted and of HK$15.1
million (2017: HK$21.4 million) attributable to share awards
granted by Company, part of which is in respect of their services
to the Company.

37. EERBETHAEME

b)) EERERETBRARE

EB S (2)
eE(): BEBEAARARIT
FEERITHEE -

MisE(): HERBEIR2IFEER
AEBEZZE—tF XA
THhAREZERIEHR
TES -

MEaE(il) : MRBBBER=ZZ N
FENA-+-_BHEZE
REBIEMITES -

BE_Z—\F+=-_A=1+—
BiEFE &5 IR 5o
BWEERSS2EBET(ZE —
tF 74888 L) BEAR
A AR R B RR R PR R DA R
MEERNEERKRGER
MX#28H88 (=2 —+
F:38FHEB L) REHAK
H B E(R1508 &8 T (=
T—+F:214888m) H
FEATRFEERAR AR
PR 7S S A o
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows . ERERERME
(@) Cash flows from operating activities (a) RETHEANRERE

2018 2017
—E-—N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T T T

RETHELENRERE

Cash flows from operating activities

244
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Profit before tax B B¢ A A 969,590 1,559,112
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation e 36,541 38,736
Share-based compensation expense L‘A%T RERNMERXI 74,768 78,412
Effect of impairment allowance on loans 4 TEFER N & FURE
and advances to customers, net %1% FE R 265,870 74,679
Effect of impairment allowance JR& W SR B R B B
on accounts receivable, net S/ 43 2 (21,583) 22,622
Foreign exchange adjustment JEJ%Z QD RIERE vl
on provision of impairment HMNEE 38 B
on accounts receivable 21 40
Effect of impairment allowance B EFERITERBE
on client trust bank balance, net BETE TR (4.610) (9,652)
Effect of impairment allowance BERAERERELE
on loan commitments, net H R 324 (136)
Effect of impairment allowance H fth & WK TR RUE B B
on other receivables, net S e 85 (86)
Effect of impairment allowance A e ﬁ%bﬁ% & B W k1A
on receivable from reverse BETE TR
repurchase agreement, net 27) 74
Effect of impairment allowance ReRkBEEEMRE
on cash and cash equivalents, net BETEFHE 12 (87)
1,320,991 1,763,714
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 38. ZEHEREXRK T o)

(continued)

(@) Cash flows from operating activities (continued) (a) KETHELANRERE

(%)

2018
—E-NF

HK$'000
THER

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FE T

Decrease/(increase) in other assets HabEE R, (8hn) 7.643 (3.006)
Increase in intangible assets Em A EEM (372) =
Increase in financial assets at fair value EAFTEFABRZH

through profit or loss TR E EE N (10,690,707) (23,857,437)

Decrease/(increase) in derivative financial

fTEeMIARD

instruments (35 h0) 29,527 (90,821)
Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances # FERPHE R KR

to customers 2RO/ A (5 ) 3,042,328 (1,120,108)
Increase in accounts receivable JE Uk 3R I8 1 0 (978,259) (2,874,140)
Increase in receivable from reverse = [7) 2 i 195 = FE W RTR

repurchase agreements 5 (1,595,802) (1,032,469)
Increase in obligations under repurchase  [B1 B8 17 % &9 & 1B 12 N

agreements 6,911,560 5,313,999
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TERFIE - e M EAM

deposits and other receivables JiE W ZR 3B (38 00D, Rk (202,254) 31,304
(Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities BERAFEFAEZD

at fair value through profit or loss SR EE Ol L), 1 (595,396) 5,523,256
(Increase)/decrease in client trust bank BEETLRITES

balances (&g ),/ @ (1,967,363) 62,557
Increase in time deposits with original P U B B SR B B B R B

maturity more than three months =18 Bz F B 77 X 0 (484) (93,990)
Increase in accounts payable & {5 SRIE 38 N 1,931,591 2,081,212
Increase in other payables and accrued H th JE A 5RIR K e At

liabilities BEEM 63,982 201,549
Provision for impairment on accounts & A& & Bt 1 & 22 R

receivable on adoption of HKFRS 9 S 95k 18 FE MR B R (E B 1 - (4,515)
Provision for impairment on client trust & F3 & 7 B 75 3R & 2 8|

bank balances on adoption of HKFRS 9 FIRREPETRITAER

R 1B - (22,583)

Provision for impairment on loan & A& & Bt 1 & 22 R

commitments on adoption of HKFRS 9 FIR B ERALERERE - (149)
Provision for impairment on loans and FE A& & Bt 1 & 22 R

advances to customers on adoption FIRRETEPNER R

of HKFRS 9 BB E R - (236,346)
Provision for impairment on other & A& & Bt 1 & 2E R

receivables on adoption of HKFRS 9 SEI5 18 H b FE W K IR

BB B - (110)

Cash used in operations KB IXB)FHIE & (2,723,015) (14,358,083)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBEMNEH (261,184) (136,962)
Net cash flows used in operating activities #& & /EENEHIR &K EF 5 (2,984,199) (14,495,045)

B Z=
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

.GmEREREXRH T

(continued)
(@) Cash flows from operating activities (continued) (a) BKETHELENBEESR
(#&)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FE T
Cash flows from operating activities KEFHMNEHEERE
included: BIE:
— Interest received - BWAE 1,254,683 1,279,762
— Interest paid - B E 665,035 377,866
— Dividend received - BB 26,293 15,352

(b) Changes in
activities

liabilities arising

from financing

(b)) MEEFHELENEREET

Bank Debt securities

borrowings in issue

B ®1T

RITER & 1% & 5

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FTERT

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—t&—H—H 8,911,433 5,823,241

Changes from financing cash flows MEREREE 4,861,686 10,351,663

Foreign exchange movement A\ [ % &) 8,602 188,987

Interest expense A E X 310,383 25,054
Interest paid classified as operating PRERREHETNERN

cash flows BN F A (306,639) (10,258)

Increase in interest payable F& 15 1] 23 (3.744) (14,796)

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\FE—H—H 13,781,721 16,363,891

Changes from financing cash flows MEREREE (4,344,427) 9,650,436

Foreign exchange movement A\ [ % &) 3,789 (15,055)

Interest expense FERX 293,763 202,479
Interest paid classified as operating DERKREREMEN

cash flows EERRAIPS (294,414) (183,916)

Increase in interest payable FE 1 A1) 232 10 651 (18,563)

At 31 December 2018 RZZE—NF
+=A E+ 9,441,083 25,999,272

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2018 Annual Report
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39. Unconsolidated structured entity

A structured entity is an entity in which voting rights are not the
dominant factor in deciding control. Structured entity is generally
created to achieve a narrow and well defined objective with restrictions

around their ongoing activities.

Depending on the Group's power over the activities of the entity
and its exposure to and the ability to influence its own returns, it
may consolidate the entity. In other cases, it may sponsor or have
an interest on such an entity but does not consolidate it. The Group

sponsors an entity when:

(i) It is the majority user of the entity;

(i) Its name appears in the name of the entity or on the products

issued by the entity;

(i) It provides implicit or explicit guarantees of the entity's

performance;

(iv) It led the formation of the entity

Income from the sponsored structured entity and assets transferred
to the structured entity are as follows:

BEREHIL

Assets
securitisations

Interest

Income
F B WA
HK$'000
THER

4,053

2018
—E-N\F
Commission
and fees
AEREHR
HK$'000
THER

15,635

Assets
transferred
EEREE
HK$'000
TERT

597,963

39. R&RE

ERMERE

BRIEERRSROREL IR EZEH
%WI%I§MEE°#%EAL
%%%%ﬁ% % T BA HE SR E B9
B CHEEERHZRRSG

ﬁ¥$$5%§£%%m%ﬁﬁﬁ
REBORNFERERER

BB NME - HAT8 IQH\ =
BIEAAR - EHEMEBERT @ HA
EEMERIRNBELETHAER
BTRBERBGEAAR - THERB
AEBE —BEE:

D‘%r aqf
w
‘ﬂﬂfii}

HEABERTZERBOEE
NZERETNER L

BHXEARHKES

Assets
transferred
BEHREE
HK$'000
TAT

Commission
and fees
BekER
HK$'000
TAT

Interest
Income
2B A
HK$'000
TET

- 19,400 7,073,600
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40. Five highest paid individuals 40. AU B EHM AL

BRAER ALTEENHERESNT
AR HRIEI - FRARM
ERFMEEREMA (Tt
FZR)EF EFMFBERL
XM E37 - FREB=FR(ZF—
tFE MRBIFEFLRESF M E
BMFMABAOT:

Excluding amounts paid or payable by way of commission of sales
generated by the individuals, the five highest paid employees during
the year included two (2017: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 37 above. Details of the remuneration
of the remaining three (2017: two) non-director and highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

2018 2017

—E-—N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T8 T T T

Salaries and allowances e KoERL 8,286 4,656

Discretionary bonuses ) 175 7E 4L 23,100 21,700

Employer's contribution to pension scheme fE FmRAKE 5 S HRK 54 36

Sub-total INEE 31,440 26,392
Share-based compensation reserve LARR 10 /3 E T #B (E 1B

- Share option expense — ERERX 556 132

- Share award expense — R ERRX 10,958 8,457

Total @5t 42,954 34,981

The number of non-director and highest paid employees of the Group

whose emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows:

AEBEEERRSHMES DA
BREMSBEDT :

2018
—E-N\F

Number of
employees

BEAZ

2017
Bt
Number of
employees

BEA®

Emolument bands < & E
- HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 —12,500,0017% 7T Z13,000,0007% 7T 1 -
- HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000 —13,500,0017% 7T 214,000,000/ 7T 1 -
- HK$15,000,001 to HK$15,500,000 —15,000,0017% 7T 2 15,500,0007% 7T - 1
- HK$16,000,001 to HK$16,500,000 —16,000,0017% 7T 2 16,500,0007% 7T 1 -
- HK$19,500,001 to HK$20,000,000 —19,500,0017% Jt £ 20,000,000/ 7T - 1
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41. Related party transactions 4. BBMARS
(a) In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in (a) BRRIMBERERIITEHININRS
the financial statements, the Group had the following material RGN REEBRFARNE
transactions with related parties during the year. BT ETUTEARARS o

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Commission expenses to the ultimate S 1F F & &5 &

holding company ARAMASAX (i) (1,644) (2,252)
Commission expenses to the ultimate &t A R ¥ &1 540

holding company for trading in 1 % 1% & & (RQFI)

RMB Qualified Foreign Institutional BEFARSZNT

Investors (RQFII) account b i /N o

Vi3 (ii) (352) (183)

Professional and consultancy fees paid 14+ F & XK E A7)

to fellow subsidiaries MEXERERE (iif) (27,017) (22,140)
Management fee income and BARAE BB

performance fee income of a private A7 E 12 & [ R Kt

fund managed by a wholly-owned BARIKRENILS

subsidiary of the Company and ESWENEREE

invested by a fellow subsidiary WARRKIBEW A (iv) 5,148 1,716
Commission income received from the B ElFLEE S

above private fund U BR B 1 & U A (v) 177 394
Commission income of a public fund BRI XK B A F]

managed by a fellow subsidiary BEENAEES

W ER B 4 & WA (vi) 41 39

Commission income from an BHRNERAF

intermediate holding company U BR B 1 & U A (vii) 1,073 3,526
Commission income from the B AR ER AT

ultimate holding company WER B A € A (viii) 23 70
Underwriting fee and sponsor fee B EERAR

income from the ultimate holding WEH BB &

company REE I A (ix) — 176,304
Management fee income from a public BZARA & 2 & B

fund managed by a wholly-owned NAEIEEEEN

subsidiary of the Company and TIRAAEER

invested by the intermediate holding A& & & WHELH

company EEEIW A (x) - 1,082
Management fee income from a public BARAR 2 &M B

fund managed by a wholly-owned RAIBEBERFN

subsidiary of the Company and 7R A A4 A

controlled by the intermediate holding A% & & WHLHY

company CREE-'ON (xi) 417 1,658
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41. Related party transactions (continued) 4. BBMARZ
(@)  (continued) @@ &)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET

Management fee income and handling BZAR& & &K B

fee income from a public fund AEIBEERKRFR
managed by a wholly-owned M E R RIIRE R
subsidiary of the Company and NEE S UWEH
invested by a fellow subsidiary EEBRTFEER
WA (xii) 4,223 5,357
Commission income from a public fund B 2% HE & W EA
mE WA (xiii) 398 265
Commission income from a fellow ENEES =N
subsidiary U BR B 1 & I A (xiv) 1,066 55
Commission income and handling B —RAZRMEQR
income from another fellow subsidiary — YCER &Y 1 & g A K
FEEHEA (xv) 64 13
Commission income from an immediate B B £ % % A &
holding company WER B9 1 & d A (xvi) 610 =
Equity distribution on Perpetual XA THRNERAA
Securities paid to the intermediate Bk B E S
holding company R 2 9k (xvii) (17.621) (43,825)
Consultancy service fee and corporate 1 F & 48 #5 J%
finance service fee paid to the NEWN B RIREE
ultimate holding company R EmE
R & (xvii) (26,808) (15,158)
Management fee income and handling BZARX & 2 &K B A
fee income from a private fund AIERRERNE
managed by a wholly-owned AEIEHO LS E
subsidiary of the company and ®UEL R B IR B K
controlled by a fellow subsidiary ANFES (xix) 800 =
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(1)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi

(vii)

(viii)

The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were
calculated based on the percentage of the transaction value stated
in the Cooperation Agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company.

The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were
calculated based on the percentage of the transaction value through
RQFII account as stated in the Cooperation Agreement signed with
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The professional and consultancy fees paid to the fellow subsidiaries
for the provision of capital market information were charged
at HK$27,017,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$22,140,000).

The management fee income and performance fee income received
from a private fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and invested by a fellow subsidiary were charged at 1.5%
per annum of the net asset value at the last working day of each
month and 20% of the positive increment in the net asset value for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The commission fees received from the private fund mentioned in
note (iv) above included commission income which was based on
0.15% (2017: 0.15%) of the transaction value.

The commission income received from the public fund managed by
the fellow subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the signed
brokerage agreement with the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The commission income received from the intermediate holding
company was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage
agreement with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The commission income received from the ultimate holding company
was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement
with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The underwriting and sponsor fee income received from the ultimate
holding company was based on the underwriting and sponsor
agreement with the ultimate holding company.

4. BEARZ#)

@ (&)

(iii)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

X FREERIRNMAS
X R EARAN —K 2
EMBARZILNE ERZE
IR ZEBA D LEE -

X FREERIARNMAS
X R EARAN —KE
EMBARZILNG ERZE
I B3 Y% BRAFIIBR P X 5B
BALEHE -

BT N\F+=-_A=+
—BULEFERBERHNBAR
REEATHEERNNEE
N ##3E 427,017,00075 7T
(== — + 4 : 22,140,0008
L) °

BEARRZEEN B AR E R
FRZHBRARRENILE
ESWHHEEREWARX
RBWAREE-_T—/N\F
+-—A=+—BLFELKA
Br—EIEEMNEESE
1500 A K & BT (AL N
FE 2000 UL & o

B B FE(iv) By 2t 7L 25 2 2 YRR
HNESEREERIZEN
0.15% (=& — £ 4 : 0.15%)
SEBMERA -

BERRMBAREENAE
H e WERE M E WA RE
ARR—REEWNBERRE
SRS 42 1 <5 51 BR B TE B 1R
# .

BT AR AR U R
WA Ty iz BARNE 2 A B
D) FR L AR A th v D1 BR Y
EEKE -

B & &R A BRI A2
WATVEBRARE —REE
P I8 2 B 2% 3L A0 A A2 10 7 B
PANEBEKRE -

B & &R A R A B 8
RREEREREERAQR
LA B SH R B 1 IR

i

\
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(@) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(x)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

The management fee income received from a public fund managed
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by the
intermediate holding company was charged based on the percentage
prescribed in the investment management agreement.

The management fee income received from a public fund (2017:
two) managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
controlled by the intermediate holding company was based on a
percentage prescribed in the respective investment management
agreements.

The management fee income and handling fee income received from
a public fund (2017: two) managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and invested by a fellow subsidiary and the intermediate
holding company were based on the percentage prescribed in the
investment management agreement.

The commission income received from a public fund mentioned in
note (xii) above was based on the percentage stated in the signed
brokerage agreement with another wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The commission income received from a fellow subsidiary was based
on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The commission income and handling income received from
another fellow subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the
signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The commission income received from an immediate holding company
was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement
with an immediate holding company of the Company.

Included in Group's balance of Perpetual Securities was nil amount
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$971,125,000) owned by the
intermediate holding company. The accrued distribution payable
to the intermediate holding company was nil amount (2017:
HK$7,316,000).
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4. BEARZ#)

(a)

(%)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(#)

BEARBZENBARE R
RENERARREN RS
E2WmHER BN ARK
EEBBHERTNE S LK
B e

BARARIZEMBAREE
Ko Ao 428 AR B 42 il 9 — 18
(Z2E—tF WMEBE)AEHE
S W ER A 5 1R B U A 12 AR
BREEBERAMRENED L
I ER o

BARR2EHERREE
Ko R Z M B A B I R R P BR
RAKEN BT+t
FMER) ASESWRNE
BERFRERARRKREE
I 175 5 M TE B9 B 53 LE URER o

B & 3B = (xii) BTt A B B
S UEEY R 2 IR A Th iR B K
RAB—REEMBRRE
YRR EIIANE D
Y E e

B R F M S AR WE 2
WA Ty iz BARNE 2 A M B
R A)FE LA A AT R 51 BR Y
EEKE -

EEERCEN 1= PN
MEWRATIREARFE2E
B B8 2 ) 2% 3L O A8 AT 1 5 )
ANEBKRE -

BEERERARDKRRNMAS
WA RT BB A THZEEAR
RAEEEBRARBEILMNE
KHhAIBAHOEERE -

REBERANKEZ 4
#HeEER-_Z—N\F+=A
=t+—HBEFNERAEE
BEHREZ(ZE— £ &F:
971,125,000 JT) o FE {5 &
NEBRARNET DK A
T (ZZF—+%F :7316,000/%
JT) °
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

The consultancy service fee and corporate finance service fee paid
to the ultimate holding company were based on the pricing stated
in consultancy services and corporate finance services agreements
with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The management fee and handling income received from a private
fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
controlled by the intermediate holding company were based on the
percentage prescribed in the investment management agreement for
the year ended 2018.

Included in the Group's accounts payable was a broker payable due to
the ultimate holding company of HK$6,383,000 (2017: HK$6,723,000)
arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December 2018. The
balance was unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement
day under the relevant market practices.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable was a broker receivable
due from the ultimate holding company of HK$17,644,000 (2017:
HK$16,704,000) arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December
2018. The credit terms provided to the ultimate holding company were
consistent with the practice of the securities dealing industry. The
balance was unsecured, interest-free and receivable on the settlement
day under the relevant market practices.

Included in the Group's prepayment, deposits and other receivable
of HK$13,763,000 (2017:HK$591,000) was advance repayment to the
fellow subsidiary for professional and consultancy fee mentioned in
the note (iii).

Included in the accounts receivable were management fee and
performance fee receivables due from investment funds managed
by the Group mentioned above of HK$649,000 (2017: HK$1,523,000)
arising from the provision of asset management services as at
31 December 2018 mentioned in note (iv) and (xix). The balances were
unsecured, interest-free and receivable monthly in arrears.

4. BEARZ#)

(a)

(%)
B

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

(&)

SN FREZERARNER
RBEEREEBRERSEER
HARR2EAMBARNE
AR o 1 BB AR T 6
Pt 1 %€ {8 R -

BEARRZEHBARE R
Ko AR o 22 B A B 22 1) B AL &S
He BN ERERTFEE
WATREBEEZE-Z—/\F
MEREEEREME ANE
DL e

AEEBNEMNREBELER
—E-N\F+=ZA=+—
HEEZSFELENEN&
BEBRRAREFHFRR S RE
6,383,000/ o(= T — +
£ 16,723,000/ JT) > B &
HETISIES - ZEBEE
i B RARBERS
o

AEEHNERKEBEBLER
—E—-NFE+ZA=1+—
HEEZRSEENERS
BERRADIFHFRHRE
17,644,000 T (=Z T — £
£ 116,704,000/ JT) ° [A &
BERARERENEEK
HEAEFBETERNEN—
o RIBFAETIZEG - &%
EHRAEER 2ERAR
HEARWK -

AEENENKE ZE& K
H b FE U2 3% 7813,763,0007%8
7T (= — + & :591,0007%
JT) B 3 B MY a2 (i) BT i 5
RBAERR RN E AR

JFE Uk R T8 B FE BT 5 (iv) B (xix)
it =T —NF+=A=
T HEREEEEEREE
A R FE IR B il AN = B 1R
HERSHEERBRE LK
# 31 B 7 18649,0007% T (=
T — 4 : 1,523,000/87T) °
ZEERR TR B RA
RN ABIKER °
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xxiv)

(xxv)

(xxvi)

Included in the Group's accounts payable was the accounts payable to
the public fund mentioned in note (vi) above arising from dealing in
securities of nil amount as at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$263,000).

Included in the Group's accounts payable were amounts due
to the intermediate holding company of HK$11,371,000 (2017:
HK$11,595,000), the immediate holding company of nil amount (2017:
nil), the ultimate holding company of HK$79,000 (2017: HK$221,000),
the fellow subsidiary of HK$56,300,000 (2017: HK$93,844,000) and
another fellow subsidiary of HK$15,930,000 (2017: HK$9,054,000)
arising from dealing in securities, futures and foreign exchange as at
31 December 2018. The balances were unsecured, interest-free and
payable on demand.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable was the accounts
receivable from a public fund mentioned in note (xiii) above arising
from dealing in securities of nil amount (2017: HK$2,959,000) as at
31 December 2018.

(xxvii) Included in the Group's accounts payable was the accounts payable

(xxviii)

to the private fund mentioned in note (v) above arising from dealing
in securities of nil amount (2017: HK$893,000) as at 31 December
2018.

Included in the Group's accounts payable was the accounts payable
to the ultimate holding company mentioned in note (xviii) for
the consulting service fee and corporate finance service fee of
HK$5,000,000 (2017: nil) as at 31 December 2018.
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4. BEARZ#)

(a)

(%)

Y o

(xxiv)

(xxv)

(xxvi)

(xxvii)

(%)

RZZE—N\F+=—A=1+—
EMASEENRBEREE
BB 5 E AR SR R
VTt A EESHRES
BT (ZF — £ 4 : 263,000
P TT) °

RZE-—NFE+ZA=+—
H A"&EBZENERE
FREEZFFH  HE RN
EEEZEMFNERRD
A 3K 1811,371,00058 T (= Z
— 4+ 4 : 11,595,000 JT)
ENEEZERARZTHE T
(ZE—+tF - THmx) K
i & #4E IR 2 879,000
(= T — £ £ :221,000
BT BRRRME A
756,300,000/ T(= & —
+ 4 : 93,844,000 T) &
FE 5 — R R KB A A
15,930,000% (= T — +
4 : 9,054,000 JT) ° #Z &
MIEER RERARE
KB AT o

RZE—NF+ZA=+—
BOASEERRERE
32 B 3 (xiii) BTt 2R B R B B
CHREBEBSHFELENRES
(ZF — £ F:2,959,000%
JT) °

RZF—N\F+=ZA=+—
BMAEEENRERE L
SR = (v) AT it it B B 2B 5 E
ERNENALEESRETH
L (=% — £ 4 : 893,000
JT) °

xxvi) R=ZE—N\FE+_A=+—

H & 78 & B fE 1 50 I8 B 1 1R
A5t ST R (xviil) BT 3 79 B 4%
£ B% A 8 7% 5 & F 5,000,000
BLT(ZTE—tF:F)-
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41.

Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The Group's ultimate holding company, Guotai Junan, is subject
to the control of the PRC Government which also controls a
significant portion of assets and entities in the PRC (collectively
referred to as "state-owned enterprises”). Therefore, transactions
with state-owned enterprises are regarded as related party
transactions.

Majority of the bank borrowings and deposits of the Group
were entered into with state-owned banks. In addition, the
Group enters into transactions with state-owned enterprises that
relate to the Group's normal business activities, including but
not limited to brokerage services, corporate finance business,
asset management business, loan and financing business
and investment holding and market making business. These
transactions are entered into in the ordinary course of business
at an arm's length and under the normal commercial terms and
conditions as to those that would have been entered into with
non-state-owned enterprises, which were not considered as
individually significant in accordance with HKAS 24.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (ii), (iii),
(vi), (vii), (viii), (xiv), (xvi) and (xviii) also constitute continuing
connected transactions to be disclosed in the annual report as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel of
the Group are disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.

SRS

(a)

(%)

AEBENREERARBEZR
B XRREBFES > mAE
BR A 7 42 1) AR B A A K EB
PEEREE(HLBAESA
] Bt - HEBEEN
REVEHRBBH ARG °

KEEKILHRITERMF
FIEAR A IRITRISL © LA -
ANEEHEEE D ETHE
AEBRABEBETEE @
R BREETRERLLR
%W rEREXR BET
BER BERERBEER -
?xﬁ? i RS o %E
RETDRBEEXEBBEFR
i iz B IE R B > EETH
REZBEURNETEHEER R
GEfET WHEBRESZS
AR 24578 8 # 18 & (&8 B
BEARS o

£ 3 & @) )~ i) > (vi)
(vii) ~ (viil) ~ (xiv) » [xvi)&[xviii)
HW @ ARSI EKA
FHRBEBE I FERER %(E
ZR FWARAE+LTOAE) -

FAEBEXEEBASHFMEF
BRI RRMFEITHE -

EHEELZBEBRIERABRAR |20185F &
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42. Financial risk management 42. e ERERE

256

The Group's activities mainly expose to credit risk, market risk and
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management framework focuses
on the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and monitoring of these risks
which are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group's
aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and
return and minimise any potential adverse effect on the Group's
financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are approved by the board of
directors and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information.

AEBNEBEERBRE SR

mEZRBREREE SRR ZISE
BERBREBEREFRSN - 57
- BEXREEZEFREFBER
A emEE o Bt - AEER
ERREEMFERREDR - I
135 RS B B i R BB E R A D

REEBREHRRK -

AEBEORBREERRAEZTSH
o BEBMNESNEARER - R
TE 8 O L e PR R 3R I N BS AR
o B % {56 P R 58 I 5t HE B9 B AR BR

The board of directors provides written principles for overall risk TIRE c EFEHERBREREEG
management. The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies EE@RE - AEEF R ER

to reflect any change in the market and clients.

BERERE - URBRDSRES
EARH -

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit REES QIQFEE’JIEJ—L 2 5

risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The policies for managing each of SERR- miZRRBERDE R

these risks are summarised below: [= Bz o EEEXIEJ—L 2 B BSR4 1A
T

Credit risk EER R

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to
customers, accounts receivable, debt securities, bank balances and
client trust bank balances which are included in the Group's asset
portfolio.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The board of directors delegates to the credit committee and risk
management committee the duties to monitor the credit risk of
the Group. Members of the credit committee and risk management
committee include, inter alia, the chief executive officer, responsible
officers, the chief financial officer and the head of related control
departments. The credit committee is responsible for the development

= E ‘Igfﬁﬁﬁglﬁfifz%ﬂé
EF'E’] YT'%)E'E']E B R

CBEBES fETT R R E P
15%5&?1:@@%

15 A J7 Bz R B8 75 1] J% 4% FE I 7R

EEEXRR fo%i;\&ﬂlg =L
ZESERASEEERR - 58
KE\%&HAMEKMEﬁ%(H
FEEITHRES BF /\E\‘é
&SRB R AR BE I EB T E B

1:??%@%%?*?%@%5‘“&%

of financing business and approval of major credit exposure and the EFZ2EERRKER Afi% g8
risk management committee to provide independent supervision of all e BB ‘Fﬁﬁ EERBBH R
credit risk metrics and limits. MR -
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRRAKRERE®

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The risk management department and equity finance department are
responsible for approval, monitoring and review of the Group's credit
risk of margin clients. It is also responsible for making settlement calls
when the trades of margin clients exceed their respective limits. Failure
to meet margin calls may result in liquidation of the client's position.
The credit limit and margin limit for each client and the lending ratio
of securities acceptable as margin collateral prepared by the equity
financing department and approved by risk management department,
the significant transaction will be approved by the credit committee.

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain
an element of credit risk. The Group minimises such risk exposure
by performing a detailed credit analysis, and dedicated professionals
are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance. These key
investment decisions are also subject to approval by the credit
committee.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for subscription
of new shares are normally settled within 1 week from the drawdown
date. Forced liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail
to settle their shortfall within a specific period of tolerance after the
IPO allotment result is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor's and
Moody's ratings or their equivalents are used by the risk management
department for managing credit risk exposures as supplemented by
the Group's own assessment through the use of internal rating tools.

The Group's bank balances are deposited in respectable and large
commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held
in segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorised financial
institutions in Hong Kong. The credit risk of bank balances and client
trust bank balances is considered to be manageable.

FERR®)

12 5 12 82 IR BB 12 ] ] 7R BEIB R (48
EeERdl@ERFHEEL
e BEREAASENTRER
EERR - ETARTREFHX
SEBHEERNRBEHZELMHE A
e REMENEFARERTE -
BEEPHEERBERFRBRBIANR
REBSHMIET REARE E
HET AR TRERNESEN
R -BARZEHEERESH
fE o

AEBERATEFEOERER &
FEFAREEEEARRAE - K
SEERETHAGEITRE
BRRRALE  LHEKREXRALE
BRERRE - ZFXTERERR
NAREEZEGHE -

RTEPHNERRRBAREERBR
BRROBRARBEEER  — K
REERRAME-FARNEE - {HE
FRERDAEERBLERDMER
MEERRMAREGELZE
Al ERET R -

BEBRESME  RREEIFR
RNBEEFR(MEEERRE
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRRAKRERE®
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Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients
arising from dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-
against payment settlement term of 1 to 3 days. The Group allows
credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities
transactions (normally from T+1 to T+3 days). All applications for
credit limits must be reviewed by the credit manager and approved
by risk management department or the credit committee. The risk
management department and equity financing department determines
whether a forced liquidation action is to be taken against clients
with overdue balances on a case-by-case basis. The credit committee
reqularly reviews the overdue balances.

The Group only accepts margin deposits in the form of cash for
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking.
No unauthorised transaction is allowed to be executed if the current
position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit
placed and the aggregate of the required margin deposits of each
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange contract are timely
monitored by both the dealers and the risk management department.
Margin calls will be executed by the on-site duty staff for futures,
options and leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business if there is
a deficit with the margin deposit. Forced liquidation of the customer's
position will be executed if the customer fails to meet the margin calls.

With the above stated controls, management considers that the
credit risk of the Group resulting from securities, futures, options and
leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business as well as margin and
other loan financing is manageable.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large
financial institutions which are governed by regulators. The credit risk
of accounts receivable from brokers and dealers is considered to be
manageable.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from corporate clients and
investment funds arising from corporate finance, asset management
and investment holding and market making businesses are manageable
as the credit rating and reputation of trade counterparties are sound.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and
other clearing houses is considered to be minimal.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRRAKRERE®

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9, where the impairment requirements
under HKFRS 9 are based on an expected credit loss model. The Group
applies simplified approach to measure expected credit losses (“ECL")
on accounts receivable; and general approach to measure ECL on loans
and advances to customers, time deposits and other financial assets
accounted for at amortised cost as well as loan commitments. Under
the simplified approach, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the general approach, financial
assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change
in credit risk since initial recognition: Stage 1: 12-months ECL, Stage 2:
Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Group's historical experience and expert credit risk assessment,
including forward-looking information. The loan and advances use the
number of days past due (“DPD") and loan-to-collateral value (“LTV")
to determine significant increase in credit risk. For non-standard
financing, internally derived credit ratings have been identified as
representing the best available determinant of credit risk. Credit risk
is deemed to have increased significantly if the credit rating has
significantly deteriorated at the reporting date relative to the credit
rating at the date of initial recognition.

Calculation of expected credit losses

The ECL are assessed by the Group on semi-annual basis. Based on
DPD, LTV and internally derived credit ratings, loans and advances to
customers are classified into 3 stages.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRRAKRERE®

260

Credit risk (continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Calculation of expected credit losses (continued)

ECL for retail margin loan under stage 1 is calculated on collective
basis. The probabilities of price changes of various scenarios are
calculated based on the observed historical price movements of the
underlying collateral stocks. The ECL of each scenario is then calculated
in accordance with the respective loan exposure. When the retail
margin loan classified under stage 2 and stage 3, the lifetime ECL is
calculated.

The ECL of non-standard financing is calculated on an individual basis.
The Group has pre-defined loss rate of each loan's category. The
loss rate are reference to the default rate for performing and non-
performing grades from external rating agencies. As at 31 December
2018, the average loss rate for 12-month ECL and lifetime ECL was
0.11% (2017: 0.05%) and 48.66% (2017: 42.28%) respectively.

If there is material decrease in collateral value and the full recovery of
the loan is in doubt, the retail and non-standard loan will be classified
into stage 3. For the loans classified as stage 3, the Group may further
calculate the ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure
the expected credit loss. Each scenario is associated with different
exposure at default and probability.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRRAKRERE®

Credit risk (continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Incorporation of forward-looking information

When estimating the ECL on loan and advances to customers, the
Group has incorporated forward-looking economic information
through the use of industry trend and experienced credit judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors, and through the use of multiple
probability-weighted scenarios by the stock market analysis.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the
reporting period, in relation to each class of financial assets, is the
carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the statement of
financial position.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure to the Group at 31 December 2018 and 2017, without taking
account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
(@)  Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and the
majority of cash and bank balances are located in Hong Kong.
As the Group's bank balances and client trust bank balances
are deposited with a number of financially sound financial
institutions, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration
risk of the Group's bank balances and client trust bank balances
is insignificant.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(continued)
(b)  Loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from
clients

The counterparties of the majority of loans and advances to
customers (including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan
financing) and accounts receivable from clients are individuals
who are mainly located in China. The equity financing
department and risk management department daily prepares an
analysis of key margin client and futures, options and leveraged
foreign exchange client exposure for review to avoid excessive
concentration of risk. As the Group trades with a large number
of diversified clients, in the opinion of the directors, the
concentration of risk of loans and advances to customers and
accounts receivable from clients is manageable.

() Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as clearing
houses and others
The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses,
brokers and dealers from its securities, futures, options and
leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business as well as other
receivables from asset management, corporate finance and
investment holding and market making businesses. Responsible
officers timely monitor excess deposits placed with dealers and
brokers to ensure the concentration of risk of accounts receivable
is manageable.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRRAKRERE®

Credit risk (continued)

Securities borrowing and lending

In the normal course of brokerage business, the Group may enter
into securities borrowing and lending arrangements with financial
institutions and the Group's customers. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group borrowed equity securities of HK$125,785,000 (2017:
HK$123,112,000) from financial institutions and set aside equity
securities of HK$549,155,000 (2017: HK$1,263,034,000) pledged by
margin clients, for such lending arrangements to customers. Cash
collateral of HK$730,926,000 (2017: HK$1,479,445,000) was received
from the customers while HK$129,116,000 (2017: HK$123,444,000) was
placed to the financial institutions as at 31 December 2018.

The Group maintains no net position in such securities borrowing
and lending transactions and is not subject to significant price risk.
However, under the securities borrowing and lending arrangements, the
cash collateral received and cash collateral placed are included in the
accounts payable and accounts receivable from brokers and dealers,
respectively. The Group is principally liable for repaying the borrowed
securities in case of any default by the customers.

In the normal course of financial products, market making and
investments business, the Group may also enter into securities
borrowing and lending arranged with financial institutions. As at
31 December 2018, the Group borrowed exchange-traded funds of nil
amount (2017: nil) from a financial institution for the market making
activities and placed nil amount (2017: nil) to the financial institution
as cash collateral.
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The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which
are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in
the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed it to
interest rate risk and price risk. The market risk mainly includes cash
flow interest rate risk and price risk. The Group has established policies
and procedures for monitoring and controlling the market risk arising
from these financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's loans and advances to customers,
accounts receivable, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, accounts payable to clients, bank borrowings, debt
securities in issue, receivable from reverse repurchase agreements,
obligations under repurchase agreements, client trust bank balances
and cash and bank balances. Debt investments usually bear a fixed
rate interest and they are managed through the strategy of trading
them within a short period of time.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. cR AR EE )

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Bank borrowings and margin loans receivable at
variable rates exposed the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Other
financial assets and liabilities which are mainly carried at amortised
cost are either non-interest-bearing or fixed interest-bearing with
short term maturities within one year, of which the interest rate risk is
also considered to be minimal. The Group mitigates its interest rate risk
by monitoring market interest rate movements and revising the interest
rates offered to its customers on an ongoing basis in order to limit
potential adverse effects of interest rate movements on net interest
income. The Group regularly calculates the impact on profit or loss of a
possible interest rate shift on its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin
loans receivable, debt securities investment and interest-bearing bank
deposits.

The following table illustrates the potential impact, of a parallel upward
or downward shift of 100 basis points in interest rate curves with
all other variables held constant on the Group's net profit for the
next twelve months from the reporting date, based on the Group's
positions of interest-earning assets, interest-bearing liabilities and debt
securities investment at year end.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Interest rate increase 100 basis points
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Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax
R i A& R A0 Gk 2)
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt F
HKD'000 HKD'000
THET FHT

Interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities 44,912 57,456
EREERFGRARE

Debt securities investment (140,255) (217,974)
BHEHRRE

Net Amount ¥ 58 (95,343) (160,518)
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. cREREE#)
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Market risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (continued)

Interest rate decrease 100 basis points
M BT BE1005 3

45 L B ()
5 880 5 547 ()

Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax
R i A& R A0 Ok 2)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKD'000 HKD'000
THET FHT

Interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities (44,912) (57,456)
EREENRGEARE

Debt securities investment 140,255 217,974
EREHFTE

Net Amount;5 %8 95,343 160,518

The estimated 1% increase or decrease in interest rate represents
management's assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual reporting period. The
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the financial products and derivative financial instruments held
by the Group are structured as debt securities in issue for sales to
customers. They are not subject to significant risk as the risk has been
transferred to customers accordingly.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk from equity instruments
and fund investments held by the Group which are classified in the
statement of financial position as financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Price risk is the risk of changes in
fair value of financial instruments from fluctuations, whether such
a change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual
instrument or factors affecting all instruments traded in the markets.
The Group mitigates its price risk by performing detailed due diligence
analysis of investments and dedicated professionals are assigned to
oversee and monitor the performance of investments.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Other price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
assumption that the price of all the investment of equity instruments
and funds move according to the historical correlation with the Hong
Kong Hang Seng Index and other relevant indexes. The analysis is based
on the assumption that the equity index had changed by 10% with all
other variables held constant, it represents management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in equity index.

Price sensitivity analysis

HEERED

| F10%
T F&10%

Change in relevant indexes

Increase 10%
Decrease 10%

The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the financial products and derivative financial instruments held
by the Group are structured as equity securities in issue for sales to
customers. They are not subject to significant risk as the risk has been
transferred to customers accordingly.

Besides, the asset quality of the margin clients' margin collateral will
deteriorate when the market comes down drastically, scenario analysis
and stress testing are regularly performed on an individual client basis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign
currency exchange rates will affect the Group's financial results and
its cash flows.

The Group's foreign exchange risk principally arises from its leveraged
foreign exchange dealing and broking business as well as the Group's
transactions which are denominated in currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollars.
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For the leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business, the Group
hedges the majority of the client positions through back-to-back
transactions with external counterparties. As the Group adopts a
stringent control over its positions, it is considered that foreign
exchange risk exposure is manageable.

The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars ("US$") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Group is not exposed to material foreign exchange risk because HK$
is pegged with US$. The Group also conducts appropriate hedging
activities when it is exposed to material exchange risk in RMB. Other
foreign currency exposure is relatively minimal to its total assets and
liabilities. The foreign exchange risk is daily managed and monitored
by the Treasury and Finance Department. As a result, it is considered
that foreign exchange risk exposure is manageable.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash,
the availability of funding from an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying business, the treasury department
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining available committed
credit facilities from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by treasury department to
ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity
reserve (comprising undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows in strict compliance
with statutory requirements. This is achieved by monitoring the
liquidity position of the individual companies within the Group on a
daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet
all obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements such
as the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRRAKRERE®
Market risk (continued) s E &)
Foreign currency risk (continued) S FE Jo Bz (48 )
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Group's
financial liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash

flows:

As at 31 December 2018

42. e EAMERE®

REE SRR E)
REGORABERSRE  TK
BMAREESREENDMER:

R-ZZE-NF+ZA=1+—H

Up to 1 to less than 3 to less than 1 to
1 month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
—BER —ZE=@A =E+=-fEA —ZRE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TET
Liabilities =K
Accounts payable J& 1 ;R IE 18,883,841 - - — 18,883,841
Bank borrowings RITIE K 9,466,415 - - - 9,466,415
Debt securities in issue  BETES
B5 23,829,566 860,471 1,344,577 - 26,034,614
Financial liabilities at BRAFERA
fair value through profit Bz #) € &t
or loss RfE 8,413,380 - - - 8,413,380
Obligations under [E] % 173 =% Y
repurchase agreements f&18 11,803,449 1,385,468 - - 13,188,917
72,396,651 2,245,939 1,344,577 - 75,987,167
Off-balance sheet items & E &&X 5
HH
Underwriting obligations & $H 7 & 451,204 - - - 451,204
Financial obligations to ~ BB & B 75
loan facilities Bt 53,295 - - - 53,295
Capital commitments BRI 9,575 - - - 9,575
514,074 - - - 514,074
Derivative cash flows fT4BHE&HRE
Derivative financial REBHEER
instruments settled on a  $74 & &l
gross basis =
Total inflows BmA 2,194,764 572,579 2,958,804 16,350 5,742,497
Total outflows FE e (2,194,716) (601,816) (2,924,846) (16,400) (5,737,778)
48 (29,237) 33,958 (50) 4,719
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRRAKRERE®
Liquidity risk (continued) REBEERERZ)
As at 31 December 2017 R-FE—+tE+=-H=+—H
1 to less 3 to less
Up to than than 1 to
1 month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
—@EAR —Z2=A =Z==+=@A =z Ak Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Liabilities af&
Accounts payable JE A F0E 16,952,250 = = = 16,952,250
Bank borrowings RITEK 9,395,707 4,418,025 - = 13,813,732
Debt securities in issue B2 ETES
7 5 12,211,302 46,605 4,122,763 - 16,380,670
Financial liabilities at BAFEA
fair value through BErL
profit or loss =i 9,008,776 — — — 9,008,776
Obligations under [B] 5 13 3% HY
repurchase agreements (9] 6,087,645 162,389 - - 6,250,034
53,655,680 4,627,019 4122,763 - 62,405,462
Off-balance sheet items B E&EX 4
EH
Underwriting obligations 7 $5 & & 2,836,419 — — — 2,836,419
Financial obligations to & @l & B 75
loan facilities B 158,665 - - - 158,665
Capital commitments BRI 3,026 = = = 3,026
2,998,110 - - - 2,998,110
Derivative cash flows MERERE
Derivative financial RRELEEN
instruments settled on TESHE
a gross basis THE
Total inflows HENTN 976,856 391,239 4,086,970 - 5,455,065
Total outflows R (958,776) (392,047) (4,049,286) - (5,400,109)
18,080 (808) 37,684 - 54,956
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRRAKRERE®

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the Group's
financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value are not
materially different from their carrying amount due to their short term
nature.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Group's valuation process

The Level 1 and Level 2 fair values of financial assets are measured
by reference to quoted market prices and brokers' quotes, respectively.
The Group has engaged an independent professionally qualified valuer,
International Valuation Limited, to perform the valuation of financial
instruments in Level 3 for financial reporting purposes. These valuation
reports are sent to the finance department and the audit committee for
discussion at least twice per annum, which is in line with the Group's
reporting dates.

At each financial year end, the finance department reviews all
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments used to
measure the fair values of financial instruments in Level 3. Changes
in fair values of Levels 2 and 3 financial assets are analysed at each
reporting date.
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TRMEEREBENQIFE®R)
BAFEENE#TAE)

42. Financial risk management (continued) 42,

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy NEESER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TREAAEESHTAENATFE
the Group's financial instruments: TEEH:

BAVEAENEE:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2018 R=—ZZE—-NE+=-B=+—H

Fair value measurement using
RAUTEENATLETE
Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
BEKRA BEXRES
BRE2H BRE2H
(5B24%) (5834%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

ERWS
H®E
(Z18)
HK$'000
TR

At
HK$'000
TERT

Financial assets held REBEESREE
for trading
— Listed equity securities - EWRAE 5 521,238 - - 521,238
— Listed debt securities - FHEKES - 13,319,376 - 13,319,376
— Unlisted debt - FEEMERES
securities - 473,057 - 473,057
Financial assets at fair value & AFEzF AB R
through profit or loss CTREE
— Listed fund - FmESKRE
investments 2,753 - - 2,753
— Unlisted fund - FETEEERE
investments - 447,903 - 447,903
— Other financial - HEte@mIT A
instruments - 231,247 - 231,247
— Unlisted convertible - FEEmABR
promissory note R - - 23,847 23,847
— Financial products - SHEm 2,836,277 24,111,097 5,894,674 32,842,048
Derivative financial TEERMIA
instruments - 76,832 - 76,832
3,360,268 38,659,512 5,918,521 47,938,301
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2017

42. e EAMERE®

TRMEEREBENQIFE®R)
BAFEENE#TAE)
NP EFRE)
BAVEAENEE: (B)

R-ZE-—tH+-A=t+-—H

Fair value measurement using
FRATRENATEFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ERT S EpNG| EREE
WIE BE28 BE28
(E18) (F28) (£38%) @at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FTAT TAET
Financial assets held HRIEBEESREE
for trading
— Listed equity securities - FTRAES 423,450 = = 423,450
— Listed debt securities - ETEBESH = 7,517,668 = 7,517,668
— Unlisted debt securities — ELETERES = 601,913 = 601,913
Financial assets at fair value R AFEFABZEH
through profit or loss EREE
— Listed fund - tmESKE
investments 23,249 - - 23,249
— Unlisted fund - FLETESEE
investments - 238,399 - 238,399
— Other financial - Hit& @M T H
instruments - 119,592 - 119,592
— Financial products - D REMm 2,111,520 24,515,860 1,619,111 28,246,491
Derivative financial THE SR
instruments TH — 110,461 — 110,461
2,558,219 33,103,893 1,619,111 37,281,223

B Z=
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2018

42. e EAMERE®

TRMEEREBENQIFE®R)
BRAFEFENHTAE)
NP EFRE)
BRAFEFENEE:

R-ZZE-NF+ZA=1+—H

Fair value measurement using

RAUTEENAFETE

274

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EE™ S B KRA BEREE
B B2y BE2H
(ZE14) (ZE24%) (ZE34%) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T&ExT T#E T T T & T
Debt securities in issue EERAFEFA
designated at fair value BamBEET
through profit and loss BEEF — (12,968,391) (6,309,622) (19,278,013)
Financial liabilities held FIEEEL R
for trading =N
— Listed equity securities —— ETIRAE 5 (41,913) - - (41,913)
— Listed debt securities - FEBES —  (3.334,378) —  (3.334,378)
Financial liabilities EEEAFE
designated at fair value STAE &
through profit or loss eREE
— Financial products - SRE S - (5,004,994) (32,095) (5,037,089)
Derivative financial PTE© R
instruments TA - (23,620) - (23,620)
(41,913) (21,331,383) (6,341,717) (27,715,013)
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRERAREE®
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) tREEREBNAFER)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) HAFETENSHTAGE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEBESERE)
Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued) BEAFEFENEE: (&)
As at 31 December 2017 R-—ZE—tHF+=-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
RANTEENRAFEFE
Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
i BB T 35 = AT BEAEE
(B B2 B2
(1) (%24%) (E3#) B Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FATT FAT FAT
Debt securities in issue EERAFEEGA
designated at fair value BamMBEEITE
through profit and loss % 38 % - (8,267,555) (2,211,321)  (10,478,876)
Financial liabilities held for #{EE = & &b
trading =N
— Listed equity securities — A E 5 (6,634) = = (6,634)
— Listed debt securities - FTEBES = (1,573,357) - (1,573,357)
Financial liabilities EERRAYE
designated at fair value STAE & HY
through profit or loss eREE
— Financial products - L EE M = (7,428,785) = (7,428,785)
Derivative financial MEERE
instruments ITA - (27.722) - (27,722)

(6,634) (17,297,419) (2,211,321) (19,515,374)
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

42. e EAMERE®

TRMEEREBENQIFE®R)

BAFEFAENTHTAE)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(a)

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets
are based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and reqularly available from an exchange, dealer, or broker and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis. The quoted market price
used for financial assets and financial liabilities held by the
Group is the current bid price and current ask price.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter) are determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs used in the valuation for financial instruments
are observable, the financial instruments are included in Level
2.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on
observable market data, the financial instrument is included in
Level 3.

Financial instruments in Level 3
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRERAREE®
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) TRMEEREENATE®E)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) HAFETENSHTAGE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEBESERE)
(¢)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (0 HE3ecmIAE)
Level 3 financial assets FEIF TR E E
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—NF+=ZA=+—
HIEFE
Unlisted
convertible
promissory Unlisted fund Financial
note investments product Total
¥k Em LT
BXES EeRE SRMER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FTER FTER FET
At 1 January 2018 R=ZZT—NFE
—H—H - - 1,619,111 1,619,111
Purchases BE 39,105 - 3,305,818 3,344,923
Disposal HE - - - =
Receipt on maturity 7 B HR BRF L 3R (19,555) - (58,665) (78,220)
Accrued interest income & 51 F 8 U A - = = =
Receipt of interest W ERF &
income N - - - -
Net gain recognised in Bz AR
profit or loss W s 7R 4,297 - 1,028,410 1,032,707
At 31 December 2018 —ZT—\E+=
A=+—8 23,847 - 5,894,674 5,918,521
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. cRRAKRERE®
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) TRMEEREENATE®E)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) HAFEGTENZHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEBESERE)
(¢)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (0 HE3ecmIAE)
Level 3 financial asset (continued) FEI3F B E (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tF+=RA=+—
HIEFE
Unlisted
convertible
promissory  Unlisted fund Financial
note investments product Total
FE LT LT
&5 55 F EoKE @ Em 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FHET FAT
At 1 January 2017 R=ZT—+F
—H—H 115,184 51,701 1172,317 1,339,202
Purchases BE - - 238,204 238,204
Disposal HE (76,081) (57,281) - (133,362)
Receipt on maturity 7 B B R U R - - - =
Accrued interest income F&E &t & B UL A 1,540 = = 1,540
Receipt of interest W ERF &
income WA (1,546) - - (1,546)
Net (loss)/gain recognised #1825 A HE 32 &4
in profit or loss (B8,
W == R (39,097) 5,580 208,590 175,073
At 31 December 2017 Z=T—+tF+=
A=+—8H - — 1,619,111 1,619,111
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42,

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

SR EREE )

TRMEEREBENQIFE®R)
BAFEENE#TAE)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEEFE)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (0 HE3FemITHEME)
Level 3 financial liabilities F3FemaE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—NF+=ZA=+—
HIEEE
Financial Debt securities
product in Issue Total
BT
ERMER B E S st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FER
At 1 January 2018 R=ZF—NF
—H—H - 2,211,321 2,211,321
Issuance B 21T 78,210 3,079,246 3,157,456
Redemption on maturity 7 B HA B 1 [0 (58,665) - (58,665)
Net loss recognised in REZRERH
profit or loss BRI 12,550 1,019,055 1,031,605
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\F
+=—A=+—H 32,095 6,309,622 6,341,717

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE=ZEZ—t&+=-A=1+-—
BILEE

Debt Securities

in Issue

B 21T

BB EH

HK$'000

FHE T

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—t&F—H—H 1,172,317
Issuance 2217 830,414
Net loss recognised in profit or loss ME R R E B FE 208,590
At 31 December 2017 R-_TE—tF+-_HA=+—H 2,211,321

BEELZBERERERAAF |2018F K

279



Notes to Financial Statements

B 1% ¥ R M 5
31 December 2018
2\ +ZA=+—H

42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. cREREE#)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) tREEREBNAFER)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) HAFETENSHTAGE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEBESERE)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (0 HE3ecmIAE)

280

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments as at 31 December 2018 and

2017:

31 December 2018

Valuation
technique

fEER

Financial products Market approach

EREM [z

Significant
unobservable input
EXELEEZY

Pricing multiples of market
comparable companies used
to determine the estimated
equity value of the Project
Company:
AREERA DA RE
EENTHIELB AR
EEGH:

Average
¥4

TXASBIAR-E—N\F
R-F—t#+-A=+—H
HE B A FOARE 2 B

= -

—F-NF+=A=t—H

Sensitivity of
the fair value to the input

ATEHSHNBBE

10% increase or decrease in the
underlying stock price, the fair value
would be increased by HK$22 million
or decreased by HK$22 million,
respectively.

1BEAMRE LA kR E100 - RYER
ARIEN2BEERTHRS2AER
T e

— Price to book multiple 1.2
i+
— Price to earnings multiple 9.4
-max
Financial products Recent transaction  NJA N/A - NJA
price
TRER LR HER NEm AER A ER
Financial products Net asset value N/A N/A - NJA
TRER EERE NEm AER A ER
Financial products and Discount cash flows Discount rate 11%  10% increase or decrease in the
unlisted convertible discount rate, the fair value would
promissory note be increased by HK$1.6 million
or decreased by HK$1.6 million,
respectively.
SREMMFELTAIRRA BRBESRE BRX TER  EBREEEMIND10% A FES

AEBIA
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

31 December 2018 (continued)

Debt securities in issue

Debt securities in issue
BETEEES

Debt securities in issue
BETEEES

Debt securities in issue

ERTEHES

|

Valuation

technique

fHER M
Market approach

5%

Recent transaction
price
TR S ER

Net asset value

EERE

Discount cash flows

RRAERE

Significant
unobservable input

EXBEERSY

Pricing multiples of market
comparable companies used
to determine the estimated
equity value of the Project
Company:
ANETRE AR fha R
EENTSIELRAR
EEEH:

— Price to book multiple

- k=

— Price to earnings multiple

-max

N/A
TEm

N/A
TEm

TEm

42.

EWmERERE®)

TRMEEREENATE®E)

HAFEGTENZHTAE)

NEBEBERE)

(0 HF3xeMmIEAE)
—E-NFg+=-H=+—H
(#])

Sensitivity of
the fair value to the input

AYEHZENBBE

10% increase or decrease in the
underlying stock price, the fair value
would be increased by HK$22 million
or decreased by HK$22 million,
respectively.
HRERE LA EI0% A TEES
AREMNBEATIRL2AES

Average

74

7T|: o
1.2
9.4
N/A NJA
TER  TER
N/A NJA
TER  TER
N/A  10% increase or decrease in the
discount rate, the fair value would
be increased by HK$1.0 million
or decreased by HK$1.0 million,
respectively.
TEB  BERREEMIOR 0% AEEE

50108 HBTRA 108
it -
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. cREREE#)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) tREEREBNAFER)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) HAFETENSHTAGE)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEBESERE)

(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (0 HE3ecmIAE)
31 December 2017 —ZEZ—tF+=-A=+-—H

Valuation Significant

unobservable input Average
EXAELEEZY ¥19

Pricing multiples of market
comparable companies used
to determine the estimated

Sensitivity of
the fair value to the input

DYEHZRNHBE

10% increase or decrease in the
underlying stock price, the fair value
would be increased by HK$138.1 million

technique

fit {E 5 i
Market approach

Financial products

TREM

[z

equity value of the Project
Company:

AREEEE AR fht g
EBENTSAELRARN
EEEE:

or decreased by HK$138.1 million,
respectively.

TR AR (E £ A ek PR K100 @+ D FEE S
2 RI3E 13818 &8 7T 3R 40138,
BEATL -

— Price to revenue multiple 8.8
-mEX
— Price to book multiple 2.5
- kX
— Price to earnings multiple 56.6
- AR
— Enterprise value to sales 9.7
-REEEHEERL R
Financial products Recent transaction  NJA N/A NJA
price
TREM THZHER NEm rEm  TER
Debt securities in issue Market approach  Pricing multiples of market 10% increase or decrease in the
comparable companies used underlying stock price, the fair value
to determine the estimated would be increased by HK$138.1 million
equity value of the Project or decreased by HK$138.1 million,
Company: respectively.
BETEHES %% AREEEE AR fht g HHERE LAk RBEEI0 AT ES
EENTSIELRAR 7RI 4E 0138, & &8 ;TR 41381
EEEE: BEATL
— Price to revenue multiple 8.8
-mEX
— Price to book multiple 2.5
- kX
— Price to earnings multiple 56.6
- mAX
— Enterprise value to sales 9.7
-REEEHEERL R
Debt securities in issue Recent transaction  NJA N/A - NJA
price
BETEHES THZHER NEm rEm  TER
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42.

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management

The Group's objectives for managing capital, which represent a broader
concept than the "equity” on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:

° to comply with the capital requirements under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules for its
subsidiaries which are licensed corporations;

° to safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders;

. to support the Group's stability and growth; and

° to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business.

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed
subsidiary's management based on the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules. The required information is filed with the SFC on a
timely basis. The SFC requires each licensed corporation to maintain
a level of required liquid capital which is the higher of the floor
requirement ranging from HK$0.1 million to HK$15 million and 5% of
the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities and clients' margin. All licensed
corporations within the Group complied with their required liquid
capital during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

A subsidiary of the Company is a member of the Hong Kong
Confederation of Insurance Brokers and is required to maintain a
minimum net asset value of HK$0.1 million at all times. Another
subsidiary of the Company is a Registered Fund Management Company
registered with the Monetary Authority of Singapore and is required
to maintain a minimum base capital requirement of SG$250,000 at all
times.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.

42.
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43. BETHEERSBMER

43. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
Continuous Net Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivable and
trade payables with HKSCC and it intends to settle on a net basis as
accounts receivable from or accounts payable to the Stock Exchange.
The net amount of CNS money obligations receivable or payable with
HKSCC and the guarantee fund placed in HKSCC do not meet the
criteria for offsetting in the financial statements and the Group does
not intend to settle the balances on a net basis.

SR B AT AR TR A K
HEFEBENFEFREIWGEF
B B M) FE UK B B XX B R A R
B WRERFEEEERREEKE
NBXAEREE - BB EEEDN
R R AR AR s R A RR 00
BREHREEGENREESY
TRHENMBRRAEHHTE
AEETREZFRELESESH

RERR -

Gross amount

of recognised
financial  Net amounts Related
Gross amount (assets)/  of financial amounts not
of recognised liabilities liabilities set off in
financial offset in  reflected in the statement
assets/ the financial the financial  of financial

(liabilities) statements statements position

REF 3§ % BRI

EER KHECRR REERR BHEHRRER

SREE,/ SRM(BE)/ Z23men Ei L)
(BE)4E B4R EEEE EBLHE FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL TAET THET TEL AL

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZB-N\F
+=A=+-H
CNS money obligation receivable  # 48 /% &
U e U B 609,368 (328,663)
CNS money obligation payable & % 4

QU1 BR (328,663)

R-E-+&
+=A=t+-H
CNS money obligation receivable 5 4& % %8
e W R 895,209 (895,209) - = =
CNS money obligation payable — ##& %%
R U e ER (1,074,870) 895,209 (179,661) = (179,661)

280,705 = 280,705

328,663 = = =

As at 31 December 2017

The "net amounts of financial liabilities reflected in the financial
statements”, as set out above, is included in "accounts receivable and
accounts payable arising from brokerage — the Stock Exchange and
other clearing houses" in notes 18 and 24 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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44. Statement of financial position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

44, R Q T B AR R &

BRAA R B S B R B B AR 0

REERMT

2018
—E-N\F

HK$'000
FRET

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FBT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries a4 IN /NG 7,690,956 7,632,698
_Deferred tax assets BEBARE |
7,690,957 7,632,698
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRRIE ReRk
other receivables b fiE Y 318 13,311 9,338
Amount due from subsidiaries = NGIE 3,695,933 9,411,545
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEEEEY 6,606 40,596
_Total current assets RBRERE 3715850 9,461,479
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable FE 15 F 1B (26) =
Accrued liabilities FE 3R (35.342) (17,991)
Debt securities in issue et B & (2,694,443) (8,304,424)
— At amortised cost — BREHKA (2,577,411) (5,301,400)
— Designated at fair value through - EBEEEQATE
profit or loss AR R (117,032) (3,003,024)
Tax payable FEAS B IR (3.480) =
_Total current liabilities RBEGERE (2733.291) (8,322415)
_Net current assets REREFE 982,559 1,139,064
Total assets less current liabilities and HWEERABEAGBR
net assets EERHE 8,673,516 8,771,762

BEELZBERERERAAF |2018F K
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44, Statement of financial position of the Company 44. &K2Q 7 B # AR R & @)

(continued)
2018 2017
—E-—N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T TE T
Equity &
Share capital A& 7R 8,116,887 6,115,076
Share-based compensation reserve LARE 0 B E B EEE 66,186 64,973
— Share option reserve (Note) — MR AR M i (B 5E) 37,816 40,769
— Share award reserve (Note) — B&1n 22 B e 1 (BT 5) 28,370 24,204
Shares held under the share award scheme BT EIE AN
(Note) & 1 (Bt 53) (142,051) (181,281)
Retained profits (Note) R B s A (Bt &%) 281,710 426,200
Equity attributable to holders of ordinary shares 3@ % # B A F& (5 4 &5 8,322,372 6,424,968
Equity attributable to holders of other equity HtERZTEFHFAEA
instrument JE 15 #E = 350,784 2,346,794
Total equity w4 ER 8,673,516 8,771,762
Dr. YIM Fung Mr. LI Guangjie
-3 ERRNFKE
Director Director
EFE BF
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44, Statement of financial position of the Company 44. &K2Q 7 B # AR R & @)

(continued)
Note: Wit 5
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AARIEHERENAT ¢
Share held
Share Share under the
option award share award Retained
reserve reserve scheme profits
R 17 5€ B
i R 17 5 /& STEET
i % #E FEHRG R BE R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FERT FTET TERx
As at 1 January 2017 RZTE—tF
—HA—H 48,266 40,636 (214,323) 314,868 189,447
HKFRS 9 adjustment on BEBEMHRSE
retained earnings 4 BI| 5 95% # R
B T &) B - - = (40) (40)
Total comprehensive income for R 2 &K=
the year Rk - - - 863,147 863,147
Perpetual securities distribution 7k £ & % 9 &k - - - (105,162) (105,162)
Recognition of equity-settled T 58 DATE 25
share-based payments T E AR &
(Notes 32 and 33) E A
(Pff 732 %33) 7,611 70,801 - - 78,412
Purchases of shares held under B E 1R #& i% 1 28 &b
the share award scheme TEIF ARG
(Notes 33 and 34) (B 5E33 %34) = - (72,786) - (72,786)
Vesting of shares for A% 17 22 &)
the share award scheme (Notes =t &I 55 /& B% 15
33 and 34) (B 5E33 %34) - (87,233) 105,828 (23,430) (4,835)

Shares issued upon exercise of &R AEET BB T
share options under the share — 77{E B AR M

option scheme (Note 32) FITH AR
(P 7£32) (15,108) - - - (15,108)
Final dividend paid TRZT—RF
for 2016 (Note 10) REARR B
(Bt 5£10) - - - (311,380) (311,380)
Interim dividend paid TRNZT—tF
for 2017 (Note 10) FEIRR B
(P 3E10) - - - (311,803) (311,803)

BEELBEBRZERER AR 201858k 287
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44, Statement of financial position of the Company 44. &K2Q 7 B # AR R & @)

(continuead)
Note: (continued) B s : ()
Share held
Share Share under the
option award share award Retained
reserve reserve scheme profits
iR 14 5% B
% 17 2% B sTEIET
f* & #E FEHRDG REBER #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER FET FExT
At 31 December 2017 and RZZE—+F
1 January 2018 +=A=+—H
k=T —N\F
—H—H 40,769 24,204 (181,281) 426,200 309,892
Total comprehensive income FREE W=
for the year k=] - - - 528,849 528,849
Perpetual securities distribution 7k & #& % 9 Ik - - - (51,816) (51,816)
Recognition of equity-settled T 58 DAME 2
share-based payments STEUARG A
(Notes 32 and 33) HPEA AR
(P 3£32 %33) 5,297 69,471 - - 74,768
Purchases of shares held BERIERNEZE
under the share award scheme &t 2|# B 8K %
(Notes 33 and 34) (Pff 7733 %2 34) - - (52,579) - (52,579)
Vesting of shares for fist ) 2% &)
the share award scheme srElEBRG
(Notes 33 and 34) (Pff 7733 %2 34) - (65,305) 91,809 (30,364) (3.860)

Shares issued upon exercise of AT EIE T
share options under the share 17 {&f B8 A% # i

option scheme (Note 32) EATH AR D
(Fft 5£32) (3.771) - - - (3.771)
Transfer of share option % PR e 25 Ak i
reserve upon the forfeiture BRI R E
of share options ] (4,479) - - 4,479 -
Final dividend paid for 2017 XNZEB—1t4F
(Note 10) REIAR B
(Fft %£10) - - - (343,960) (343,960)
Interim dividend paid for 2018 R =F—/\4F
(Note 10) WA AR S
(Fft %£10) - - - (251,678) (251,678)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—NEF
+=—A=+—H 37,816 28,370 (142,051) 281,710 205,845
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